A Draft Documentary History of
Industries along the Railroads through Johnson City

Part 2:
Industries along the E.T. & W.N.C. and Clinchfield Railroads
From South Roan Street to Sevier Street and from Jobe Street to Ash Street, 1883 — 1946

By William C. Schneck, Jr. (As of 28 May 2024)

1. Introduction

This is a draft documentary history of the businesses along the E.T. & W.N.C. and
Clinchfield railroads and located in the area bounded by Sevier, Ash, South Roan and Jobe streets.
At present, | am planning to produce four more documentary histories on trackside industries in
and around Johnson City. For the present document, | have attempted to collect relevant documents
and place them in roughly chronological order for each geographic location. Maps and figures of
the exterior of the buildings for each location are grouped together and presented first, while
figures of the interior and advertisements are integrated with the text and are presented second.
The compass directions used in this documentary history are approximate, with north taken to be
at the top of each map.

Regrettably, | have failed to find much information on some of these industries. Perhaps
more can be accomplished on this portion of the subject. | invite other members of the Historical
Society to add any missing material to this document and discuss/correct any deficient
interpretations of the information at hand (particularly the dating and interpretation of the
photographs). For those who wish to research the documents and photographs further, 1 have
provided links, when available, to expedite such attempts. In general, | have left the original
spelling (sometimes autocorrect strikes, so | am unsure that all of it is original). | wish to thank
Chris Ford for his assistance and encouragement to bring this document into a presentable state.
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Map 1. Track side industries in downtown Johnson City, c. 1915.*
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2. Businesses Between Buffalo and Sevier/New Streets (East to West) and
Between Jobe and Ash Streets (North to South):
(Maps and Figures)

Railroad Stock Pen, 19037 — 1908?

Love — Thomas Building, 1907 — Present
Love — Thomas Dry Goods Company, 1907 — 1911?
Later Tenants (typically company/corporate staffs):
Unaka Corporation, 1911 —?
Tennessee Veneer Company, 1911 —?
Model Mill Company, 1911 —?
Clinchfield, Carolina & Ohio Railway, 1916 — 1926
Otter Restaurant & Brewing Company, mid-1990s — 2005
Christ Community Church (according to Google Maps), 2024

Johnson City Foundry and Machine Company Building, 1883 — 1909
Crumley and Miller Foundry (18837 — 1884)
Johnson City Foundry and Machine Company (at this location 1884 — 1909)
Tenants Mentioned:
Johnson City Wood Bending Works, 1885
Insulator Pin factory, 1894
Watauga Chair and Wood Turning Works, 1894 — 1895
Gump & Mathes corn mill, 1898
Johnson City Veneering Company, at this location 1898 — 1901
Home Ice and Coal Company, at this location 1901 — 1908
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Map 5. ThIS map depicts the area bounded by Buffalo and Sevier/New streets (east to west) and Jobe and Ash streets (north to south), in December
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2.1. Railroad Stock Pen, 19037 — 1908?

This facility, on the northeast corner of Cherry and New streets,
was served by dual-gauge trackage
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Map 4A. “R.R. Stock Pen”, on dual gauge trackage in April 1903. Regrettably, the author has not
found any more information on this “R.R. Stock Pen”. The “Coal Yard” probably belongs to the
Home Ice and Coal Company, see Map 4. Historian Johnny Graybeal wrote: “By mid 1899, the
ET&WNC had added one stock car to the roster... By mid-1902, the number of stock cars had
increased to three. Three cars were the maximum number on the roster for many years...”*° The
Standard Oil Company facility shown near the top of this map will be addressed in a later
document.
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Map 5A. “R.R. Stock Pen”,“December 1908. This map indicates that the building adjacent to the stock pen was
“iron clad”. The 1913 map (Map 6) indicates that this stock pen had been removed by the time that map was
created.
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2.2. Love — Thomas Building, 1907 — Present
(Maps and Figures)

Love — Thomas Dry Goods Company, 1907 — 1911?

Later Tenants (typically company/corporate staffs):
Unaka Corporation, 1911 —?
Tennessee Veneer Company, 1911 —?
Model Mill Company, 1911 —?
Clinchfield, Carolina & Ohio Railway, 1916 — 1926
Otter Restaurant & Brewing Company, mid-1990s — 2005
Christ Community Church (according to Google Maps), 2024

This building, at the southwest corner of Cherry and Earnest streets,
was served by a Clinchfield spur around 1913.
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Map 5B. A detail of the Love — Thomas building, on Earnest Street, between West Cherry and South Ash streets,

in December 1908. Note the dual gauge C.C. & O. trackage on Ash Street, which was a spur to the Interior
Hardwood Company plant. The plant of the Interior Hardwood Company was located further to the west and was
addressed in a previous documentary history.



LOVE-THOMAS CO.,
Wholesale Dry Goods and Notions,

JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE.

The Home of "Autocrat Notions."

We are one of the leading Dry Goods and Notion Jobbers in this territory—covering East
Tennessee, Western North Carolina, Eastern Kentucky, South West Virginia,
Northern South Carolina and Northern Georgia.

MAIL ORDERS promptly filed SATISFACTION GUARANTEED ACARD will bring one of our Salesmen

Figure 1. The “Love — Thomas Co., Wholesale Dry Goods and Notions” by 1909.1
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Figure 1A. Love — Thomas Building. “Located at the corner of Ashe and Earnest Streets, the Love — Thomas Company was a successful wholesale dry
goods and notions business established in January 1907. It employed six traveling salesmen who covered a five-state area. By 1914, the building was
used by the Carolina, Clinchfield & Ohio Railway (CC&O) for its offices.” This photograph was published in 1909 and it appears that the left side of
this image is the south-facing side of the building (facing Ash Street), while the long portion appears to be the east-facing side of it (facing Earnest
Street). In 1926, the Clinchfield moved its personnel in the Love — Thomas building to Erwin, Tennessee.
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pESEST]

\
Figure 2. A modern photograph of the Love — Thomas Building, the large brick building on the left, taken from the Summers Hardware building. Note

the Model Mill in the left background and the platform of the former Clinchfield depot on the right.*? Also note the different windows of the Love —
Thomas building, in comparison to those depicted in Figure 1A.
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Map 6A. A detail from July 1913. Notice the railroad spur to the Love — Thomas building and the new United
States Post Office, as well as the removal of the railroad spur to the Interior Hardwood Company plant, depicted

on Map 5.
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Figure 3. This photograph looks south from the railroadtracs alog Cerry eet, down Earnest Street toward Ash Street. The Post
Office is on the left and the Love — Thomas building is on the right. This post office was built in 1910.%3
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Figure 4. A partial view of the south side of the Love — Thomas building on the northwest corner
of Ash and Earnest streets on 1 March 1947, note the boxcars on the right side of this photograph.**




M &' go

Figure 5. An aerial view of the Love — Thomas building (bottom left) and th Post Office (bottom right), with what appears to be a storage yard of the
Summers Hardware & Supply Company (top center), on 19 April 1941.%° This image provides the only view of the west side of the Love — Thomas
building that the author has located.
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Map 8A. A detail of the Carolina, Clinchfield & Ohio Railroad General Offices in the Love — Thomas building
in February 1920.%6 Note the U.S. Post Office building in the lower right, as well as the removal of the railroad

spur to the Love — Thomas building, see Map 7.
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See Figure 6 for a view of the interior of this building.
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2.2. Love — Thomas Building, 1907 — Present
Love — Thomas Dry Goods Company, 1907 — 1911?

Later Tenants (typically company/corporate headquarters):
Unaka Corporation, 1911 —?
Tennessee Veneer Company, 1911 —?
Model Mill Company, 1911 —?
Clinchfield, Carolina & Ohio Railway, 1916 — 1926
Otter Restaurant & Brewing Company, mid-1990s — 2005
Christ Community Church (according to Google Maps), 2024

This building, at the southwest corner of Cherry and Earnest streets,
was served by a Clinchfield spur around 1913

3 January 1907. Johnson City Comet.

“Wholesale Dry Goods Co. — Johnson City is soon to have its first wholesale dry goods
store. The Love — Thomas Company has been incorporated by J.C. Love, R.C. Staples, V.M.
Thomas, R.S. Gill and Thad A. Cox. The capital stock is $75,000 and the new concern will be
ready for business as soon as its quarters can be secured. It may be necessary to erect a building.
Of this enterprise the Knoxville Journal and Tribune says

“Three young men who have been connected with Knoxville wholesale dry goods and
notions firms have formed a partnership with other Johnson City men and propose to establish a
wholesale dry goods and notion house in that thriving city, the concern to be capitalized at $75,000.

The gentlemen referred to are V.M. Thomas, for six years with Brown, Payne, Deaver &
Company, of Knoxville; R.S. Gill, who has been with Daniel Briscoe & Company for several
years, and J.C. Love, who has been with Cowan, McClung & Company, of Knoxville. Other
members of the firm are Thad A. Cox and R.C. Staples of Johnson City.’

Mr. Cox is one of Johnson City’s most substantial citizens and will add strength to the

concern.”?

31 January 1907. Johnson City Comet.

“Carter Wants to Get Busy. There is no longer any doubt about what Mr. Carter and
associates want to do for Johnson City on the south side. They have a landscape artist here and he
has asked the city to allow them to go ahead with laying sewers and water mains throughout the
addition so they can build their streets. Some of the streets will be paved, a boulevard following
the contours of the land over a mile in length will be asphalted, and the other streets will be
macadamized. Ash street will be the wholesale thoroughfare and will be 65 feet wide with the
business houses extending back to the side tracks of the S. & W. The Love — Thomas Dry Goods
Co. has contracted with Mr. Carter for the first store house on this street and it will be erected this
spring. Others will follow as fast as human agencies can construct them.”

4 April 1907. Johnson City Comet.
“New Building Started. Thursday morning engineers staked off the site for the building
being erected by Geo. L. Carter and associates for the Love — Thomas Dry Goods Company. It is
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being built on the corner of Cherry and Earnest streets opposite the new foundry, or what was
originally the Ap. Miller property. The building is to be three stories high and will be 50 x 125 feet
and will be used exclusively as a wholesale dry goods and notion store.” The author has not been
able to identify the “new foundry” mentioned in this article.

15 April 1907. Daily Bulletin the of Manufacturers’ Record.

“Johnson City, Tenn. — Office Building... The Unaka, Holston & Swannanoa Corporations
have finally concluded purchases at about $250,000 to secure rights of way, trackage, terminals
and building sites and begun the erection of proposed building to be occupied by Love — Thomas
Dry Goods Co. The corporations have contracted with the United States Government to donate
site for proposed $90,000 postoffice building, and will erect nearby union depot, hotel and
department store, and to pave, sewer and sidewalk a mile of streets.”?°

26 October 1911. Johnson City Comet.

“Love — Thomas Building is being remodelled. George L. Carter is transforming the three-
story building that has been occupied by the Love — Thomas Co. into an office building to
accommodate the officers of the Unaka Corporation, Tennessee Veneer Co. and the Model Mill
Co., all corporations exclusively or largely owned by him. A commodious fire proof vault is being
built and the extensive remodelling will make the building one of the most modern office buildings
in the city.”

26 November 1914. Johnson City Comet.

“Offices May Move to Carter Building. — The Carter building, formerly occupied by the
Love — Thomas Co., is being remodelled and made into a modern office building. The first and
third floors are being divided into many office rooms. A new vault will be built and a fourth floor
may be added. It is stated upon good authority that the building will be occupied by the C.C. & O.
Railway as a general office building and the office building in Carnegie abandoned.” Apparently,
a fourth floor has never been added to this building.

1914 and 1926. Erwin, Tennessee: A Pictorial History, 1891 — 1929.

“In 1914 we [the Clinchfield Railroad] moved our offices from Carnegie down to Johnson
City in the old Love — Thomas building, where we remained until the offices moved to Erwin [in
1926].7%

Price & Heald Lumber Yard, 1894

7 June 1894. Johnson City Comet.

“A New Lumber Yard. Price & Heald, of Baltimore, have opened a lumber yard on the
East Tennessee, just below the foundry. It is arranged so that the narrow gauge can reach it. The
lumber is being cut at Shell Creek, where the company has several thousand acres of timber land.”
The author has not located any more information on this enterprise.
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2.3. Johnson City Foundry and Machine Company Building, 1883 — 1909
(Maps and Figures)

Crumley and Miller Foundry (18837 — 1884)
Johnson City Foundry and Machine Company (at this location, 1884 — 1909)

Tenants Mentioned:
Johnson City Wood Bending Works, 1885
Insulator Pin factory, 1894
Watauga Chair and Wood Turning Works, 1894 — 1895
Gump & Mathes corn mill, 1898
Johnson City Veneering Company, at this location 1898 — 1901
Home Ice and Coal Company, at this location 1901 — 1908

This facility was located on the north side of Cherry,
near the intersection of Cherry and Earnest streets. It was served by dual-gauge trackage.
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Figure 7. “Johnson City Foudry and achine Works. Chief Machiist, W.N. DeGroat, Foreman... Head Ofﬁe, J onsc; City, Tenn.;
Branch Office, Knoxville.” This factory was located on Cherry Street, near the intersection of Cherry and Earnest streets. It appears that
this photograph dates to between 1886 and 1889, with 1886 appearing to be the most likely, see Map 2.22
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Frgure 8. Thrs photograph appears t hve been taken at the Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works when it was Iocated on Cherry Street.?
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Figure 9. This photograph als appears to have been taken at the
Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works when it was located on Cherry Street.?*
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Map 2B. A detail of the Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works, January 1891. Note the “Carp’t’r Shop” (Carpenter Shop), which belonged to the
E.T. & W.N.C. and appears to measure approximately 50’ x 25°. Additionally, this map appears to indicate that this building was not a true rectangle.
The Johnson City Comet states that this building was erected in 1889, and it appears that it was demolished with the rest of the Johnson City Foundry
& Machine Shop in 1909. Also note that “Bl. Sm.” appears to be an abbreviation for “black smith”.
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2.3. Johnson City Foundry and Machine Company Building, 1883 — 1909

Crumley and Miller Foundry (18837 — 1884)
Johnson City Foundry and Machine Company (at this location 1884 — 1909)%°

Tenants Mentioned:
Johnson City Wood Bending Works, 1885
Insulator Pin factory, 1894
Watauga Chair and Wood Turning Works, 1894 — 1895
Gump & Mathes corn mill, 1898
Johnson City Veneering Company, 1898 — 1901 (separate section, below)
Home Ice and Coal Company, at this location 1901 — 1908

This facility was located on the north side of Cherry,
near the intersection of Cherry and Earnest streets. It was served by dual-gauge trackage.

1883 — 1884. Newsletter — Tennessee Anthropological Association.

“The foundry began operations in 1883, either as the Johnson City Foundry and Machine
Works, or as Miller and Crumley Foundry. Reputedly, two men (Jake?) Miller and (Wash?)
Crumley, started the plant which was located across from the present site of the Ashe Street
Courthouse. In April of 1884, five men, Thomas E. Matson, H.H. Carr, J.C. Hardon, W.J. Johnston
and Columbus Powell secured a charter of corporation from the state of Tennessee. Matson became
the president of the corporation which was capitalized at $20,000...”%

11 October 1883. Jonesborough Herald and Tribune.

“Johnson City’s Progress. Enterprise. A correspondent writing from Cranberry to the
Lenoir, (N.C.) Topic, thus speaks of Johnson City:

‘At Johnson City, a town 32 miles over the border in Tennessee at the Junction of the East
Tenn., Va. & Ga., and E.T. & W.N.C. railroad, it is thought large manufacturing enterprise will be
started. An extensive tannery and stove factory are already up and it is the general opinion that the
Cranberry company will establish machine shops for working up much of their pig iron. Johnson
City has a future before it.” R.

Mr. R. is somewhat mistaken as to the stove factory being up, but it is an assured fact that
one will be erected in a short time, as the grounds have been bought for that purpose. As for the
Cranberry machine shop being located here, we are informed that the required amount of land has
already been purchased upon which machine shops, rolling mills, &c., will be erected at no distant
day. The tannery company will probably be ready for operation in about six weeks, the work being
pushed rapidly. Johnson City’s Future is a bright one, she is bound to be a manufacturing city as
all admit.”

15 March 1884. Johnson City Comet.
“J.W. Crumley Esq, is doing a splendid business. The ladies love Wash because he
provides them with stoves and tin ware.”
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15 March 1884. Johnson City Comet.

“Col. Matson superintendent of the E.T. & W.N.C. R.R., has bought Crumley & Millers
foundry with the view of converting it into a large stove and hollow-ware Manufactory. He will
begin operations about the first of April.”

T Establstea 1876,
- J. W. CRUMLEY

Koeeps in Stoek all kinds of

Stoves, Tin, Sheet Iron and Toilet Ware.

NEW EMERALD & SOUTHERN GIRL Cook Stoves, a Specialty.

we(: ALEO AGENT FOR :)oene

SHEET IRON ROOFING, OBOLISK STONE FACED CANVASS ROOFING
Apply for prices before you cover your house, Samples always on haad,

TIN ROOFING and GUTTERING, a Specialty.

Call on, or address,

J W.CRUMLEY,

JOHNSON CITY, TENN.

Figure 10. Johnson City Comet, 29 March 1884.

12 April 1884. Johnson City Comet.
“The Johnson City Foundry and Machine Co. has been recently organized with Col. C.
Powell president. Johnson City to the front, forward March!”

19 April 1884. Johnson City Comet.

“Engine No. 1., the Watauga, of the Narrow Gauge Railroad, has been overhauled and
repainted. The work was done in the Machine shop at this place. Mr. Ed. Tally did the painting
and the engine now looks as bright and fresh as when new.”

3 May 1884. Clarksville Weekly Chronicle.
“Incorporated in Johnson City. The Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works. Capital
stock about $30,000.”
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6 September 1884. Johnson City Comet.

“Machine Shop and Foundry. — Preparations are making to build a machine shop and
foundry. The company have already given out the orders for lumber, windows, doors, &c. All
kinds of machinery will be repaired and manufactured. This foundry will be a very valuable edition
[addition] to the town...”

20 September 1884. Johnson City Comet.

“Work has begun upon the Machine Shop and Foundry. Tell it if you please in Gath and
whisper it on the streets of Askelon, that Johnson City is on a boom. It gives promise of being the
largest town in this part of the State.”

4 October 1884. Johnson City Comet.

“Machine Shop and Foundry. S.H. Banner has the contract for building the machine shop
and foundry. The front on Cherry street is 175 feet, on the railroad 175 feet. The width on east end,
104 feet 4 inches, on west end 61 ’t 6 in. These apartments are to be in the building, engine room,
foundry and machine shop. The machine shop will be 30 f’t high, two stories, with truss roofing.
Fifteen hands will be employed in prosecuting the work. This machine shop and foundry will be
quite an advantage to the city in furnishing employment to laborers and in bringing money here.”

18 October 1884. Johnson City Comet.
“The Foundry and Machine shop is building rapidly.”

20 December 1884. Johnson City Comet.

“The Foundry and Machine Shop covers over one-third of an acre, and one-half of the
building is two stories. Eighty tons of slating will be used in covering it. It is perhaps the largest
Foundry and Machine Shop between Baltimore and St. Louis.”

10 January 1885. Johnson City Comet.

“The painters are at work on the Foundry and Machine Shop... The Machine Shop and
Foundry will be covered with tin instead of slate as was stated in The Comet some time ago. The
company hope to have all the machinery here, and be ready to work by the first of March.”

17 January 1885. Johnson City Comet.

“Six walnut logs, averaging nearly 4 feet in diameter and 10 feet in length, and weighing
29,000 pounds, were brought down Tuesday on the Narrow Gauge from Blevin’s Station. The logs
were all cut from one tree. The car on which they were hauled was made at the Narrow Gauge
Machine Shop in Johnson City.”
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14 March 1885. Johnson City Comet.

“The Machine Shop & Foundry — Col. Matson informs us that the machinery for the
Machine Shop and Foundry has been ordered and that it will be in operation in a short time. The
weather has interfered somewhat with the arrangements and the company have not been able to
commence work as early as was intended. When in full operation it will afford constant
employment to about thirty men. The enterprise will be another strong force in the upbuilding of
our city.”

28 March 1885. Johnson City Comet.
“Col. T.E. Matson left yesterday for Philadelphia to purchase Machinery for the Machine
Shop and Foundry.”

4 April 1885. Johnson City Comet.
“A car load of machinery for the Machine Shop and Foundry arrived this week.”

11 April 1885. Johnson City Comet.

“Col. T.A. Matson returned from Philadelphia, Tuesday. He purchased all the necessary
machinery for the Machine Shop and Foundry. The company hope to commence operations in a
few weeks.”

6 June 1885. Johnson City Comet.

“The Johnson City Foundry and Machine Shop will soon be ready for business. The large
sixty horsepower engine has been placed in position by foreman [Samuel] Simcox, and works like
a charm. When the foundry gets in full blast a large number of hands will be employed.”

16 July 1885. Johnson City Comet.

“New Factory. — Mr. D.T. Nevin, of Pittsburgh Pa., has arrived in the city for the purpose
of establishing a carriage rim and fellow factory. He has leased the second story of the Foundry
and Machine Work’s building and will remain in our midst until his machinery arrives and is in
operation. This is the kind of man it takes to build up a town, and Johnson City is always ready to
do all in its power to help such men when we are satisfied they mean business.”

30 July 1885. Johnson City Comet.

“Elizabethton Mountaineer... Col. C. Powell, a leading citizen of Knoxville, was in the
city Saturday and Sunday. In connection with Col. T.E. Matson, he is now engaged in erecting a
very large manufacturing establishment at Johnson City. These gentlemen are doing much to aid
in building up Johnson City, and the citizens of that rapidly growing little city cannot feel too
grateful towards them.”
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30 July 1885. Johnson City Comet.

“D.T. Nevin, who has been busy for the past two weeks placing machinery for bending
wood work in the Foundry and Machine Shop, is a general representative of T.H. Nevin & Co.,
manufactures of Pioneer Prepared Paints, Pittsburgh, Pa., Mr. N. will sell the products of the
Foundry Co., in the Northern and Eastern markets and expects to find a ready sale. He has now
secured orders for several car loads, Mr. Nevin is a high toned gentleman and has made many
friends in Johnson City and we hope he will soon locate permanently with us.”

30 July 1885. Johnson City Comet.

“Col. Charlton in the Knoxville Tribune. Your correspondent left this city on the morning
of the 17" inst... My route, of course was via Johnson City, where I took the narrow-gauge road
leading to Cranberry...

Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works. Here is one the legitimate fruits of this road
[E.T. & W.N.C.], and never would have been heard of but for it. It is a completely organized
enterprise and starts out upon a career of success and prosperity. Thos. E. Matson is president; J.C.
Hardin, secretary and treasurer, and Sam. Simcox manager. Simcox is a Knoxville man and for a
long time was connected with the machine shops of the E.T., Va. & Ga. Railroad. He is a live man
all over. No better man could have been put in charge of these shops. The proprietors contemplate
manufacturing castings, &c. The building is 100 x 175 feet, two stories high and metal roof. It is
immediately on the broad and narrow gauge roads and is thoroughly equipped with the latest
improved machinery.

Mr. D.T. Nevin, late of Shippenburg, Pa., is putting machinery in the second story of the
building to manufacture bent wood work, such as felloes and the like.”

3 September 1885. Johnson City Comet.

“Mr. S. Simcox, manager of the Johnson City Foundry and Machine Shop, fired up the
engine Tuesday and gave the machinery a trial. The machinery is all new and of the latest improved
patterns, is as bright as a new pin and works like a charm. They will be ready in a few days to do
any kind of work.”

17 September 1885. Johnson City Comet.

“Machine Shops. — The machine works of the Johnson City Foundry and Machine Shops
are now in operation. The machinery is all bright and new and of the most approved kind, and is
run by a magnificent sixty horsepower engine. The company is now ready to do all kinds of
machine work.”

15 October 1885. Johnson City Comet.

“Mr. D.T. Nevin, of Pittsburg, Pa., has returned and commenced the manufacture of all
kinds of bent wood work. The company are using the 2" floor of the Foundry and Machine Co.’s
building for their factory.”
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29 October 1885. Johnson City Comet.

“Foundry and Machine Shops. — The Johnson City Foundry and Machine Shops will soon
be finished. The large iron furnace is being lined with fire-proof brick, and when that is done the
company will be ready to go to moulding. The machine department is already completed. The
machinery with which it is equipped is of the latest and most approved patterns and cost thousands
of dollars. As soon as the company commences moulding, we will give our readers a detailed
description of the buildings, machinery, &c., &c.”

10 December 1885. Johnson City Comet.

“Engine No. 2 that was damaged in the wreck near Elk Park a few days ago, is being
overhauled by Mr. Sam Simcox, in the new machine shop.” The author has not located any account
of this accident.

10 December 1885. Johnson City Comet.

“Mr. D.T. Nevin returned yesterday from a very successful business trip to Nashville,
Chattanooga, Atlanta and other Southern cities in the interest of T.H. Nevin & Co., of Pittsburgh,
Pa., manufacturers of the justly celebrated Pioneer Prepared Paint. He also succeeded in placing a
large stock of bent wood work on the Southern market for the Johnson City Wood Bending Works.
This company is how operating on a large scale and have already shipped several car loads of rims.
Mr. Nevins is the manager and will leave for the New England States in a few days in the interest
of the company.”

11 March 1886. Johnson City Comet.

“Mr. W. [Will] N. DeGroate has moved from Knoxville to Johnson City and will take
charge of the moulding department of the Foundry and Machine Shops. Mr. DeGroate comes
highly recommended as a good citizen and we welcome him to our town...

The Johnson City Foundry will be ready in a few days for a blast. The large iron furnace
has been lined with fire-proof brick, coke and sand has been procured and everything is about
ready. Mr. DeGroate the foreman of the foundry department thinks they will be ready for a blast
within the next week. Cranberry pig iron, the best in the country for moulding purposes, will be
used.”

25 March 1886. Johnson City Comet.

“The Johnson City Foundry and Machine Shops are now in full operation. The first blast
was made last Saturday, and the new furnace works like a charm. The company is now doing some
splendid work. Engine No. 2 of the Narrow Gauge road has been recently overhauled and repainted
and is about as good as new. The Rogersville & Jefferson road have an engine here waiting to be
overhauled, and as soon as it is finished another will be sent on. Mr. Sam Simcox, the foreman, is
one of the finest mechanics to be found anywhere. Mr. Henderson is also a very fine workman.
Mr. [W.N.] DeGroate, in charge of the moulding department thoroughly understands his business,
as does Mr. Wilson, the pattern maker. The foundry and shops are now under the personal
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supervision of Col. Matson, who has the push and vim to make it one of the leading enterprises in
East Tennessee.”

8 April 1886. Johnson City Comet.

“For sale. One 30 Horse-power engine, boiler and Saw-mill with pulleys, belting and all
necessary Fixtures complete.

One 20 Horse-power engine, boiler and connections all in good order.

Address, Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works.”

15 April 1886. Johnson City Comet.

“A Southern Industry. — The Johnson City Foundry and Machine Shops. Mr. C. Shelburne,
of Richmond, Va., is the owner and patentee of valuable improvements on Gas Engines, and is
now at the Foundry and Machine shops, in this city, having working drawings made for New York
and Cincinnati Companies who are to take hold of, and build these engines.

Mr. S. wishes his friends to know that the shops here are fitted up in the best style and are
prepared to assist inventors with all kinds of experimental work. In fact, the Johnson City Foundry
and Machine shops is an enterprise in every respect worthy of the South, and our growing section
of country:

1%, Because the buildings are large, ample and well suited to a growing trade and country;

2d. Because the machinery is of the newest, best and most approved patterns;

3d. Because the officers and foremen are men of character and standing;

4™ Because the workmen are courteous, gentlemanly, and experienced.

There is a growing demand for just such enterprises in the South, to develop her
inexhaustible resources, and we are glad to see the eastern portion of this state opening up under
such favorable circumstances. There is a vein of courtesy, gentlemanly-bearing and intelligence
running through our manufacturing establishments here not usually found in the South, especially
those employing foreign labor. We have yet to hear the first oath and the first vulgar ‘yarn’ from
the Johnson City Foundry and Machine Shops.”

13 May 1886. Johnson City Comet.
“Mr. V. Doriot, of Bristol, was in the city this week negotiating with the Johnson City
Foundry and Machine Company to build his brick machines.”

9 December 1886. Johnson City Comet.

“Considerable damage was done to property in the city by the heavy snow fall Monday...
the roof of the foundry department of the Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works is the largest
between Roanoke, and Knoxville, being a 100 foot span and 125 feet long, and it only settled from
Y to %, of an inch. The people will not be surprised at this when it is known that Col. T.E. Matson
was the architect.”
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3 February 1887. Johnson City Comet.

“The Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works. The manufacturing enterprise to which
The Comet now refers was first established as an individual enterprise but about one year ago its
control passed to a joint stock company, whose nominal capital is $20,000 although the amount
actually in use is $35,000 or more. The President of the Company is Col. T.E. Matson; Mr. J.C.
Hardin is Secretary and Treasurer; Samuel Simcox is in charge of the Machine shop and Mr.
[W.N.] DeGroate of the foundry. Several Knoxville gentlemen are stockholders in the Company,
among whom we name Messrs. C. Powell, R.M. Rhea and Col. E.C. Reeves. The management of
the enterprise rests with the President and Sec. and Treas., and these gentlemen have been
unflagging in their efforts to build up a manufacturing interest here of more than ordinary
importance. They and the other stockholders are pleased with the results thus far secured, and they
have a right to look forward hopefully to the future. Material additions have been made to the
working facilities of the shops during the past year, and they are now well prepared to execute any
order that may be entrusted to them. The specialties of the works are the manufacture of car and
bridge castings, and recently a contract has been made with another railroad to supply it with bridge
castings, for 100 miles of that road. Another important department of the business comes from the
narrow gauge road for repairs of all kinds, and the ‘Bristol’ road has given the works a large
amount of business in the way of castings. So far as the facilities enjoyed by the Johnson City
Foundry and Machine Works for filling orders for these specialties are concerned we need only
say that the Company has expended a large sum in enlarging the buildings, in adding to patterns
and increasing the working efficiency of machinery. Not only that but an exceptionally effective
body of workmen are employed in the shops. The managers of departments thoroughly
comprehend their business, and this last contract shows how important a factor these works will
prove in the development of our city.

In this connection we avail ourself of the opportunity to make brief personal allusions to
Col. Matson, the President of the Company. He is a native of Baltimore — was educated at Dayton,
Armstrong Co., Pa., and at Pittsburg, and in 1868 he entered upon the profession of civil
engineering, (beginning ‘way down the ladder,) as a rodman in the employ of the B. & O. railway.
We need not follow in detail the stages of his promotion in engineer service. After quitting the
employ of the B. & O. he became assistant engineer in the construction of the 2d Avenue Elevated
road, New York, subsequently he was with the New York City and Northern as division engineer;
after that he was locating and division engineer on the Pittsburg Lake Erie R’y; next he became
Chief Engineer of the road from here to Cranberry mines — the E.T. & W.N.C.R.R., and here he
especially demonstrated the highest order of engineering ability. He also, for some time was
Superintendent as well as Chief Engineer of it. Other work that he had been engaged in we need
not mention, except that in April last he was appointed Chief Engineer of the C.C. & C. road, and
he is now actively discharging his duties in that capacity. Personally Col. Matson is a very
unassuming man, but a decided worker. He is as warm a friend as Johnson City possibly could
have, and no man here is held in higher esteem.

Of Mr. Hardin we speak elsewhere in connection with the narrow gauge (of which he is
agent at this point) and of the Johnson City Real Estate Company.”

10 February 1887. Johnson City Comet.
“Reorganized. — At a meeting of the stockholders of the Johnson City Foundry and
Machine Works last week Col. E.C. Reeves was elected President, and Mr. C.K. McCallum
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Secretary and Treasurer. Mr. McCallum is a new addition to the firm, and besides being a great
financial help, his sound business views and extensive experience in all branches of business will
add largely to the profitableness of the company. He has been the general manager of the Scottish
Land and Timber company for some time, and although still interested in the firm, has retired from
the management. He will move his family from Knoxville to this place this week and take charge
of the works at once. Mr. McCallum is an Englishman, and is a very pleasant gentleman,
personally, and his family will be heartily welcomed into Johnson City society.”
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JOHENSON CLTY
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We have the larg e.at works in Tennesses,
all the latest improved machinery,
and are prepar ed to furnish

Mill Gearing of every description, Cirenlar Saw Mills and
il unls of Uastings,
Saw Mills and Carriages, Fre nlq and Grates of all sizes,
Hill Plows and Plow Castings * Wheolg, Cane \l.llg,
Railroad Castings.
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Hollow-ware tho finest and best in the South,
All our castings are made of the celebrated Cranberry iron, and all work is
guaranteed
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Gearing, Pulleys, and Chilled and Soft Castings of all kinds. Bolts
sizes made to order.  We also repair and build

l.ocormotives and Engines

of all kinds, and accurately indicate their condition, und do a general Foun-
dry and Machine Shop business,

, of all

Orders for repairs will receive prompt attention.  All kinds of work con-
tracted for.  Write ud before placing your orders,

A1l business commaunications to be addressed to

. K MeCarivw, Gen, Manager,
Johneon City, Tenn.

TR AT L A L

Figure 11. Johnson City Comet, 10 March 1887.
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10 March 1887. Johnson City Comet.

“The Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works shipped ten dump cars to the S.A. &
O.R.R. yesterday... Mr. S. Simcox, superintendent of the Johnson City Foundry and Machine
Works, left for Cincinnati last Monday to buy new machinery... The Johnson City Foundry and
Machine Works will put in a large steam hammer and other new machinery at once. They are
prepared to do all kinds of machine work and will contract for all work in their line. See
advertisement in this issue.”

19 May 1887. Johnson City Comet.

“The Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works are putting in new machinery. Another
large lathe will arrive this week... Mr. John W. Boring has been elected Secretary and Treasurer
of the Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works, vice C.K. McCallum resigned... The Johnson
City Foundry and Machine Works will ship castings for a turntable to Bristol for the S.A. & O.R.R.
this week and have just received an order for a second one, 2400 bolts and four more dump cars.
Altogether this Works have done more than two thousand dollars worth of work for this road.”

2 June 1887. Johnson City Comet.

“Messrs. N.G. Fair, M.T. Devault, and Dr. Sullins have formed a company to manufacture
a machine patented by Mr. Fair. Mr. Fair is in the city superintending the construction of one of
the machines at the Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works. The machine is a ‘universal tin
cutter’ and is designed to take the place of the square, circular, hand and stock shears, edge turner
and will practically do away with the dies, saving $800, to the tinner by the combinations. The
machines will probably be manufactured here.”

30 June 1887. Johnson City Comet.

“Engine No. 3, belonging to the Tennessee & Ohio R.R., that was overhauled in the
Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works some time ago, was taken down to Rogersville last
week. S. Simcox, Master Mechanic went down with it to see that every thing worked right.”

28 July 1887. Johnson City Comet.

“Two car loads of machinery and three car loads of patterns belonging to Gen. J.T. Wilder,
that had been used in his foundry and machine shop in Chattanooga arrived in Johnson City
Monday. The machinery will be placed in position in the Johnson City Foundry and Machine
Works and the patterns packed away for safe keeping.”

18 August 1887. Johnson City Comet.
“The Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works shipped the castings for the second turn
table to the S.A. & O.R.R. at Bristol last Monday.”

27 October 1887. Johnson City Comet.

“The Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works have received an order for fifty-two
thousand pounds of bridge castings for the C., C. & C. railroad.”
10 November 1887. Johnson City Comet.
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“The E.T. & W.N.C. railroad are having five new bridges framed in Johnson City for their
road. The first bridge timbers were shipped yesterday for bridge No. 7 just above the gorge. The
work is in charge of that veteran bridge builder, Geo. W. Lindamood, and is of course being put
up right. The Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works are furnishing the castings.”

12 January 1888. Johnson City Comet.

“The Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works are crowded with work. They are at work
on a large lot of bridge castings for the C.C. & C. railroad and an order for car wheels from Pulaski
City, Va...

Mr. Charlie Harvey, who has been running the engine at the Johnson City Foundry and
Machine Works, has accepted a position with the E.T. & W.N.C. R.R. Co. and will run engine No.
2. Warren Lilly takes his place at the machine shop. A better engineer than Charlie Harvey never
pulled a throttle.”

1 March 1888. Johnson City Comet.
“The Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works will pay one cent per pound for large
clean cotton rags.”

19 April 1888. Johnson City Comet.

“Foundries. There are two foundries, the Johnson City Foundry and Machine Company
being the largest. It employs an average of about fifty hands, and under the careful and enterprising
management of Messrs. [Samuel] Simcox, [John W.] Boring and [Colonel E.C.] Reeves
proprietors and Hodge and [W.N.] DeGroate as foremen, it has built up a large business throughout
this section of the country. Miller Bros.’ establishment is smaller, but they are good business men,
and their place is a credit to the city. Jacob McNees and Alf Hyder do some iron work.”

14 June 1888. Johnson City Comet.

“New Factory. Yesterday application for charter was made by ‘The Knoxville
Improvement Street Car’ Company. The charter members are H.K. Sams... It is understood that
the company has been organized to make an improved street car. The first named gentleman has
patented a street car, a car which has a motor power of a peculiar character, This car is said to be
so constructed that no horses are needed. The Company will also manufacture any and all kinds of
street cars, it is said... — Knoxville Tribune 7 inst.

Mr. H.K. Sams, the inventor of the above mentioned pattern street car power, is an old
resident of Johnson City and was in the city last Monday. He is the inventor of a road engine that
has a wonderful power and had one here at the Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works. This
street car that he is now at work on works on the same principle and when the car that the company
has completed was tried the other day it worked like a charm. By this peculiar power a street car
may be easily propelled at the rate of 10 miles an hour when loaded by one man. The people of
this section will be glad to know that Mr. Sams’ efforts are at last to be crowned with success. This
power will revolutionize the street car business and we know of no one better qualified to take the
lead in this matter than Mr. Sams.”3! It appears that this enterprise was unsuccessful.
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14 March 1889. Johnson City Comet.
“The new 50-horse power engine for the electric light company has arrived and been placed
in position at the Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works.”

21 March 1889. Johnson City Comet.
“The E.T. & W.N.C. R.R. Co. have just completed a carpenter shop near the Foundry and
Machine Works.” See Map 2B.

21 March 1889. Johnson City Comet.

“The Electric Light Co. moved their dynamo from Evans’ factory to the Foundry and
Machine Works last Tuesday night. The transfer begun at 12 o’clock midnight and completed
before daylight.”

25 April 1889. Johnson City Comet.

“The Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works have the contract for building fifteen of
Rife’s patent hydraulic rams for Mr. Hoover, of Roanoke, Va. One of the rams is on exhibition in
Love’s grove, opposite the Piedmont house.” The author was not able to identify any patents
associated with the available information.

29 August 1889. Johnson City Comet.

“Engine No. 2 on the Narrow Gauge road is in the Johnson City Foundry and Machine
Works being converted into a cold [coal] burner and otherwise overhauled. We note this
improvement with pleasure.”

12 December 1889. Johnson City Comet.
“The Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works have a contract for several tons of castings
for the bridges on the Three C’s.”

27 February 1890. Johnson City Comet.

“Will Stay at Home. The order for the casting and iron work for the new hotel and office
building for the Carnegie Land Company, has been given to the Johnson City Foundry and
Machine Works. The order is a large one and Chattanooga and Knoxville companies had bids in
but Johnson City never gets left. The company here does as good work and does it cheaper than
any company in the State. It is not out of place to state here that there are only one or two larger
and better equipped shops in the State than the Johnson City Foundry and machine works.”

6 March 1890. Johnson City Comet.

“She’s Booming. — That’s What’s the Matter with Johnson City. It is a Healthy, Substantial
Boom and No Mushroom Business About it. — The Knoxville Sentinel representative finds
something to say about Johnson City. — Johnson City, Tenn., February 26... The Johnson City
foundry and machine shops employ 50 men and turns out all kinds of work from a locomotive
down to the most common piece of machinery...”
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 JOHNSON CITY

Foundry and Machine Works

Do a General Basiness in their line,

—

includiog

--BRASS CASTINGS--

Also, Stesm, Gag, and Plumbing Fix

| tures of Every Description,

Figure 12. Johnson City Comet, 10 December 1891.

21 January 1892. Johnson City Comet.

“... The Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works are now prepared to do all kinds of
Plumbing Work and guarantee it. They are here to stay. Not for a month or two only. Call at the
office and get estimate on your work.”
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25 February 1892. Johnson City Comet.

“A Big Casting. The Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works yesterday moulded the
largest casting that they have moulded since they have been in existence. It was a large trough for
the Embreeville Iron Furnace, and weighed more than 8,000 pounds...”

3 August 1893. Johnson City Comet.

“The Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works are only working 8 hours per day — from
6 to 3. This was done in preference to cutting down the force.”

R, M. RHEA, President, @G. W. BITTON, General Manage.. Bv lnw?; l. M.

JOHNSON CITY FOUNDRY and MACHINE WORKS.

ALL KINDS OF REPAIR WORK.
Manufactuzre ;

Brass and Iron Castings, Gear and Wa.ter«
Wheels, Chilled Wheels, Mining and
Tram Cars, Branding Hammers,
Patterns, Models, Ete. @

)| We keep in stock Brass and Iron P1pa1"ito
tings, Cain Mills, Irons, Kettles, COBRE
Ours is the only factory in this section that
is prepared to do all kinds of heavy work:*; )

Figure 13. Johnson City Comet, 30 November 1893.

1893. East Tennessee: Historical and Biographical.
“Mr. Thomas E. Matson... is also president of the Johnson City Furniture Company, which
has a capital of $20,000 and employs twenty-eight men, making a medium grade of hard-wood
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furniture. He is also president of the Johnson City Brick-Works, which represents a capital of
$15,000. This enterprise has a capacity of 25,000 bricks per day...”%?

7 June 1894. Johnson City Comet.

“Pierce & Myler have been repairing the roof on the foundry this week. It was wrecked
and a portion blown off during the heavy storm some time ago.” The author did not find any other
information on this storm damage.

2 August 1894. Johnson City Comet.
“Men are at work making a stair way up the outside of the Foundry to give outside entrance
to the chair factory of G.R. Hurlburt which will occupy a part of the second story.”

20 September 1894. Johnson City Comet.

“Trustee’s Sale of the Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works. — Virtue of a deed in
trust executed to me on the 17" day of September 1894, by the board of directors of the Johnson
City Foundry and Machine Works, and registered in the register’s office of Washington county,
Tenn., on September 18™, 1894, which action the board of directors was authorized by the
stockholders of the Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works in meeting assembled on the 17%
day of September, 1894, I, G.W. Sitton, trustee, in pursuance of the requirements of said board of
directors, as set forth in said trust deed, will, on Friday, the 12! day of October, 1894, at the hour
of eleven o’clock a.m., on the premises of the said Foundry and Machine Works, expose for sale,
to the highest bidder, the plant of the Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works, which include
the real estate, with the building thereon; the machinery, tools, patterns and good will; also three
town lots, being lots Nos. 20, 21 and 30 block [?] No. 3, in Jobe’s addition, (sometimes called the
J.A. Martin addition) to Johnson City, Tennessee, each lot fronting fifty feet on Poplar street.

Terms of Sale. The sale will be made on six and twelve month’s time in bar of the equity
redemption, and the purchaser will be required to give interest bearing negotiable notes, secured
by solvent personal security, with ten per cent. attorney’s fee clause added; and as a further security
will be required to give mortgage, or trust deed, on the premises, with power of sale within thirty
days if default be made in payment; and, also, must agree that, if default be made on the payment
of the first note, the second note will fall due on such default being made. Possession will be given
to purchaser on the day of sale. G.W. Sitton, Trustee.”

25 October 1894. Johnson City Comet.

“A New Enterprise. — Watauga Chair and Wood Turning Works. — A Valuable Acquisition
to Johnson City as a Manufacturing Industry. — We enjoyed the pleasure of a visit to the above
establishment last Monday evening. The Watauga Chair and Wood Turning Works are run and
operated by C.R. Hurlbut as proprietor. Mr. Hurlbut is the father of G.R. Hurlbut, well and
favorably known to the public, and has lately come among us to enjoy not alone our salubrious
and healthful climate, but to avail himself of one of the many advantages which this section of the
country affords as a manufacturing center, and he has bent his energies in this direction with
sleeves rolled up and his frame encased in a stout suit of overalls, having a practical knowledge of
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the business and being a worker himself from away back, notwithstanding he has withstood the
touch of time for seventy winters and summers. He was busy manipulating the machinery here and
there, and consequently had no time to spare, but his courteous son, George, accommodatingly
helped us with the modus operandi of the whole thing.

We were shown the Self-centering and Self-Releasing Lathe, which is a unique and all-
sufficient piece of machinery, made and built for speed as well as substantial work, and is run by
the power of the ponderous engine on the first floor of the foundry. This machine will make 500
chair legs per hour, or 4,500 per day, at nine hours to the day, provided the turner has sufficient
power of endurance to stand at the machine and attend to it for that length of time. As we say, its
capacity is 4,500 per day, if a hand can attend to it, but it is an ordinary day’s work to turn out
from 3,000 to 3,500 of these chair legs. The rounds for 5,000 chairs, Mr. Hurlbut informs us, have
been turned in one day in this establishment. This is marvelous, and shows that this firm is at work,
and in dead earnest at that. Think of it — 35,000 chair rounds in one day! and it takes that number
to furnish 5,000 chairs, allowing seven rounds to the chair, which is about the average number.

The same machine is intended to turn broom handles on also, and it is an easy job to make
1,500 to 2,000 per day on it. Mr. Hurlbut says it is the only lathe used for this latter purpose this
side of Michigan. These works are prepared to furnish any amount of broom handles on short
notice, within the capacity of the machine, of course.

The different woods out of which these chair legs and rounds are made are oak, beach,
maple and ash — oak being the most generally used, and the woods adjacent to the city are being
daily besieged by the axe and saw in the hands of numbers of men who are busy getting out material
for this hustling firm.

They have out stock now for 5,000 chairs, the seats of which are to be made of cane, wood,
etc., and the firm also has an order for one car load of chair stock which will be shipped in a short
while.

We were then shown the other machinery of the works, which was all arranged in apple
pie order and in first class running condition, everything evidencing the fact that no novice was at
the helm, but a practical and thoroughly experienced chair builder. Such as one is Mr. C.R. Hurlbut,
and despite his age, he is nimbler by far than many men twenty years his junior.

In connection with this enterprise it would not be a bad business to establish a toothpick
manufactory by way of utilizing the remnants that are left from the material used in making chairs,
as it is worked down to splinters and hardly fit for any other purpose.

This busy, bustling, go-ahead establishment has its quarters on the upper floor of the
Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works building, and it will pay you to make their place a visit
and see business carried on intelligently and in a way that foreshadows success.”*

1 November 1894. Johnson City Comet.

“Another Enterprise — To Be Started up and Operated by S.W. Wilson. An incline railroad
about fifty yards long has been commenced at the foundry for the transportation of material from
the yard and cars to the upper story of the building, where Mr. S.W. Wilson will soon have in
active operation an insulator pin factory.

The wood work of the railroad has been about completed, which is in the neighborhood of
twenty-five feet high where it enters to the building.

The rails will soon be put on the bed of the incline, and then operations will begin, when
we will try to give the public an insight into its workings and purposes by a detailed account. In
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the meantime, gentlemen, hurry up your work — the public will strain their eyesight to see
something of it very soon.””*

4 July 1895. Johnson City Comet.

“Retrospective and Prospective. Too many of our people, with voices pitched unpleasantly
high, never fail when an opportunity presents itself to give Johnson City a black eye, which makes
her future look decidedly uninviting to strangers visiting the city with a view of locating... It is
true, along with other enterprising towns and cities, Johnson City has suffered wonderfully from
the effects of the great depression in business which has swept over the country for the past four
years... The Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works is a large concern employing a number of
skilled workmen and common laborers...”

21 November 1895. Johnson City Comet.
“Help Wanted. To put in chair seats. Apply to the Watauga Chair Works, G.R. Hurlbut,
agent.”

6 February 1896. Johnson City Comet.

“Business Changes. R.G. Johnson, who has been in the furniture business at his place for
the past five or six years, has sold his stock of furniture to Bristol parties, and in the future will
devote his entire time and attention to the manufacturing of insulator pins and the grinding of feed
and chop, he having purchased the feed and chop mill of G.C. Harris.

Mr. Johnson will move his insulator pin factory, which is now situated near the Foundry
and Machine Works plant, to his feed and chop mill, on Jobe street.” See maps 3B, 11 and 12.

26 March 1896. Johnson City Comet.

“It Remains. J. Allen Smith, one of the owners of the Johnson City Foundry and Machine
Works, has been in the city several days negotiating with Bristol parties to move the works to that
place. But the city was saved this humiliation by G.W. Sitton and T.J. Golloway who leased it for
one year. The contract closed Tuesday, and they will take charge on the first day of April.”

16 July 1896. Johnson City Comet.

“Back Taxes Sales... A parcel of land situated just south of the Southern railway in Johnson
City, known as the Johnson City Foundry and Machine works, bounded on the south by Cherry
street, assessed to Johnson City Foundry and Machine works, and owned by R M Rhea and J.
Allen Smith.”

15 October 1896. Johnson City Comet.

“A New Cannon. No matter how the election goes this city is bound to hear some big
booming. Geo. Simcox, Jas. Hodges and Mack Oliver, the boy mechanics at the Johnson City
Foundry and Machine Works, have, ‘between meals,” constructed a handsome cannon for
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celebrating purposes. They have named it ‘Billy,” and as part of the makers belong to one party
and part to the other, they have agreed that the remaining part of the name shall be added after the
election. If Bryan wins the gun will be called ‘Billy Bryan,” and if McKinley passes under the wire
first it will be called ‘Bill McKinley.’

The cannon is a splendid piece of workmanship and will belch forth the exultations of the
victorious party after the election. It is made of fine Bessmer steel and weighs, unmounted, 136
pounds. The entire weight, carriage and all, is 268 pounds. The gun is 4% feet long and has 1%
bore. It is handsomely mounted on cast wheels 18 inches in diameter, made in the shop by the
boys. It is a creditable job and will be a noisy acquisition to the jubilant party in this campaign.”

11 March 1897. Johnson City Comet.

“Big Flood. The heavy rain Tuesday night put old Brush Creek on the war path and it came
near flooding the town. In the first place, the railroad tressell [trestle] at P.Q. Miller’s became
somewhat clog[g]ed and turned the water on the southeast side of the track. It come down into the
foundry doing considerable damage to the moulding department. It was the highest ever known in
that building. The creek itself had been higher a few times before, but it never got into the foundry
to such depth before... The new channel seemed to be unable to carry off the water because the
railroad bridge at the electric light plant [on North Roan Street] would not take it away fast
enough...”

6 May 1897. Johnson City Comet.

“Dissolution Notice. The partnership of Sitton & Galloway, lessees of the Johnson City
Foundry & Machine Company, is dissolved. T.J. Galloway having sold his interest to G.W. Sitton
and retires. The business will be continued by G.W. Sitton. Johnson City, Tenn., May 5, 1897.
G.W. Sitton, T.J. Galloway.”

2 December 1897. Johnson City Comet.

“Cob Pipes to be Manufactured in Johnson City. F.B. St. John is putting in the necessary
machinery at the Foundry and Machine Works to manufacture cob pipes on a large scale. It is Mr.
St. John’s intention to put a first class article on the market and one that will attract the smoker’s
attention and require very little of his money. The pipes will be finished complete in the plant and
put on the market ready for use. The plant will employ ten or fifteen men at fair wages and give
the farmers a home market for their corn cobs, an article that has heretofore gone to waste.”

17 February 1898. Johnson City Comet.
“Johnson City — The Future Manufacturing Center of East Tennessee... Johnson City
Foundry and Machine Works, working from 25 to 30 machinists and labors...”

17 February 1898. Johnson City Comet.
“Gump & Mathes, wholesale produce dealers of this city, are prepared now to furnish
merchants in this city and neighboring towns all their meal and feed stuff, as they have just
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completed a mill for that purpose, which is now in operation at the Foundry and Machine Works.
The mill has a capacity of 100 bushels per day.”

10 March 1898. Johnson City Comet.

“Another New Factory. F.B. St. John began the operation of his cob pipe factory
Wednesday of this week. C.W. Buel, of Washington, Mo., who is an expert pipe maker will be
superintendent of this plant. To begin with Mr. Buel will employ twelve men and boys, adding
others as fast as the business demands. The output will be twenty-five hundred pipes per day. The
farmers now can find ready sale for all the cobs they will bring to town.”

5 May 1898. Johnson City Comet.

“New Factory. E.F. Smith, superintendent of the Uptegrove Veneer factory, of this city,
and a Mr. Spencer, of New York, have leased forty by sixty feet of ground space in the moulding
department of the Foundry and Machine shop, and will begin at once to put in machinery for the
purpose of doing veneer work. The plant will be known as the Johnson City Veneer Factory, and
is an enterprise which Johnson City should be proud of. These gentlemen make a strong company
financially and are thoroughly practical along that line. They propose to do a class of work that
will not be equaled by any veneer mill in the country.” This operation is addressed separately,
below, beginning on page 71.]

18 August 1898. Johnson City Comet.

“Wholesale Grocery House. Johnson City is to have an exclusive wholesale grocery store
again. Gump & Mathes, produce dealers and millers’ agents, have decided to go into the wholesale
grocery business, and are now putting in a complete stock. They will continue to represent the
Bristol City Mills, and will also continue the manufacture of corn meal at their own plant in this
city. As they will do an exclusively wholesale business, they will have the trade of the city to a
large extent. The members of the firm need no introduction to our people. They are old reliable
business men in an increased business.”

9 March 1899. Johnson City Comet.

“Andy Leonard, the boiler maker at the Foundry and Machine Works, who recently fell
from a boiler at the planing mill of J.C. Stone & Co., is still confined to his room. He has recovered
from the effects of the fall, but is now suffering with acute arterial rheumatism...

Fingers Cut Off. E.B. McKeehan received a painful injury at the Foundry and Machine
Works yesterday. While working with a pony planer he had the ends of three fingers of his left
hand cut off above the first joint.”

13 July 1899. Johnson City Comet.

“New Machinery. Wm. E. Uptegrove & Bro. are constantly increasing their plant in this
city. It has only been a few months since they put in a 100 horse power boiler and they are now
arranging to put in another of 150 horse power capacity. They are also having a large slicer built
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at the Johnson City Foundry & Machine Works. C.E. Osborne is now busy putting in the concrete
foundations for this new machinery.”

14 September 1899. Johnson City Comet.
“An emery wheel bursted at the city Foundry and Machine Works yesterday. D.J. Hobbs
was struck in the face with fragments and badly injured.”

13 December 1900. Johnson City Comet.

“A Branch at Bristol. The Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works will probably operate
a branch plant at Bristol. The Bristol Foundry & Machine Co. was recently destroyed by a fire and
that town is now without such an institution. G.W. Sitton, the manager of the local company, says
he has the matter of a branch at Bristol under advisement and may put it in. He is one of the best
machinists in the state and the Foundry & Machine Works has done better under his management
than at any time in its history. If he decides to put in a branch at Bristol it will be up-to-date in
every particular.”

25 July 1901. Johnson City Comet.

“Will Make Ice. After this season there will be no trouble over the ice problem. The
Foundry and Machine company will solve it by putting in an ice machine with sufficient capacity
to supply the town. The plant will be installed at once. That portion of the foundry now occupied
by the Johnson City Veneer Mills will be used. The veneer plant will move to the north [actually
south] side of the Southern track into buildings to be erected. The Southern will put in a spur track
on the north side for the accommodation of the veneer plant.”

3 October 1901. Johnson City Comet.

“Ice Plant Assured. The Johnson City Foundry and Machine Co. has closed a contract for
a 30-ton refrigerating plant. The plant is modern and complete and is to be installed at once. The
town has long needed a first-class ice plant to take care of the local trade, and the foundry has
decided wisely to supply the demand. Room will be made in the foundry for the ice plant by
moving the Johnson City Veneer Co. to another building to be erected.”

5 December 1901. Johnson City Comet.
“The Johnson City Foundry and Machine shop has been painted a Bill Johnson red and is
very much improved in appearance.”
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Gear and Segment Wheels, Turbine Water
Wheels, Machinery, Cane Mills,
Brass and lron Castings.
We are equipped for heavy and difficult repair work, and bnild un( kind of
AL

speeial machinery to order, We keep in stock all kinds of Va
and Steem Fittings, Piping, Oil, ete.

Plumbing a Specialty.

We have added a plumbing department, in charge of com-
petent mechanics, and carry in stock a general line
of suaplies. Prices always as low as con-
‘ sistent with firsg class work,

Figure 14. Johnson City Comet, 10 April 1902.

1 May 1902. Johnson City Comet.

“Johnson City Ice Plant. Johnson City’s new ice plant just erected at the Johnson City
Foundry and Machine Co. is about ready to begin making ice. The machinery has about all been
installed and this week will find everything in shape to start the plant. The capacity is sufficient to
supply a city of 25,000 inhabitants.”

15 May 1902. Johnson City Comet.

“Charters Granted. The Home Ice & Coal Co., of Washington county, has been granted a
charter with $2,000 capital stock. The incorporators are, William J. Exum, G.W. Sitton, B.J. Sitton,
Chas. S. Brown and S.C. Williams.

The Johnson City Foundry & Machine Works has been granted a charter with $25,000
capital stock. The incorporators are, G.W. Sitton, R.M. Rhea, J. Allen Smith, T.J. Reed, B.J. Sitton.
— Nashville Banner.”
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22 May 1902. Johnson City Comet.

“Making Ice. The Home Ice & Coal Co. has put its ice plant in operation and is now making
as good a quality of ice as was ever used in this city. The plant is located at the Foundry and
Machine Co., and is equipped with the very latest and best machinery for making ice from distilled
water. The plant has a capacity of eighteen tons a day, but it is not making that much now. It
requires 48 hours to freeze one of the 200 pound blocks, and it is so scheduled that four blocks are
drawn every ten hours.

Charlie N. Brown has charge of the plant as secretary. The stockholders are all home men
and all ice dealers in the city are handling the product of the plant. This is entirely proper and The
Comet hopes that the demand may be so great for the ice that the plant will have to be increased
before another season.” See Map 4E.

29 May 1902. The Iron Age.

“The Johnson City Foundry & Machine Company, Johnson City, Tenn., manufacturers of
brass and iron castings and turbine wheels, have been incorporated as the Johnson City Foundry
& Machine Works. The new company will continue the business along the same lines, but on a
more extensive scale. The incorporators are J. Allen Smith, R.M. Rhea and Thomas J. Peed of

Knoxville and George W. and B.J. Sitton of Kansas City. George W. Sitton and Thomas J. Peed
9935

will be managers.
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Are you using home ice for all purposes? i

It's as pure as filtered water can make it, and clear
as crystal,  Sold by Webb and Remine.
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Figure 15. Johnson City Comet, 7 August 1902.
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29 January 1903. Johnson City Comet.

“Getting in Shape. The Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works has orders for building
a number of tramcars for the Caney River Lumber Company, of which J.M. Buck of this city is
president. It is the company’s intention to build and operate a steam tramway into its immense
timber district near the North Carolina state line. An engine and two cars are now here and will be
shipped to Yancey county, N.C., to be put in operation at an early date.”
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Map 4E. A detail of the Home Ice and Coal Factory, April 1903.

14 May 1903. Johnson City Comet.

“George W. Blevins, a boilermaker at the Johnson City Foundry and Machine Company’s
works, had his right hand badly smashed Thursday morning by a line shaft, six inches in diameter,
falling upon it. While nursing the injured member he is retired on half pay.”
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16 July 1903. Johnson City Comet.

“Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works. The Johnson City Foundry and Machine
Works, organized in 1884, has the distinction of being the second established industry in Johnson
City and has been closely identified with its present growth and perpetuity. At this great foundry
wood-working machinery, water wheels, brass and iron castings and forgings are manufactured,
and general repair work is done. The abundance of raw material within easy access, and an
unlimited fuel supply makes Johnson City an unsurpassed manufacturing location, and the Johnson
City Foundry and Machine Co. were among the first manufacturers to observe and reap advantage
from this fact. The great plant which they erected covers an era [area] of over 2 acres. Seventy-
five men are given steady employment, and the pay-roll which represents $550.00 per week, is
considered most liberal. The company are daily in receipt of large contracts from every part of the
south, and the plant is in continual operation. The officers are as follows: J. Allen Smith, president;
G.W. Sitton vice-president and general manager; W.B. Johnson, secretary and treasurer; B.J.
Sitton, master mechanic. All are local men, and to their united and individual efforts, a great
measure of the city’s progress and success is due.”

Figure 16. “Vertical Single-Acting Machine” “Steam Driven”.%®
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15 January 1904. The Tradesman.

“Mr. Chas. H. Behre, the southern sales manager of the York Mfg. Co., one of the most
prominent ice and machine builders in the United States has had a phenomenal record in the south.
Oming in this territory about five years ago, where the York machines had not been before
represented, he has done a business second to no other concern. Among the many plants sold may
be cited the following... Home Ice Co., Johnson City, Tenn., 15-ton plant...”*’

Table 1. Refrigeration Equipment for the Home Ice & Coal Company

. . Tons | Tons

Name Location Business Key lce | Refrig.
Home Ice & Coal Co. (1% Order) Johnson City Ice & Fuel B 10 20
Home Ice & Coal Co. (2" Order) Johnson City Ice & Fuel B 15 35

“B. Vertical Single Acting Simple Engine.”%

21 July 1904. Johnson City Comet.

“Putting in a Motor. The Johnson City Foundry and Machine Company has arranged with
the Watauga Electric Company to install a 20-horse power motor and will in future operate the
machine shop with electricity, doing away with the boiler and engine heretofore used. The motor
has been ordered and will be installed at once.”

Home+ICE

- ~

Is pure as can be made and clear
as crystal. Patronize home in-
nustry by ordering through re-
tailers. All orders filled prompt-

ly by o
HOGH WEBB or VI Y. BeIllIE
'"Phone 85 "Phone 8

B — e

Home Ice and Coal Co

Figure 17. Johnson City Comet, 28 July 1904.
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HOME (CE bit!

Manufactured in Johnson City and
sold by all dealers. Out of town or-
ders receive prompt attention .’

H. F WEBB W. W ReMINE

HOME |CE CO. j
SIEIC OIS Ie8Gs

HOME 1CE
IS PURE

Made in JOHNSON CITY

DELIVERED BY

HUGH WEBB W. W. ReMINE
"Phone 85 'Phone 8
Figure 19. Johnson City Comet, 26 July 1906.
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28 February 1907. Johnson City Comet.

“Will Move Plant. The Home Ice Co. is preparing to move its plant to get out of the way
of the S. & W. road. A site has been secured [along the Southern Railway on “Railroad and Water
streets”] just below Gump’s wholesale grocery store [on North Roan Street] and new buildings
will be erected at once.” This new facility will be addressed in a later document.

20 June 1907. Johnson City Comet.

“Through the City. — South & Western Now Building in Corporate Limits. The South &
Western is now building through the corporate limits of Johnson City. Contractors Carpenter &
Boxley have a steam shovel at work on the heavy cut on the Joe Lyle land.

The line leaves the main line north of the Embreville crossing and swings down by the
John F. Lyle store house in front of the main entrance to the Soldier’s Home and crossing the
Jonesboro road hugs the Southern down to the passenger depot and then follows the E.T.W.N.C.
out to the Harris Mfg. Co. and uses the old road south.

General Manager [M.J.] Caples says it will be necessary to use the old road to Erwin for at
least two years as work on the new route just south of this city has been held up by lawsuits over
the right-of-way.

The large brick warehouse at the Standard Oak Veneer Co.’s plant is to be removed to
allow the track to pass that point and manager C.B. Allen has been notified to vacate.

This road will pass through the city on a slightly higher grade than the Narrow Gauge and
the latter will be raised to correspond with the new grade.

This means the tearing away of the [Johnson City] foundry [& Machine Works] and all the
buildings facing on the right-of-way from the big spring on Buffalo to Roan street.”

13 February 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“S.&W. Shops Will be Moved. — Will Come Up Town and Occupy the Johnson City
Foundry and Machine Shop. The S.W. people will not rebuild their temporary shop that burned
two weeks ago in the Carnegie yards, but will move the machinery to the Johnson City Foundry
and Machine Company’s plant about March 1% and occupy that until the permanent shops are
located. The plant up town was recently purchased by the S.&W., but was leased to Mr. G.W.
Sitton, and it being operated by him, but arrangements have been made by which the move is
agreeable. This gives the S.&W. a much more complete machine shop and one that has few equals
in East Tennessee. It seems to be a rational move on their part from a financial standpoint. This
probably means that all trains will soon be running up town, either over the Narrow Gauge third
rail, over their own line, and that the Carnegie yards are to be abandoned.”

31 December 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“The Johnson City Foundry and Machine shops are moving from the shops on Cherry street
which they have occupied for years to their new home [on West Walnut Street] below the Standard
Oak Co., giving way for Carter addition improvements.”
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6 May 1909. Johnson City Comet.

“Big Plants Consolidate — Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works and Bristol Stove
and Foundry Co. Merge. On May 1 the Bristol Stove and Foundry Co. and the Johnson City
Foundry and Machine Works were consolidated and re-incorporated as the Dominion Iron Works.
The general offices of the company will be in Johnson City, and the greater part of the work will
be done here in the new plant now under construction on the line of the C., C. & O. west of the
city. Ultimately the Bristol plant will be abandoned and moved to this city. Considerable new
capital has been interested and $40,000 has been paid in on a capital stock of $50,000.”

Johnson City Veneer Mills, at this location 1898 — 1901
(A Tenant Operating Within the Johnson City Foundry and Machine Works)

14 April 1898. Johnson City Comet.

“New Veneer Mill. Johnson City will have another veneer factory in operation at an early
day. It will be known as the Johnson City veneer mills and will be operated by Messrs. [Edwin F.]
Smith and [A.W.] Spencer, who are now connected with the [William E.] Uptegrove plant of this
city.”

5 May 1898. Johnson City Comet.

“New Factory. E.F. Smith, superintendent of the Uptegrove Veneer factory, of this city,
and a Mr. [A.W.] Spencer, of New York [and also a member of the Uptegrove & Brother
operation], have leased forty by sixty feet of ground space in the moulding department of the
[Johnson City] Foundry and Machine shop, and will begin at once to put in machinery for the
purpose of doing veneer work. The plant will be known as the Johnson City Veneer Factory, and
is an enterprise which Johnson city should be proud of. These gentlemen make a strong company
financially and are thoroughly practical along that line. They propose to do a class of work that
will not be equaled by any veneer mill in the country.”

12 May 1898. Johnson City Comet.

“Industrial Notes... Work on the Johnson City Veneering company’s plant is progressing
rapidly. It will be located in the foundry department of the Johnson City Foundry and Machine
Works, the building having been leased for three years for that purpose. The proprietors of the new
enterprise, Messrs. [Edwin F.] Smith & [A.W.] Spencer [both part of William E. Uptegrove &
Brother], are now in the east purchasing the necessary machinery and supplies.”

17 August 1899. Johnson City Comet.

“New Saw Mill. The Johnson City Veneer Mills continue to expand. The work has
increased so rapidly that it has been found necessary to put in a saw mill near the plant to cut up
logs from which the quartered oak stock is made. The engine and boiler were set last week in the
lot in the rear of the Foundry and Machine Co. and the saw mill is now being placed. This is rapidly
growing into one of the most important industries in the city. Mr. [Edwin F.] Smith, the genial
general manager [and also the manager of the Uptegrove Cigar Box factory], is a man of wonderful
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energy and enterprise, and is a mechanical genius. He is turning out some of the finest quartered
oak that is on the market and finds a ready sale for all the quartered or rotary stock he can cut.”

7 February 1901. Johnson City Comet.

“The Johnson City Veneer Mills. Clifton L. Sitton, of Talledega, Ala., has moved to
Johnson City, and occupied the position as assistant manager of the Johnson City Veneer Mills.
Mr. Sitton is a son of our townsman, B.J. Sitton, superintendent of the Foundry and Machine Co.,
and is well qualified for the place he is to fill. This change does not influence with the shop
management, which will remain in charge of J.F. Johnson. The business of this enterprise has
grown constantly for the last year and it is now one of our leading industries. The plant covers
more than an acre of ground and is filled with machinery of the most approved pattern, dry kilns
and shipping department. The veneers cut are the finest figured quartered oak and find a ready sale
on the best markets. In fact the plant can not begin to keep up with its orders.”

25 July 1901. Johnson City Comet.

“Will Make Ice. After this season there will be no trouble over the ice problem. The
Foundry and Machine company will solve it by putting in an ice machine with sufficient capacity
to supply the town. The plant will be installed at once. That portion of the foundry now occupied
by the Johnson City Veneer Mills will be used. The veneer plant will move to the north side of the
Southern track into buildings being erected. The Southern will put in a spur track on the north side
for the accommodation of the veneer plant.” Note, the Johnson City Veneer mills appear to have
remained on the south side of the track, see “A Draft Documentary History of Industries along the
Railroads through Johnson City, Part 1...”
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3. The Businesses on the West Side of Buffalo Street, Between Ash and Jobe Streets,
1891 — Present.
(Maps and Figures)

Businesses on the Northwest Corner of Buffalo and Cherry Streets

“W.E. Uptegrove & Bro Lumber Yard,” by 1903
“W.M. Ritter Lumber Yard,” 1903 — 1905

Carolina, Clinchfield and Ohio Railway Depot Building, 1909 — Present
Carolina, Clinchfield and Ohio Railway Depot, 1909 — 1985
Abandoned, 1985 — 2012
Commercial Use and Visitor Center, 2012 — Present

Businesses on the Southwest Corner of Buffalo and Cherry Streets

“K.P. Jones & Co. Lumber Yard,” at this location, 1902? — 1909?

Summers — Parrott Hardware Company Building, 1909 — Present
Summers — Parrott Hardware Company, at this location 1909 — 19167

Summers Hardware Company, 19167 — 1936
Summers Hardware and Supply Company, 1936 — present
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Map 10A. A composite map of the area between Jobe and Ash streets, along Buffalo Street in January 1891.%
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Map 11A. A composite map of the area between Jobe and Ash streets, along Buffalo Street in May 1897.4
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Map 12A. A composite map of the businesses between Jobe and Ash streets, along Buffalo Street in April 1903.4
Note the “W.E. Uptegrove & Bro Lumber Yard” on the northwest corner of Buffalo and Cherry streets and the
“K.P. Jones & Co.” lumber yard on the southwest corner of Buffalo and Cherry streets.
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Map 13A. A composite map of the area between Jobe and Ash streets, along Buffalo Street in December 1908.4?
Note that “Brading & Marshall” have occupied the building of “The City Stable Livery” and that the “Big Spring”
is gone. Perhaps also of interest, note the continued presence of the “K.P. Jones & Co Lumber Yard” on the
northeast and southwest corners of Buffalo and Cherry streets. The Johnson City Comet appears to indicate that
Brading & Marshall had entirely succeeded K.P. Jones & Company in 1904 and the author did not locate any
“K.P. Jones & Co” advertisements in the Johnson City Comet after 1904.
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Map 14A. A composite map of the businesses along Buffalo Street, between Jobe and Ash streets, in July 1913.43
Note that the Clinchfield depot has been built on the land formerly occupied by the “W.E. Uptegrove & Bro
Lumber Yard” on the northwest corner of Buffalo and Cherry streets, and the Summers — Parrott Hardware
Company has constructed its building on the land previously occupied by a “K.P. Jones & Co” lumber yard, as
well as that of a private dwelling. Also note that the “office” of “K.P. Jones & Co” is the only building that
remains of their facilities at the northeast corner of Buffalo and Cherry streets. Apparently, this building was used
by the Clinchfield as a temporary ticket office in 1908. Apparently the other facilities of “K.P. Jones & Co”, as
well as the livery, had been demolished as a result of the construction of the Clinchfield mainline through Johnson
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Map 15A. A composite map of the businesses along Buffalo Street, between Jobe and Ash streets, in February
1920.** Note that the temporary ticket office of the Clinchfield (previously the office of “K.P. Jones & Co.”,
which was east across Buffalo Street from the Clinchfield depot) has been removed.
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3. The Businesses on the West Side of Buffalo Street, Between Ash and Jobe Streets,
1891 — Present.

3.1. Businesses on the Northwest Corner of Buffalo and Cherry Streets

3.1.1. “W.E. Uptegrove & Bro Lumber Yard,” by 1903
“W.M. Ritter Lumber Yard,” 1903 — 1905

3.1.2. Carolina, Clinchfield and Ohio Railway Depot Building, 1909 — Present
Carolina, Clinchfield and Ohio Railway Depot, 1909 — 1985
Abandoned, 1985 — 2012
Commercial Use and Visitor Center, 2012 — Present

3.2. Businesses on the Southwest Corner of Buffalo and Cherry Streets
3.2.1 “K.P. Jones & Co. Lumber Yard,” at this location, 1902? — 19097?
3.2.2. Summers — Parrott Hardware Company Building, 1909 — Present
Summers — Parrott Hardware Company, at this location 1909 — 19167

Summers Hardware Company, 19167 — 1936
Summers Hardware and Supply Company, 1936 — present
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3.1. Businesses on the Northwest Corner of Buffalo and Cherry Streets

3.1.1. W.M. Ritter Lumber Yard, 1903 — 1905?
W.E. Uptegrove & Brother Lumber Yard, c. 1903

These facilities were served by dual-gauge trackage, c. 1903.
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Map 4F. This detail shows the relationship between the lumber yards of W.M. Ritter and W.E. Uptegrove & Brother at Buffalo and
Cherry streets, across the tracks from the E.T. & W.N.C. freight depot and the Southern Railway freight and passenger depot.*®
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3.1.1. W.M. Ritter Lumber Yard, 1903 — 1905?
W.E. Uptegrove & Brother Lumber Yard, c. 1903

W.M. Ritter Lumber Yard, 1903 — 1905?

This facility was located west of the W.E. Uptegrove & Brother lumber yard, on the corner of
Buffalo and Cherry Streets. It was served by dual-gauge trackage, c. 1903.

15 May 1903. The Tradesman.

“The Ritter Lumber Co., of Saginaw, N.C., has established a branch yard and office in
Johnson City, Tenn... The Ritter Lumber Co... will establish a branch mill in Johnson City, Tenn.,
instead of Elizabethton, as first intended.”*® Note, the author has not found any information that
would indicate that this mill was ever actually built in Johnson City.

4 June 1903. Johnson City Comet.

“The Ritter Lumber Company is erecting a large building on the lot opposite the big spring
on Buffalo street. A three rail side track has been run into it and the work of handling lumber will
not be retarded any longer on account of the weather.”

1 July 1903. The Tradesman.
“The Ritter Lumber Co. is erecting a mammoth lumber shed in its yard at Johnson City,
Tenn., and it otherwise preparing to do extensive business.”*’

14 December 1905. Johnson City Comet.

“Lumber Plant Burned. Thursday night about ten o’clock the large assorting warehouse of
the Wm. Ritter Lumber Co. on Buffalo street was destroyed by fire. About 300,000 feet of lumber
was consumed and several box cars belonging to the Southern. The caboose of the Embreville
local standing upon the siding was burned and a chair car of the E.T. & W.N.C. road, housed in a
shed was lost.”

January 1906. Packages.
“Plant of Wm. Ritter Lum. Co., Johnson City, Tenn., burned. Loss $5,000.”*8 It appears
that this facility was never rebuilt.

W.E. Uptegrove & Brother Lumber Yard, c. 1903

This facility was located on the northwest corner of Buffalo and Cherry Streets.
It was served by dual-gauge trackage, c. 1903.

The author has not found any additional information on this facility.
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3.1.2. Carolina, Clinchfield and Ohio Railway Depot Building, 1909 — Present
(Maps and Figures)

Carolina, Clinchfield and Ohio Railway Depot, 1909 — 1985
Abandoned, 1985 — 2012
Commercial Use and Visitor Center, 2012 — Present

This building is located on the northwest corner of Cherry and Buffalo streets.
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the Love — Thomas building, in July 1913. The Clinchfield depot and platform were constructed on land previously occupied by lumber yards belonging
to W.M. Ritter and W.E. Uptegrove & Brother, see Map 4F.
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Map 6C. A detail of the C.C.&O. Freight Depot in July 1913.
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Figure 20. An aerial view of the Clinchfield depot, near the center of this photograph, on 19 April 1941.° Note the Post Office and the Love — Thomas
building along the bottom of this photograph. Also note the E.T. & W.N.C. depot and the Summers Hardware & Supply Company to the left and right
of the Clinchfield depot, respectively, along with the light-colored Free Service Tire Company building in the top left.
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Figure 20A. A detail of the Clinchfield depot (bottom center) and the E.T. & W.N.C. depot (top center).
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Figure 21. A view of the Clinchfield depot, behind and left of the Summers Hardware & Supply Company on 1 March 1947. Also note the E.T. &
W.N.C. depot, surrounded by tractor trailers, behind the Clinchfield depot, with a Plymouth/Desoto dealership on the other side of the Southern Railway

tracks. The light-colored building near the top center of this photograph is occupied by the Free Service Tire Company, and the structure to its right is
the Harr building.®
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Fiure 22. A modern photograph of the Clinchfield depot, from Cherry Street looking northeast toward Buffalo Street.>! Note the former E.T. & W.N.C.
depot in the left background.

92



.

of

Figure 23. modern photograph of the Clinchfield depot, looking north across Cherry Street.>?
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Figure 24. “CC&O Depot. The depot located at 300 Buffalo Street and now restored as the Tupelo Honey Café, was bullt in 1908 with two sections:

a two-story passenger station and a one-story freight house/depot. The depot was used as a passenger station until 1955 and as a yard office until the

1970s. Listed in the National Register of Historic Places in 2008, it is the only intact depot of the three railroads in town. (Frank Tannewitz Jr.
collection.)”3
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Figure 25. The Clinchfield Depot, with the Summers Hardware & Supply Company building to the left. This photograph was dated July 1974 and looks
southwest across Buffalo Street.>* Note the Clinchfield diesel switch engine, between the buildings.
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Figure 26. “Clinchfield Depot” in 1974, looking southwest across Buffalo Street.>
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Figure 27. June 1989 — CC&O Depot in Johnson City. Historian Chris Ford captioned this photograph: “This is the old Clinchfield Depot and offices
in downtown Johnson City. The ET&WNC Depot is directly across the tracks and the street to the right. Looks like part of this building is being used
as a lamp storage place. The freight storage sections were in pretty bad shape, especially the roof. In the 20 years since this photo was taken the building
has gone through several owners, some attempted restorations, and lately has been acquired I think by a development foundation in Johnson City with
the intent to restore and re-purpose the historic landmark. Hope they do.”5®
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' Figure 28. “C.C. & O. Depot.”

98



Figure 29. The Clinchfield depot, looking south across Buffalo Street.*®
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Figure 30. This photograph shows the C.C. & O. depot, with the Summers Hardware Company building behind
it on the left side. The Love — Thomas office building is on the right side of this photograph. This view looks
south along Buffalo Street, with the E.T. & W.N.C. depot just out of the photograph to the right. Also, note the
trolley tracks along Buffalo Street.%® This photograph appears to date to between 1916 and 1931, as the Summers
— Parrott Hardware Company changed its name to Summers Hardware Company in 1916 (or 1917) and the trolley
tracks were reportedly removed by 1931. Also notice the sign for the “New York Restaurant” on the Harr building,
on the left behind the utility pole. An article by Cliff Ward and John Waite included a caption for this photograph
with: “The ET&WNC depot is out of sight, just to the right of the 1920s era automobiles. ..”%°
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Figure 30A. A detail of the C.C. & O.”Railway Depot and the Summers Hardware Company.
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Flgure 31 “Engine #8 at Johnson City, TN”.5! Note the Clinchfield depot and Summers Hardware in the left background as weII as Andy Kern by the
pilot of the locomotive.
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Flgure 32. ThIS photograph, Iooklng southwest shows the trolley tracks on Buffalo Street and dual- -gauge trackage with the Clinchfield platform in
the background.®? Note the Love — Thomas office building in the middle background of this photograph. Also note that this photograph appears to date
to between 1920 and 1931. The curved platform of the Clinchfield depot was added after February 1920 (see Map 8D) and the trolley tracks were

reportedly removed in 1931.
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Figure 33. “Southbound [Clinchfield passenger] train 38 with Class G-2 locomotive 100 at Johnson City, Tn. Some locomotives fans said the class G-
2 was ‘quaint’. Others said it was ‘plain ugly’. Circa 1930.” Another source dates this photograph to 2 February 1935. “H.W. Painter/G.W. Best —
Floyd Bruner Collection”.%® This train appears to be at the Clinchfield depot. Engine #100, a Baldwin 4-6-0 Ten-Wheeler, was built in December 1908,
with an empty weight of 82 tons. Based on the available photographs, it appears that the Clinchfield employed their Ten-Wheelers in passenger service.
This engine was retired on 1 September 1938 and scrapped.
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Figure 34. “Clinchfield Railway No. 150” at the curved Clinchfield depot platform.®* Notice the E.T. & W.N.C. freight depot in the left background.
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JONSON CI'TY

Figure 35. Clinchfield Engine #151 “Clinchfield Railway Platform”.%® Historian Johnny Graybeal captioned this photograph: “A northbound passenger
train has stopped at the CC&O depot in the late Thirties. By this point, only one passenger train ran each way per day on the Clinchfield. The Clinchfield
tracks through Johnson City were in a gradual curve, and even the covered platform had a curve built into it. Courtesy Alan Bridwell, Johnson City
Economic Development Board.”®® Note the tall building in the left background, which was built for the Unaka & City National Bank in 1921 that
became the Hamilton National Bank on 30 September 1932. Also note that the structure to the right of the railroad crossing signal to the right of the
canopy above the platform appears to be the safety tower on Buffalo Street.
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Figure 36. A modern photograph of the Clinchfield depot, looking southeast, in 2007. Note the Summers Hardware & Supply company in the right
background.®’
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3.1.2. Carolina, Clinchfield and Ohio Railway Depot Building, 1909 — Present

South & Western Railway (impact on downtown), 1905 — 1908
Carolina, Clinchfield and Ohio Railway Depot, 1909 — 1985
Abandoned, 1985 — 2012
Commercial Use and Visitor Center, 2012 — Present

The Clinchfield Depot building is located on the northwest corner of Cherry and Buffalo streets.

South and Western Railway Company (impact on downtown), 1905 — 1908

15 June 1905. Johnson City Comet.

“The South & Western has just made a new survey through Johnson City. They come into
this city west of the union depot through the Miller lands, cross the Southern near the Soldiers’
Home, on Harry Lyle’s property and go out to Holston avenue and down through Carnegie.”

7 February 1907. Johnson City Comet.

“Will Come Up Town. Beginning at once the S. & W. will run passenger trains up town
over the tracks of the E.T. & W.N.C. R.R. Trains will be backed in from the S. & W. crossing each
morning and will come up town first of evenings. This will be a great accommodation to the
traveling public and will be much appreciated.”

20 June 1907. Johnson City Comet.

“Through the City. — South & Western Now Building in Corporate Limits. The South &
Western is now being built through the corporate limits of Johnson City. Contractors Carpenter &
Boxley have a steam shovel at work on the heavy cut on the Joe Lyle land.

The line leaves the main line north of the Embreville crossing and swings down by the
John F. Lyle store house in front of the main entrance to the Soldier’s Home and crossing the
Jonesboro road hugs the Southern down to the passenger depot and then follows the E.T.W.N.C.
out to the Harris Mfg. Co. and uses the old road south.

General Manager [M.J.] Caples says it will be necessary to use the old road to Erwin for at
least two years as work on the new route just south of this city has been held up by lawsuits over
the right-of-way.

The large brick warehouse at the Standard Oak Veneer Co.’s plant is to be removed to
allow the track to pass that point and manager C.B. Allen has been notified to vacate.

This road will pass through the city on a slightly higher grade than the Narrow Gauge and
the latter will be raised to correspond with the new grade.

This means the tearing away of the foundry and all the buildings facing the right-of-way
from the big spring on Buffalo street to Roan street.”
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6 February 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“Railroad Shops Destroyed — Sunday Morning Blaze Hits the South & Western Hard. Fire
destroyed between ten and eleven thousand dollars worth of property for the South & Western
Railroad.

General Manager [M.J.] Caples wires Train Master [Mel H.] Weiler from New York to put
a force of men to work rebuilding the shop on the old site immediately.

Sunday morning about 2 o’clock fire broke out in the South and Western machine shop,
destroying the shop, one passenger coach, besides doing slight damage to one locomotive and shop
machinery. With the thermometer close to zero, a few of the fire laddies braved the cold and fought
fire to keep from freezing. Mel H. Weiler, train master; E.J. Vandergrift, master carpenter; H.L.
Hobbs, master mechanic, and Lynch Thompson, conductor, were quickly on the scene, shifting
cars and saving the rolling stock of the road, and by their timely assistance and presence of mind
is due to a great extent the slight loss the road sustained. Mr. Vandergrift had two fingers frozen
and Mr. Weiler injured his leg that was broken a short time back.

The higher officials can congratulate themselves that while absent from the city their
interests were in the hands of faithful employees of the operating department who performed
valuable assistance in protecting the railroad’s property at the cost of much physical suffering to
themselves.

If Carnegie or the higher officials of the South and Western have a medal laying around
loose, we move it be awarded to the fire laddies and the above mentioned gentlemen, for they were
walking icicles and worked like ‘Trojans.’

The new shop will contain about one-third more square feet of floor-space, but, like its
predecessor, will be only a temporary affair.”

13 February 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“S.&W. Shops Will be Moved. — Will Come Up Town and Occupy the Johnson City
Foundry and Machine Shop. The S.W. people will not rebuild their temporary shop that burned
two weeks ago in the Carnegie yards, but will move the machinery to the Johnson City Foundry
and Machine Company’s plant about March 1% and occupy that until the permanent shops are
located. The plant up town was recently purchased by the S.&W., but was leased to Mr. G.W.
Sitton, and it being operated by him, but arrangements have been made by which the move is
agreeable. This gives the S.&W. a much more complete machine shop and one that has few equals
in East Tennessee. It seems to be a rational move on their part from a financial standpoint. This
probably means that all trains will soon be running up town, either over the Narrow Gauge third
rail, over their own line, and that the Carnegie yards are to be abandoned.”

Carolina, Clinchfield and Ohio Railway Depot, 1908 — 1983

26 March 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“S. & W. Purchase Approved. — Carolina, Clinchfield and Ohio Railroad Takes Over All
Property of the Tennessee Corporation. A meeting of the stockholders of the Carolina, Clinchfield
and Ohio railway was held... and the purchase of the South & Western railroad, a Tennessee
corporation, by the Carolina, Clinchfield and Ohio, duly approved... The Carolina, Clinchfield
and Ohio railroad, of which George L. Carter is president, will take over all the property now held
by the South and Western railroad, of Tennessee, and the new name, it is understood, will become
effective very soon. The transfer will be a formal one. — Bristol Herald — Courier.”
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21 May 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“Outlook is Favorable. There has been a distinct note of optimism in local business circles
in the past week. Besides encouraging signs of improvement evident throughout the whole country,
the measured activity of the C., C. & O. in pushing its work is promotive of much satisfaction. The
work of that railroad is both in the city and along the line is being pushed. Rush work is in progress
on the temporary shops at Carnegie, work is going on in the west end, and several additional work
trains have been set going. Taken together the outlook is favorable, and it would seem that the long
expected big expansion for Johnson City will soon set in.”

4 June 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“Heavy Rain Storm — Johnson City Visited by Great Flood — Buildings Flooded, Bridges
and Fences Disappear rapidly... The new track of the C.C. & O. above the city had about half the
fills washed out for several hundred yards...”

4 June 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“Temporary Shops of C.C. & O. to be Completed — Trains to Run by September. Work
will be resumed on the C.C. & O. temporary shops at Carnegie at once. The large wheel lathe is in
position, and the building will be roofed over this week and next.

September 1 will probably see the road open for train service to Marion, N.C., and by
November 1%, it is expected that the line will be completed with connection with the Seaboard Air
Line at Bostic, N.C. When this is done, the large increase of rolling stock in use will necessitate
much better shop facilities, and many more shop and repair track employes.

It is semi-officially reported that the road will be in operation north to coal fields by January
1%, In that event it seems probable that new and permanent shops will be begun early in the coming
year...”

23 July 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“Track Being Laid. — The C., C. & O. About to Reach Marion Over its Own Rails. The
track laying is about completed on the C., C. & O. between Johnson City and Marion, N.C., only
about five miles remain to be laid and trains will be operated direct to Marion. This will be
completed in a few days unless there is some unforeseen delay.”

30 July 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“Connection is Made — Steel Ribbons Extend Across Blue Ridge — Johnson City to Marion
— Within Thirty Days Tracks will be in Condition for Regular Traffic. — Yesterday at a point about
25 miles south of Altapass, N.C., the last spike was driven along the dark blue steel ribbons that
extend across the Blue Ridge Mountains from Johnson City to Marion, N.C., and the Carolina,
Clinchfield & Ohio railroad is now a reality. The track was laid by the company’s own forces, but
McArthur Bros. had the contract for grading. As fast as the work train can haul ballast the track
will be put in proper condition for traffic and early in September it is calculated to have trains
operated regularly between this city and Marion. This is the end Johnson City has had in view
since 1889 and there is every reason why our citizens should feel elated, and this is not all. As fast
as human agencies can accomplish it the line is being pushed to the ocean on the south and the
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coal fields on the north and ere long the coal will flow continuously to the Atlantic for points
beyond.”

20 August 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“C., C. & O. News. — Work on New Road Progressing Rapidly Under Present Conditions.
— Trainmaster M.H. Weiler stated to The Comet yesterday that a regular passenger train would be
put on between Johnson City and Marion, N.C., Sept. 1%, leaving here about the same time it now
departs and returning in time to connect with No. 2 on the Southern...

Trainmaster Weiler will put on work trains Sept. 1% laying track on the line through the
city and northward as far as the roadbed is completed...

A number of short bridges have been put in between this city and Boone’s creek, where a
large force of hands are now at work on a steel bridge which spans the creek. It will be eighty-five
feet high and more than 300 feet long. The concrete abutments and piers are finished.”

8 September 1908. The Clinchfield Railroad, The Story of a Trade Route Across the Blue Ridge
Mountains.

“Regular train service was inaugurated between Johnson City and Marion on September 8,
1908, a distance of 98 miles. The lines northward from Johnson City to Dante... were expected to
be opened to traffic by February, 1909...”%8

10 September 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“Trains Now Go Through to Marion. Last Monday the new passenger schedule from
Johnson City to Marion, N.C., on the C., C. & O. was inaugurated. The first train made the round
trip without event and returned just 2 minutes behind schedule.

10 September 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“C., C. & O. Ask Permission to Construct its Lines Across the Streets. There is every
evidence that the C., C. & O. railroad is preparing to build its line through the city. At a meeting
of the city council Monday night Attorney J. Norment Powell, general counsel for the road, asked
the city to grant the road the privilege of crossing all streets and alleys running north and south
between the Sloan land, Oak Veneer mills and the Harris Mfg. Co. He also asked the privilege of
closing certain streets, if ever dedicated as such, and opening others in their stead, and of widening
other streets, and asked the city to assist in this process by purchasing or condemning a ten-foot
strip on one side of Cherry street, by agreeing to give the same amount on the other side, making
the street 50 feet wide. The railroad will swing down through the Joe Lyle farm and parallel the
Southern to the foundry and then parallel the Narrow Gauge to the present operated track at the
junction. Special ordinances were presented to carry out the requests and were passed upon their
first reading. With some modifications and safeguards they will pass in due season and active work
on the construction of the line through the city will begin and all the buildings from the foundry to
the Harris factory will be razed to make way for the main line and side tracks.”
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Figure 37. Johnson City Comet, 15 October 1908.
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24 September 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“Notice to the Traveling Public — On and after Saturday, September 26, 1908, the Carolina,
Clinchfield and Ohio railway will operate its passenger trains from Johnson City, Tenn., over the
tracks of the East Tennessee and Western North Carolina railroad.

Carnegie will be closed as a passenger station, and trains will start from and arrive at depot,
corner of Cherry and Buffalo streets, opposite Southern Ry. depot, on same time they are scheduled
to leave from and arrive at Carnegie.

John A. Muse, Acting General Passenger Agent.”

1 October 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“Rapid Railroad Work. — The C.C. & O. Coming Up Town a Hit with Travelers — Boones
Creek Bridge Delivered. Beginning last Saturday the Carolina, Clinchfield and Ohio railroad has
been running its trains into the city over the E.T. & W.N.C.R.R. Co.’s tracks and it is a great
convenience to the traveling public. The trains arrive and depart from the union station on Buffalo
street. The C., C. & O. is using the little brick building on Cherry and Buffalo streets near the big
spring for a ticket office [see Map 14]. It will be only a short time until the freight depot will be
moved up town also. It is understood that the building now occupied by Stevens Bros. on Spring
street [see “Produce Ho.” in Figure 113] will be used for a temporary depot. That there is
something doing in railroad circles no one can doubt. As soon as the board of aldermen decides to
let the company use Cherry street for its main line it will not be long until the line will be connected
through the city and the buildings between Cherry street and the Narrow Gauge road will be torn
away to make room for the yard tracks. Already occupants of many buildings have been notified
to vacate the property for that purpose.

The track is laid north of Johnson City eight miles to Boones creek bridge and a crew is at
work there erecting the steel superstructure. It is to be a mammoth affair and will require about
three months to complete. About fifteen car loads of the steel sections were delivered this week,
many of the rigid trusses being the largest used on any railroad in the south. By the time the bridge
is completed the track laying crew will probably reach it and connection be made through at that
time.

A work train and a large force of men are at work on the eight miles north of the city
ballasting the track and putting it in good condition.”

8 October 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“Passed Third Reading. — The Board of Aldermen Grant the C., C. & O. Certain Privileges
and Property Rights. The board of aldermen met last night to consider the ordinance granting the
C., C. & O. railroad the right to cross all streets between West street, near the Standard Oak plant,
and Grover street, near the Harris Mfg. Co., and to close Cherry street...”

8 October 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“At Work in the City. — Big Steam Irishman Levelling the Earth for Main Line of C., C. &
O. Through the City. Tuesday morning a No. 60 steam shovel was sidetracked at the intersection
of Roan street and the E.T. & W.N.C. Ry. right of way and just before noon it began dipping the
earth from the front of the old E.C. Reeves property and has since been making rapid progress
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down the line in front of that row of houses toward Spring street and thence to Buffalo street to a
connection with the line built to that point. Only one track will be put down just now and it will be
used as the main line through the city and later as an industrial line reaching factory sites and
wholesale houses. The company is asking permission to use Cherry street for tracks and will use
all of the land lying between Cherry street and the E.T. & W.N.C. road for side tracks and yards.
It looks good to our people who have waited twenty-two years for it to happen, and it will not be
long until the great connecting link from coal to coast will be a reality.”

15 October 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“Work Progressing on Industrial Line. The C., C. & O. line through the city is progressing
rapidly. The steam shovel finished the excavation from Roan street to the big spring Tuesday and
is now working east of Division street. In order to get the road properly located east of Roan street
it was necessary to purchase a strip of land from the Watauga Tannery for the purpose of shifting
the tracks of the E.T. & W.N.C.R.R. 37 feet north and this give the C., C. & O. room to lay its
track directly parallel with it as far out as the present crossing. The entire line through the city is
covered with men and it soon will be completed. Buildings along the route are being torn away
and the giant oaks at the big spring have given way to the woodman’s axe and the spring will soon
be closed to the eye of man and the foot of goose forever. Orders have been issued for the razing
of 31 houses at once that are in the way of the tracks through the city.”

12 November 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“Boone’s Creek Bridge Completed. The mammoth steel bridge on the C.C. & O. at
Boone’s Creek, has been completed, and the track has been laid over it, and track-laying is now
rapidly progressing north towards Kingsport, to which place trains are now running from the north.
As soon as the bridge at that place can be completed the line will be connected, and soon be put in
operation to the coal fields.”

12 November 1908. Johnson City Comet.

2,200 Cars for the C., C. & O. It is announced from New York city that the Pressed Steel
Car Company, of Pittsburg, has been awarded the contract for 2,200 steel gondola cars for the C.,
C. & O. railroad.”

24 December 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“The Carolina, Clinchfield and Ohio railroad finished its line into and through this city and
moved its passenger station from Carnegie to a location near the Southern depot, and before the
years closes passenger trains will be running from Dante, Va., to Bostic, N.C.”

14 January 1909. Johnson City Comet.

“C.C. & O. Building in City. — More Than One Hundred Men are Now Employed —
Constructing the Line on Jobe Street Through the City and Expect to Operate it this Month. — The
building of the C., C. & O. main line through the city, adjoining the tracks of the E.T. & W.N. Ry.,

114



is being rushed to completion. This line of track runs from the ‘Y’ near Exum’s factory, where it
joins the old line, which runs from Carnegie through the city to a point near the Soldiers Home.

More than a hundred men are busy laying crossties and rails, tearing down and moving all
the old frame buildings on Jobe street, rushing it to completion to be in readiness for the through
passenger train service which will be put on by the 20 of this month, which will run from Dante,
Va., to Bostic, N.C. This long demand of and much talked about road is soon to be a reality.

Just think of the opening up of such excellent country lying north and northwest of us by a
trunk line railroad, giving to us a long coveted trade is indeed a favor to be heralded with brass
bands and symbols.

Not long until we can have competition of commodities from the west. Cincinnati and its
tributary districts compete with Baltimore and the east, while the territory for our own jobbing
houses will be doubled and with a proportionate increase in their business.

The developing of the coal mines, the bringing to our doors of cheaper fuel, the opening of
vast new and untouched virgin forests. Timber by the millions of feet, timber in plenty for years
to come — what great opportunities are ours. For the man with money to develop such offerings as
these he become fabulously rich. Such opportunities are rare indeed. The hand of genius has been
laid upon this section, and the whirring, buzzing, throbbing, pulsing trade of commerce will soon
hold high carnival with Alladin and his wonderful treasure.

Already the lines of the E.T. & W.N.C. Ry. are choked with the traffic and the cars of the
C., C. & O. hauling material for building the properties of Mr. Carter. When this section is finished,
the properties of the Unaka Corporation will begin to be developed...”

21 January 1909. Johnson City Comet.

“The old [T.P.A.] livery barn on Cherry street has been torn down to make room for the
tracks of the C., C. & O. This does the march of eternal progress push onward.” See maps 12 and
13.

28 January 1909. Johnson City Comet.

“J.T. Cecil, chairman of the transportation committee of the Commercial Club, and M.I.
Gump, of the committee, secured from the C., C. & O. Ry. Officials a promise to erect at once a
freight depot up town, and work on a temporary building for that purpose will begin on next
Monday morning. The roads to the freight depot in Carnegie have simply been impassile
[impassible? impossible?]. This arrangement will be highly beneficial and greatly appreciated by
the merchants.”

25 March 1909. Johnson City Comet.

“First Train Load of Coal goes South. At four o’clock this morning a 25-car coal train
passed through Johnson City on the C., C. & O. from Dante, Va., to Bostic, N.C. This is the first
solid load of coal that has passed over the new road, but it will be an hourly occurrence henceforth.”
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25 March 1909. Johnson City Comet.

“Will Build Freight Depot — The C., C. & O. Railway has Begun Work on its Big Freight
Depot in the City. The mammoth freight depot for the Carolina, Clinchfield & Ohio Railway in
this city has been staked off and John Pettyjohn & Co. contractors, are at work getting the site in
condition for the foundation. The building is to be forty feet wide on Buffalo street and 200 feet
on Cherry street and will be of brick and concrete with spacious platforms for handling freight
from cars on one side and wagons on the other. It will be modern in all of its equipment and
practically fire proof.” See Map 6C and figures 20 to 36.

25 March 1909. Johnson City Comet.

“Formal Opening of the Clinchfield Road. Official announcement has been made by J.J.
Cameron, traffic manager of the Carolina, Clinchfield and Ohio railway, of the formal opening of
the line for traffic on March 22.

The completed line extends from Dante, Va., to Bostic, N.C., a distance of 211 miles.

Connections are made at Johnson City, Tenn., and Marion, N.C., with the Southern
Railway, and at Bostic, N.C., with the Seaboard Air Line Railway, through which roads its
immense coal tonnage will be distributed throughout the south.

The line is shorter by more than one hundred miles of other existing lines.”

1 April 1909. Johnson City Comet.

“The C., C. & O. Freight Depot — The foundation for the immense freight depot of the C.,
C. & O. railway in this city is being made of concrete and is rapidly going in. The building is not
over the ‘Big Spring,” as commonly supposed, but is on the northwest corner of Buffalo and Cherry
streets, fronting forty feet on Buffalo street and extending 200 feet on Cherry street west toward
the old foundry, being on the land purchased from the E.T. & W.N.C. R.R. and used for years as
a lumber yard [by W.M. Ritter and William E. Uptegrove].”

8 July 1909. Johnson City Comet.

“New Freight Depot now in Service. The handsome and commodious new freight depot of
the C.C. & O. on the corner of Buffalo and Cherry streets is completed and was launched today.
Hereafter all freight will be handled uptown, adding much to the convenience of shippers. It is one
of the largest and most substantial depots in the state and was built to take care of future demands.”

22 July 1909. Johnson City Comet.

“Street Railway Exten. — Electric Cars will Soon be Running Through Southwest Addition.
The Work Progressing — Geo. L. Carter has placed a force of men at work extending the car line
through the Southwest Addition, generally known as the Carter addition to Johnson City. The line
will cross the Narrow Gauge and the C.C. & O. tracks on Buffalo street, turn into Walnut street
and follow that street by the new postoffice building to Southwest avenue, thence following that
avenue to a point beyond the residence of Mr. Carter and nearly opposite the Soldiers’ Home, it
will run north to Third street and returning will loop into Southwest avenue at a point near the
residence of Prof. Utterback.”
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5 August 1909. Johnson City Comet.
“Heavy Coal Train. Wednesday afternoon a train of sixty seven loaded coal cars drawn by
one engine passed through Johnson City over the C., C. & O. from Dante, Va., to points south.”

14 October 1909. Johnson City Comet.

“Train of Eighty-Eight Cars of Coal. A coal train that was a record breaker for length
passed through Johnson City last Thursday over the C.C. & O. enroute from the Virginia coal
fields to points south. The train contained 88 cars of coal and a cab, and was hauled by four heavy
engines, including No. 500, which is double-strength, making the hauling power equal to five large
engines. That is hauling coal.”

18 November 1909. The Johnson City Comet.

“The C.C. & O. is employing a large force of men putting down track between their main
line and Cherry street on Buffalo. The object is to get the crossings put down so that the Johnson
City Traction Company can begin laying tracks to and through the Carter addition.”

27 January 1910. Johnson City Comet.

“Building Tower. The C.C. & O. railway is building a tower at Buffalo street and will
operate gates at the Roan, Spring and Buffalo street crossings from it. This will eliminate the
danger at these streets and is very commendable in the company.” See Map 15 (“Signal Box on
Posts™) and Figure 99.

3 March 1910. The Johnson City Comet.

“Caught with the Goods. J.F. Color, a dago, was arrested Saturday night by Frank Smalling,
night watchman at the C., C. & O. and E.T. & W.N.C. yards while trying to break into a car of
freight. His home was searched and a large amount of stolen property recovered, including 28
sacks of flour, 200 pounds of rice, five sacks of corn, 25 pounds of cheese, a typewriter stolen
from W.B. Houston about a year ago, the laundry taken off the line at Col. H. Gildersleeve’s home
several weeks ago, and many other articles recently stolen from various people. If you have
anything, call and identify your property. The dago is in jail in default of bond.”

11 August 1910. The Johnson City Comet.

“Giant Freight Engines Used by the C., C. & O. The Carolina, Clinchfield and Ohio railway
has placed in service four of its ten mallet articulated compound locomotives. The diameters of
their high and low pressure cylinders are, respectively, 24 and 37 inches; stroke, 32 inches; steam
pressure, 200 pounds; diameter of driving wheels, 57 inches; weight on driving wheels, 330,000
pounds; total weight of engines, 378,000 pounds; weight of engine and tender, 548,000 pounds;
total length of engine and tender 75 feet. One of these engines will pull 85 fifty ton coal cars
loaded.”
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1 September 1910. The Johnson City Comet.

“Largest Engine East of Mississippi. The most powerful railroad locomotive ever before
used in road service east of the Mississippi brought a 4,500 ton coal train from the mines of the
Clinchfield Coal Corporation at Dante, Va., through this city Tuesday over the Carolina,
Clinchfield and Ohio railway. It is one of ten Mallet articulated compound engines recently
received by that road and weighs 190 tons. Taken with the tender the total weight is 270 tons and
the length is eighty feet. These great machines were made necessary in order to cheapen the haul
on the heavy increase of coal output at the Dante mines. The engine was an object of much
curiosity to the usual crowd of curiosity seekers. On its return it brought 100 empty cars for the
mines.”

8 September 1910. Johnson City Comet.

“Wreck on C.C. & O. in City Limits, Yesterday about 4 p.m. a head-on collision occurred
on the C.C. & O. between the switch engine running light and two big mallets pulling 82 coal cars
with a pusher. The wreck occurred almost opposite the Soldiers Home and as a result the two
ponderous 300-ton engines and the little one, the cause of the trouble, are in the ditch, badly
damaged. The track was built around them as fast as possible and at twelve o’clock last night the
passenger trains that were delayed by the disaster were let by.”

2 February 1911. Johnson City Comet.

“Side Track Laid to Normal. The C.C. & O. has laid a side track into the [East Tennessee]
normal [School] grounds and several car loads of supplies have already been received by the
contractors. If the weather permits work will be started on the concrete foundations for the main
building.” The East Tennessee Normal School, after going through a number of name changes,
would become ETSU (East Tennessee State University) in 1963.

6 June 1912. Johnson City Comet.

“New Equipment for C.C. & O. Ry. — Supt. L.H. Phetteplace returned yesterday from a
business trip to Dante, Va., and will leave on his private car Friday morning for New York City,
where he goes on business in connection with the Dante-to-Elkhorn extension of the C., C. & O.
Ry.

In an interview yesterday with a representative of the [Erwin, Tennessee] Magnet, Supt.
Phetteplace gave some very gratifying information. He states that his company now has under
construction at the Baldwin Locomotive Works plant five large Mallet type engines ten of which
type are now in service on the road and are used in the heavy coal traffic. Two new Mikado type
locomotives are also under construction in the shops of the above company. These seven new
engines are being added to the equipment at a cost of $200,000.

Supt. Phetteplace also gave out the information that $10,000 in new machinery will be
installed in the company’s shops at this place [Erwin, Tennessee] at once, orders for same having
already been placed.

Another gratifying statement by Mr. Phetteplace was that the net earnings of the road for
last month were in excess of that of any month in the history of its operation, and he expressed the
belief that when the present month closes it will eclipse even that of last month. — Erwin Magnet.”
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26 November 1914. Johnson City Comet.

“Offices May Move to Carter Building. — The Carter building, formerly occupied by the
Love — Thomas Co., is being remodelled and made into a modern office building. The first and
third floors are being divided into many office rooms. A new vault will be built and a fourth floor
may be added. It is stated upon good authority that the building will be occupied by the C.C. & O.
Railway as a general office building and the office building in Carnegie abandoned.”

15 April 1915. Johnson City Comet.

“Lever Car Collides with an Automobile. — A lever car being operated over the C.C. & O.
railway Friday morning, struck the rea of Dr. Bowman’s automobile as it was crossing the tracks
near the Clinchfield station on Buffalo street. As a result one axle of the auto was broken. Dr.
Bowman was not injured, neither was any of the force on the car.”

19 August 1915. The Johnson City Comet.

“Automobile in Collision with Velocipede — An automobile driven by David B. Clairs, of
this city, collided with a velocipede running on the C.C. & O. railway at the Spring street crossing
Monday afternoon about 1 o’clock.

As a result the auto and velocipede were both damaged the latter suffering the most serious
damages. Mr. Clair claims that he was so close [to the machine that he did not have] on time to
bring his auto to a standstill while velocipede operator states that it was no fault of his that the
accident occurred. The auto, a Ford, was rolled back off the track and went on its way. The vehicle
was in %Qarge of R.S. Jones, wire chief on the C.C. & O. railway. Five other employes were with
him...”

30 March 1916. The Johnson City Comet.

“Big New Engines for C.C. & O. Ry. The Carolina, Clinchfield and Ohio railway has
purchased ten of the most powerful freight pulling locomotives made, and the same are to be
delivered at Dante, Va., at an early date, when they will be put into immediate service. These
locomotives are of the 12-driver compound Mallet type, and it is estimated that each is capable of
pulling 100 cars of coal from the Virginia mines to the Southern terminus of the road. These
engines will greatly facilitate the delivery of coal from the Clinchfield operations.”

In 1916, the Clinchfield purchased ten 2-6-6-2s from the Chicago Great Western and
designated them as Class M-3. However, it is possible that the ten engines mentioned in this article
were actually 2-8-8-2s, see 1 April 1916, below.

1 April 1916. The Clinchfield Railroad, The Story of a Trade Route Across the Blue Ridge
Mountains

“On April 1, 1916, $300,000 five per cent notes were issued, payable in monthly
installments of $12,500 for two years, for the purchase of ten Mallet (2-8-8-2) freight
locomotives...”"
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6 April 1916. The Johnson City Comet.
“The enormous increase in freight on the C.C. & O. R.R. has made it necessary to extend
the local freight sheds; doubling their original capacity.”

26 October 1916. Johnson City Comet.
“The large C.C. & O. depot is filled with all kinds of freight and the depot is rushed in
order to take care of the ever increasing traffic.”

17 August 1916. Johnson City Comet.
“The C., C. & O. boys at the station are kept very busy, as the traffic is growing all the
time.”

18 May 1918. The Johnson City Comet.

“Consolidation of Freight Stations — To complete the plans for consolidating the two freight
stations, the officials of the Southern railway and Carolina, Clinchfield and Ohio railway met here
Monday.

Joe H. Horton was appointed agent of the consolidated stations, with Andrew Davis,
assistant agent. Mr. Horton has for years been agent for the C.C. & O. railway and he supersedes
Mr. Davis by reason of seniority in service, having been an agent for five years longer.

Eugene Pitts was appointed general yard master. It is proposed to use two yard locomotives
with three crews, working the third one at night on the eight hour shift.

Effective June 1%, all inbound and outbound freight will be handled through the one station,
the Southern railway freight depot. The Clinchfield office force will be removed to the Southern
station building and among them will be distributed the work.

All employes will be taken care of either here or elsewhere along the line. At present, it is
evident that all the station clerks and helpers will be used in this city to handle the volume of
business.”

2023. “Looking at the National Register: CC&O Railroad Depot — A center of Preservation in
Johnson City,”

“According to the National Register of Historic Places paperwork... ‘The Johnson City
depot handled passenger, mail, express, and freight. The station was an ‘interchange’ station, so
called because it transferred freight from one rail line to the other. Because of this, the freight
house was (a) veritable beehive of activity. Additionally, the second floor offices of the passenger
station were the main traffic office for the Clinchfield railroad. George Carter had intended to
make Johnson City headquarters for his railroad, and located the railroad general offices and
engineering department just up the street from the depot. Of all three of Johnson City’s stations, it
was this depot that spurred the growth of Johnson City’s commercial development. It handled
much more freight and shipped out more products from Johnson City than either of other two
stations. A letter written in 1946 by Clinchfield general manager, C.D. Moss, stated that
Clinchfield station handled seven times more tobacco out of Johnson City than the other two
railroads combined.’
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The layout and design of the Johnson City as we know it today came on the heels of Carter’s
vision for the town in industry, railroad transportation, real estate and education. Making Johnson
City the center of the Clinchfield Railroad meant that coal and agricultural products from poor
Appalachian towns would be brought through to Johnson City before moving out to the coast, and
other finer items such as clothing material, building materials and essentials like flour and other
cooking mechanisms could then be passed back to these communities, opening the region yet again
after the turn of the 20" century, like the Wagon and Stagecoach roads did previously. Many
believe this area was isolated, yet in many ways, it was the total opposite for decades. The
development of Johnson City as the commercial center of Washington County pulled much from
the town of Jonesborough, which was previously the commercial and political center of the county,
but the town would survive, and Johnson City would boom.

The layout of the depot is composed of two distinct sections. According to the National
Register of Historic Places Paperwork, ‘a two-story passenger station and a one-story freight
house/depot. The passenger station was designed in a somewhat austere manner in which form
visibly follows function, but still was enough detail, such as arched doorways and prominent
pilasters on the outside, and the use of much wood trim in the form of wainscoting, column caps,
and starburst patterned glass transoms on the inside to please the traveling public. The freight depot
was designed more austerely — with form almost totally subjugated to function. Its construction is
typical of standard freight houses of the period, and similar in appearance to the former Louisville
and Nashville freight house in Knoxville. The building retains a majority of its original materials
and has a high level of integrity... The southeast elevation of the building, which consists of cargo
loading docks, faces south to Cherry Street, one of the oldest streets in Johnson City. Cherry Street
was up until several years ago, basically a rail right of way and was only paved in 2001, when a
stretch of CSX track was removed... The northeast fagade of the building facing Buffalo Street
contains what was originally designated as the white ladies’ entrance to the white passenger
waiting room. According to Clinchfield historian James Goforth, this was to protect the women,
often times with young children, from some of the more unsavory characters that might be
encountered on the rail. By the 1920s Buffalo Street had become an important thoroughfare, and
was the single street that connected all three of Johnson City’s trail stations. The northwest fagade
of the building faces State of Franklin Road, a newly created street, which until the 1980s was
entirely a rail right of way with only a narrow dirt road for vehicular access. With the removal of
the railroad track from the south side of Brush Creek, State of Franklin Road was developed as the
major street in Johnson City and courses through the old and new portions of the city. The main
white passenger entrance, the African American passenger entrance to the segregated African
American waiting room, and the entrance to the second floor railroad business offices were located
on the northwest fagade of the station building.’

The building itself showcases the social norms of different periods of the past, from the
segregated African American waiting room to the separate entrances for men and women, as well
as the 1930s-era women’s bathroom that was added much later than the original construction of
the depot. ‘As George Carter did not like to have female employees working for the railroad, one
could conjecture that after Carter left the railroad and females began working in the traffic office,
a second toilet might have been added,” suggests the National Register of Historic Places
paperwork.

According to History of Washington County, Tennessee, 1988, ‘The last passenger train
on the Clinchfield through Washington County was in April 1954... In 1983, the Clinchfield
merged with the Seaboard Coast Line Railroad, a unit of CSX Corporation. The depot on Buffalo
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Street in Johnson City has been used as a yard office since the elimination of passenger service; in
1985, it was closed and the yard office moved into a prefabricated unit along side the tracks off
Mountain View Road.’

The depot remained empty from this point, and the deterioration of its architectural value
continued to allow it to fall into a sorry state of disrepair. An article in the Johnson City Press dated
Aug. 18, 2004, entitled, ‘Train station to soon show signs of life,” begins, ‘After sitting empty for
years and recently being on the verge of demolition, the historic train depot in downtown Johnson
City will soon be open for business. Dorian Jones, who acquired the old CSX train depot in
January, said Larry Proffit with the Tennessee Economic Renewal Network will open (an) office
in the building in the coming weeks. Jones said Proffitt will be working to bring intermodal
transportation services (freight hauling) to Johnson City.

The train station lives, and it’s going to be doing something to try and get an intermodal
facility in Johnson City,” Jones said. ‘I think that’s incredible. For the first time in 50-something
years, the train station will have an active office, and ironically, it has to do with train business.’

The article continues, ‘The depot has been empty for years and was being threatened with
demolition due to the city’s lack of movement in acquiring the facility. On his own initiative, Jones
negotiated a deal with CSX and East Tennessee Railway to take control of the depot and land and
has been working for more than six months repairing, refurbishing and cleaning up the facility.’

An April 15, 2007 Johnson City Press article entitled, ‘Can this Junction Function again?:
Efforts ongoing to preserve city’s Clinchfield Depot,” discusses the full measure of preservation
conducted by Jones. It states, ‘Normally once the roof is gone the building soon follows, and that
was the case over much of the 6,000 square-foot freight sheet. Not only had the roof completely
disappeared in some places, but the rain had rotted the floor. That kind of neglect doesn’t happen
all at once when you realize that the floor boards are three-inch thick hardwood. Nowadays you
cannot find a new building with that sort of lumber in either frame or rafters. Jones discovered
how bad the floor was when he tried using a fork lift to support ceiling beams and it went through
the floor. As with so many aspects of the restoration, a unique method of hoisting was required to
retrieve the forklift... No stranger to downtown restoration, Jones has previously rescued the
Hannah Building, a three-story downtown structure within sight of the depot [see figures 86 and
99]. He spent two years in architecture school while managing a turn-of-the-20"-century hotel in
the late 1960s, and learned a lot about buildings of this era while maintaining it. He next restored
a wood-framed concrete building in Miami, so he’s used to the slow pace of restoration. To date
he’s spent $390,000 of his own money in the depot, including the $40,000 purchase price, and still
can see the sky through the freight shed. Before he could jack up and replace rotted rafters he had
to have a floor that could withstand the weight.’

Jones never finished restoration work, due to a lender obtaining the property after $500,000
was borrowed and never paid back, causing the building to continue its deterioration.

In 2010, Johnson City purchased the property from the lender for $150,000. The building
was then sold to Greg Cox and Joe Baker in 2012 for $5,000, who completed restoration of the
building and eventually leased the large portion of the building to Tupelo Honey Restaurant. Fleet
Feet, a running shoe store, occupied the first floor of the office portion. The City of Johnson City
in 2021 purchased this portion of the building back for the new Johnson City Visitors Center that
opened in June 2022 for $750,000. The same year, three and half years after Tupelo Honey went
out of business, the depot received another restaurant. According to a Kingsport Times News
article entitled, ‘New restaurant opening in former Tupelo Honey spot in Johnson City,” on March
12,2022, ‘According to Washington County property records, the Kalogeros family purchased the
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property for about 1.6 million, and in February, Peerless Properties Development received a
building permit from the city for light interior demolition... Burg’r & Barrel already has a neighbor
in the depot. Last May, Johnson City bought the two-story portion of the building for $750,000,
displacing Fleet Feet to establish a new visitors center on the first floor. The Johnson city
Convention & Visitors Bureau has offices upstairs, and workers are in the process of renovating
the downstairs area. Gary and his wife Nia Kalogeros have donated a miniature train display left
behind after Tupelo Honey’s departure to the George L. Carter Railroad Museum, which depicts
downtown Johnson City during the period when the CC&O train station was in operation.
Berkshire Hathaway commissioned the piece when the building was being restored in 2012.”

Today, both the Burg’r & Barrel and the new Johnson City Visitors Center are open at the
former Carolina, Clinchfield and Ohio Railroad Station and Depot. Take time to visit the center
and grab a bite to eat at this restaurant nearby, and take me with you! Just kidding.”"

1983 — Present. “The Clinchfield ceased to exist as a railroad on 1 January 1983 when the Family
Lines railroads were merged into a single operating company, the Seaboard System, which merged
with the Chessie System to form CSX in 1986.”"2

2003 — 2008. “Carolina, Clinchfield, and Ohio Railroad (Clinchfield)”
“The historic Clinchfield Depot in Johnson City was saved from the wrecking ball in 2003
by Dorian Jones. In 2008, the building was added to the National Register of Historic Places.”"®
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3.2. Businesses on the Southwest Corner of Buffalo and Cherry Streets
(Maps and Figures)

K.P. Jones & Company Lumber Yard, at this location, 1902? — 1909?
Summers — Parrott Hardware Company Building, 1909 — Present
Summers — Parrott Hardware Company, at this location 1909 — 1916?
Summers Hardware Company, 19167 — 1936
Summers Hardware and Supply Company, 1936 — present

The Summers — Parrott Hardware Company (and successors) building was served by a
Clinchfield spur by 1913, until at least 1920.

Note: K.P. Jones & Company will be addressed in the next section of this document.
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Map 4G. A detail of the area where the Clinchfield depot and the Summers — Parrott Hardware Company building would be constructed
in 1909 and 1910, respectively. This map dates to April 1903.
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Map 6D. A detail of the C.C. & O. freight depot and the Summers — Parrott Hardware Company, July 1913. This C.C. & O. Freight Depot was
completed in 1909. This Summers — Parrott Hardware Company building was begun in 1910 and opened for business in 1911. Note the railroad siding
to the Summers — Parrott Hardware Company. The Clinchfield depot and platform were constructed on land previously occupied by lumber yards
belonging to W.M. Ritter and W.E. Uptegrove & Brother. The Summers — Parrott building was constructed on land previously occupied by a lumber
yard belonging to K.P. Jones & Company and a private residence, see Map 12.
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Map 6E. Another detail of the Summers — Parrott Hardware Company, July 1913.
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Map 8F. A detail of the Summers Hardware Company, February 1920.” For a photograph of the interior of the office (top right of the building) from
c. 1935, see Figure 62.

130



Figure 38. An aerial photograph looklng north at the “Summers Hardware & Supply Company, on 1 March 1947 Note the Post Office and E T. &
W.N.C. depot on the left, as well as the Clinchfield Depot, behind Summers Hardware, and the light-colored Free Service Tire Company building.”

Also note the Grocers’ Baking Company (with the Honey Krust Bread signs) across Buffalo Street, to the right of the Summers Hardware & Supply
Company.

131



- N g ™ "
) -
- X & - - -

-

S ' .

Figure 39. A view of the “Summers Hardware & Supply Co.” taken on 1 March 1947.7
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Figure 40. “Shamrock Beverage and Tobacco Shop,” on the northwest corner of Buffalo and West Walnut, dated May 1938. Note the Summers
Hardware & Supply Company in the right background, also note the trolley track in the foreground (which was reportedly removed in 1931).78
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Figure 41. Summers Hardware & Supply Company, looking northwest at the corner of Buffalo (right) and Ash (left) streets.”® Note the Love — homas

building in the left background. Based on the automobiles present, this photograph appears to date to the 1940s or 1950s.
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Figure 42. “tlized drawng of historic Summers — Parrott Hardware Company Building”. Note thé trolly and the corner of the Clinchfield Depot on
the right on Buffalo Street, which indicates that this view looks northwest from the corner of Ash and Buffalo streets.®
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SUMMERS PARROTT HARDWAREK CO, JOHNSONCITY. TENN.

Figure 43. “Summers Parrott Hardware Co. Johnson City, Tenn. Pub by the Bee Hive.”®! Note the trolly on the left side of the image on Buffalo Street,
as well as the two boxcars (on Cherry Street) and the Clinchfield Depot on the right, which indicates that this view is oriented southwest. Also of note,
this illustration shows this building with nine vertical columns of windows facing Buffalo Street, but it was actually built with seven; likewise on the
northside (facing Cherry), this illustration shows four vertical columns of windows, rather than the five it was actually built with, see Figure 44.
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Figure 44. Summers Hardware & Supply Company, loog southwest across Cherry Street from Buffalo Street. “Photographed by Duane and Tracy
Marsteller, October 10, 2020.”82 Note that the first-floor windows facing Buffalo Street have been bricked up. See also Figure 25.

137



Figure 45. A modern photograph of Summers Hardware & Supply Company,
looking southwest across Cherry Street from Buffalo Street.®
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Figure 46. “Clinchfield 101 Johnson City, TN 2 2-35” with a passenger train.8* Note the Summers Hardware buﬂdmg in the background, which
indicates that Engine #101 is near the Clinchfield depot in Johnson City. Engine #101 (Clinchfield Class G-2), a Baldwin 4-6-0 Ten-Wheeler, was
probably built in December 1908 or later, with an empty weight of 82 tons. Based on the available photographs, it appears that the Clinchfield employed
their Ten-Wheelers in passenger service. This engine was retired on 1 September 1938 and scrapped.
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Flgure 47. A modern photograph of the Summers Hardware & Supply Company, Iooklng east across Cherry Street 5
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Figure 48. An aerial view of the Summers Hardware & Supply Co. building dn‘ 19 April 1941.8 Note the Post Office and the Love — Thomas building
along the bottom of this photograph. Also note the Clinchfield and E.T. & W.N.C. depots on the left side, along with the light-colored Free Service

Tire Company building in the top left.
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3.2.1. Summers — Parrott Hardware Company Building, 1909 — Present
Summers — Parrott Hardware Company, at this location 1909 — 1916?
Summers Hardware Company, 19167 — 1936
Summers Hardware and Supply Company, 1936 — present

The Summers — Parrott Hardware Company (and successors) building, at the southwest corner of
Cherry and Buffalo streets, was served by a Clinchfield spur by 1913, until at least 1920.

Note: K.P. Jones & Company will be addressed in the next section of this document.

Summers — Parrott Hardware Company, at this location 1909 — 1916?

1870 — 1900. “Summers Hardware Transformed Through Myriad of Names”

“Summers Hardware and Supply Company has had a long convoluted metamorphosis as it
migrated through several decades, store locations and individuals into the business that is today
located at 400 Buffalo Street.

The origin appears to go back to 1870 when G.C. Seaver came to Johnson City and opened
adry goods store. He later sold it and established a hardware store, which became the second oldest
business in Johnson City. In 1888, Joseph P. Summers, who worked for the C.M. McClung
Company, bought half interest in Seaver’s business and the store became Seavers & Summers.

After January 1893, a third person, James A. Summers, who had been working at the store
as a clerk, formed a partnership with his uncle, Ben D. Lyle and acquired the business, bringing
about another name — Lyle & Summers. Prior to April 1896, J.A. Summers and Harry H. Lyle,
Ben Lyle’s son, owned the store reversing the company designation to Summers & Lyle.

After April 1896, Lyle sold his interest to their uncle William J. Barton. Soon, the company
was relocated when Barton & St. John Hardware combined to form Summers and Barton. After
March 1897, another transformation came into play when John F. Lyle, another uncle, united with
the company to become Summers, Barton & Lyle.

To further add to the myriad of business titles, after February 1900, H.R. Parrott, who had
been traveling with a nearby Bristol firm, arrived in town and bought John Lyle’s interest in the
operation. Also, Joseph P. Summers who had left the city in 1892 returned and joined the company.
The new name was Summers, Barton & Parrott...”®

8 April 1909. Johnson City Comet.

“Will Erect Sky Scraper. The Summers — Parrott Hardware Co. has found it impossible to
conduct its business all over the city in such warehouses as it has been able to secure, and has
decided to erect a building that will accommodate its growing business. A lot has been purchased
from the Unaka Corporation, in front of the Brading & Marshall big shed, fronting 107 feet on
Ashe and Cherry streets, and extending 150 feet along Buffalo street. They will cover this lot with
a five-story modern building, properly equipped for wholesale hardware house.””%®

24 February 1910. Johnson City Comet.
“Brick and other material is being placed on the lot owned by the Summers — Parrott
Hardware Company, for the erection of its big four story wholesale hardware store, corner of
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Buffalo and Cherry street. Work is to begin as soon as the weather opens up, probably by the first
of March. This building will cost $50,000.”

10 March 1910. Johnson City Comet.

“$60,000 for New Hardware Building — The foundation for the new large five-story
wholesale hardware store of the Summer — Parrot Hardware Company, was begun today, and the
work from now on will go forward. This building is just across the street from the new C., C. &
O. depot on the same side of the street, fronting 107 feet on Cherry street and 150 feet on Buffalo.
It will be the largest merchantile building in the city when completed. The cost will be about
$60,000.”

24 March 1910. Johnson City Comet.

“Big Building Contract — Contract Awarded for Big Hardware Store — Secured by a Bristol
Contractor — The Summers — Parrott Hardware Co., has awarded the contract for its new building
to be erected on the corner of Buffalo and Cherry Sts., to J.R. McCrary of Bristol. The contract
price, which includes only the brick and work, amounts to practically $40,000. There will be a
great many extra features, including passenger and freight elevators, that will make the total cost
about $60,000. It will be one of the handsomest and best appointed wholesale hardware houses in
East Tennessee.”

1910 — 1911. “Summers Hardware Transformed Through Myriad of Names”

“After 1910, William Barton decided to organize a retail store and feed business so he sold
his portion to James A. Summers. The new partnership became identified as Summers-Parrott
Hardware Company and boasted of $50,000 in capitalization. Summers became president of the
new firm and sold the retail department to other individuals in the city. The business was now fully
wholesale and would remain as such until the present.

When the Buffalo Street operation opened its doors to the public in 1911, its business
flourished. The company began selling Ford and Buick automobiles in addition to hardware...”®°

11 January 1912. Johnson City Comet.

“Summers — Parrott Hardware Company — The wholesale department of our business has
grown to the extent that it requires our undivided time and attention. Not being able to give the
retail end of our business the attention this important feature of it required, we felt that our retail
customers could be served to better advantage by an organization that could give them their entire
time.

We have sold and transferred to the Mountcastle — Phlegar Hardware Company our stock
at the Main street store room, and after this date the Mountcastle — Phlegar Hardware Company
will have charge of the business, moving the stock from their old stand into the room we have
occupied for so long as a retail hardware store.

As we shall do an exclusive wholesale business after this time, we have transferred with
the stock our good will in the retail business... Summers — Parrott HWD. Co.”%
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Taking Orders
Special Jobs
Ames Vehicles

Here is an opportunity to get a vehicle made to
your notion at wholesale stock price. We are making
up acar for shipment between April 1st and 10th and
you can either call and select what you want {rom the
catalogue, or if you will let us know, one of our sales-
men will take great pleasure in calling on you.

MR. S. R. TAYLOR sayshe has usedthe AMES VE-
HICLES exclusively in his livery stable for the last
FIVE YE£ \RS and they have given him perfect satisfaz.
tion. He has given his orders to come in thiscar. Also
Mr. H. E, CACRIGER has adopted the AMES LINE

for his stable,
What better recommendations do you want?’

We guarantee each vehicle. We have a special
“wholesale dealers’ price and can take care of you on
any price vehicle vou want,

Please let us hear from you at once as we must
have the order at facrory within ten days so as toin-
sure a good finish.

Summers-Parrott
Hardware Company

Figure 50. Johnson City Comet, 14 March 1912.
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Every Vehicle We Sell is
Guaranteed Against Defective
Material and Workmanship.

This High Grade Guaranteed Genuine Leather Trimmed Buggy as Above

| Only $66.00

Other buggies, carriages, stanhopes and open vehicles in stoek at prices to suit the yar-
ious requirements both steel and rubber tired. A genuine leather trimmed guaranteed
plain buggy from our stock,

Leather Quarter Top $51.O0 With Rubber Top Only 46.80

All made by AMES or CARV ER and guaranteed for one year against defective
material and workmanship. While we sell our general line of hardware at wholesale
only, we sell vehicles and mill supplies to gll. We have our vehicles set up ready for
your inspection and hope you will do us the favor of looking over what we have to offer

before you buy. We guarantee to beat the catalog houses if you care anyvthing at all for
quality and appearance.

Summers-Parrott Hardware Company

Johnson City, Tennesser,

Figure 51. Johnson City Comet, 25 April 1912.

146



We buy vehicles in car loads and will sell you on
same basis. You are invited to call at our wholesale
house and look over our line of buggies, surreys, stan-
hopes, etc., both steel and rubber tired. We have them
set up for your inspection. Big line to select from.

Summers-Parrott Hardware Company
e e s

Figure 52. Johnson City Comet, 20 June 1912,
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Built for Serivce
We are in the car business to
stay and which means we are

prepared to give you service,

Every Automobile requirement is met in the

1914 BUICK Line. Let us demonstrate it.

o - Oy
5 5
7 \)
T
.

: PRICE LIST
12 Passenger Roadster, 28 h. p. fully equipped - $ 950

5 Passenger Touring, 28 h. p. 1,050
|2 Passenger Roadster, 35 h. p. i - 1,235
(5 Passenger Touring, 35 h.p. *“ 5 . 1,335

5-7 Passenger “ 48 h.p. (6 cyl) “ - 1,985

F. O. B. Flint, Mich. Delco Starter, Electric Lights, Demountable Rims,

Summers-Parrott Hardware Company.
JOHNSONCITY - -  TENNESSEE

Figure 53. Johnson City Co_met_, 18 December 1913.
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AND LOW WHEELS ~ NARROW AND WIDE TIRES
Malleable and Steel Skeins

Sizes of Wagons in Stock.

2%x7 inch Cast Skein, regular tire 13 x% inch.
Equipment for one horse wagon—
Bed, 15 inches deep, 8 feet long, if sold without wagon.
Bed Brake, if sold without wagon,
Spring Seat, if sold without wagon,
2%, x8%% inch Bhort Bell Malleable Skein, regular tire 1%x% inch, also 2 in. Uire
2% x8% inch Steel Skein, 1%4x% luch, also 2 inch tire.
- 3x9 inch Short Bell Malleable Skein, regular tire 15x% inch, also 2 in. tire.
3x0 Inch Steel Skein, regular tire 15¢x% inch, also 2 inch tire.
x10 In¢ regu e x% Inch, also 2'inch tire,
314 x10 inch Steel Skein, regular tire 13 x% inch, also 2 inch tire.
3%x11 inch Cast Skein, regular tire 2%4x5% inch.
81%4x11 inch Steel Skein, regular tire 2%x% inch.

Also Beds and Parts for above Wagons. Beds, 18 to 25 in-
ches dgsp and 10 feet long. Call on us for prices and terms.
These Wagons solmu on a Guarantee against defective work-
manship and mate : '

A LARGE STOCK ALWAYS ON HAND.

Summers-Parroft Hardware Company

HIGH

Johnson City, Tennessee

Figure 54. Johnson City Comet, 13 August 1914,
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The Pord Redan In nt your rvios oveey hoaur of
the day. b carris the ehtliton to sehosl |s mnle
ty s comfort—the mornlrg shopping wur  asd
ihe afternoen soctal eall wre made In cozy peflne-
montand this reomy, Luxssioun ear b Meal for
Ihe theatte party ar evening  sngapeswel Ward
stabiiity and economy of muintenanes—ieas than 2
coats o il

Ford Sodnn $975; Cowpeler 1100 Town Car $590;
Touring Oar $400: Ruasbor: M40 ALttty
“equipped, foo b, Detrodt

Buyers will share 1o profits If we s#dl at  retadl
TNO00 pew Furd esre beuren Aumest, 100 sl
Aungast, 1915,

The Ford Compolet s ) pesction]l  all-the-year-
uround, two-passenger ear for the My business
man. Tho drive o and fram the office, Inviger.
atiag o fair weather, wilh sang cozinoss (o Ipcte-
ment weathor-—4tho urgont business engagement -«
wvery demand of commercial Hie for woter car
Ty ix met In the Pord  Coapeiot, It Ford
utiiity combined with Fard srcanmy of sperution
and npkeap beas than 2 contd 4 mdle. Chauge
from epen o chosed ear Is ounde In 2 mivite or
1w,

Ford Coupelet 3700, Seldan 975 Town Car $689;
Teuring Car uw.'m-nn-- e AN felly ranip

pod, 1o W 3
Um display nnd sale st

Summers-Parrot t Hardware Co,

Huyers will share fn profits If we sell at  rotal
060 new Ford cars hwiween Augest 104 and
Augam, 19186,
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We Carry In Stock Ferf
immediate Delvery

Buick

Automobiles

13 And a full line of Automobile Casings
138 and Tubes. Big Reduction in price «f
13 Casings and Tubes. We have in stock
13 both Good Year and Imperial.

|3 Sizes Casings Red Tubes  Grey Tubes
30x3 $ 9.00 N Rk
13 30x3%... 11.60. 300 .. .. 270
U3 32x3%... 13.35 . 310 . 2.80
T AN | | Ay | - VY (
36x4 20.50 T SR !
36x4%; 27.35 Y Y ¢
't Summers-Parrott

Hardware Co.

Our Motto:--  “Satisfactory Service”

Figure 56. Johnson City Comet, 1 April 1915.
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1650 VALVE-
F.O.B IN-HEAD
FLINT MICH. MOTOR
COMPLETE KEYSTONE
WITH OF BUICK
SPEDOMETER SUCCESS

The thing that makes Buick motor cars stand out in power. And power is the most desirable attribute any
automobile can possess. The Buick Valve-in-Head motor insures power at all times. There is a greater
reserve of power in Buick cars than any other automobile, regardless of size of price

What Power Means to the Motorist

When we say the Power is what gives
Buick has great Power the punch to your motor
motorists interpret our car. It is the life of
statement to mean that your car. Any old motor
the Buick is merely a will make a c.r go, ev-
great hill climber. They en up steep hills,  DBut
instantly associate power Buick Power makes it
hills, rue the Buick go with a vim, an eager
is a great hill climber, ness that is almost hu-
but Buick power means man. The Buick Valve-
far more than ability to in - Head - Motor is a
climb hills. thing alive and active.

We realize that thou- Itis a force that is vol-
sands of motorists never canic.
have any very big hills The difference be-
to climb. . tween the Buick Valve-

The things that make in-Head motor and an
an automubile good or “L" or “'T" head mo-
bad is power or the lack tor is the difference be-
of it. And here is the tween a school boy with
thought we wish to im- spring fever and a twao-
press upon your minds: year-old colt on a sharp

You do not need hills November morning. To
to realize the vast im. the boy action is a pain-

ortance of automobile ful process. To the colt
owzr! et it is a thing of joy.

Buick Valve-in-Head power finds expression in the full line of Buick cars. Eech one is built around the
Buick Valve-in-Head motor—the motor which for twelve years has made Buick cars pre-eminent.

SUMMERS-PARROTT HARDWARE C0.

Carry these cars in stock and will be glad o give you a demonstvation. Call on them

Figure 57. Johnson City Comet, 15 April 1915.
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ANNOUNCEMENT

The Public wants Buick Sixes—so many of them that
we shall build nothing else in 1916.

PIONEER BUILDERS
OF VALVE-IN-HEAD
MOTOR CARS

Regardless OF The Car You Buy Or The Price You Pay, Nowhere Can You Get Greater Value

More enduring than chronie vanadium steel, more
wonderful than the finest workmanship, is the idea
that can dominnte an industry.

In this day when more Buicks are being built than
ever before it is interesting to remember that the
distinguishing characteria-
tic of the Buick, the Valve-
in-Head Motor, has existed
ns an idea for twenty-five
years and has been buflt in.
to Buick cars for thirteen

s,

E:lck Valve-in-Head was a
two cylinder engine. From
1808 to 1014 four eylinders,
dominated the field and the
Buick Valve-in-Hesd Four
dominated other types. The
Buick Valve-in-Head Six
was first put on the market
in 1913, Fours also continued—but the Valve-in-
Head SIx has stirred the imagination of the car-buy-
Ing public. The demand from the start outpacked
the produetion,

This demand has become s overwhelming that

MORRE POWER  Duik regslarly
I @5 mad 85 burss power, Ric (71
Inder Valve i Homd welv with
two stes chasste. WILKKEL BASK -
16 and 130 (nehew. NMEAR AXLES

Gennine el Bosing, with sple
al el g deive NRAR
APRINGS Dok  specinl  caatile
vor.  BODY -Full  strears e
exoptiarally  roamy fer hath
paseengers and debver . Ove man
top with elosr vidug sabe curtaing
which romstn sitachtnl sad  fuld
peally 0 lep whea sl In e

WINDERIFLD ~Twe pitcr raim

Exclusively &

now—for 1916—the Four gives way to Sixes. Two
chnssis, both Sixes, with roadster, touring car,

" cowpe, sedan bodies. The Six has been made stan.

danl because in the Six the Valve-in-Head idea has
its greatest opportunity for service.
‘y\'dn-ln-ﬂud type. Never
before has the Valve-in
Head idea had such ade.
quate materfalization,

l l This the Buick fac
9 6 hlw forSlx@cxucoig

sively, production will

SIXES &S

anee of the Buick Six there
has risen an insistent de.
mand for smaller Bulch

Sixes.
The Six Ia a natafal, logical,
efficient form for the
eessdtates o steady stream of Buick trains leaving
the factory during the season,
And the Pawer, Economy, Dependability and Com-
fort of 1016 Buick Sixes justify this demand more
than ever. Study specifications and you'll see why,

wisken e westilnting. Loy
TIAND  DRIVEL - and  ormtir  con
tol.  UPIOLATRIING i
guslity, peauine  lesihor,  luxes
oualy trimmed weer  ouried  hoie
il eep cold apriags. Purnished
comphete  evenn e U wmalient
-l

f. 0. b. Detroit
Roadsters and Touring
Cars $950 to $1483
Coupes and laside
. Drives Sedans,

$1350 to 31875

Summers-Parrott Hardware Co., Agents

Johnson City, Tenn.

Figure 58. Johnson City Comet, 24 June 1915.
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The following prices f. o. b., Detroit
effective August 2, 1915

Ford Runabout - - - $390.00
Ford Touting Car . - $440.00
Ford Town Car - - - $640.00

No speedomoter included In this year's eguipment, otherwise eara fully equipped.

There can Lo no assurance givon againgt an advance in those pricesat any time.  We guaran<

e, however, that there will be no reduction in these prives prior to Augnst 1, 1916

Profit-Sharing With Retail Buyers

August 1, 1914, wo mado the announcement that if we conld muke and dispose of 200000 Tord
cars between August 1, 1914, and Auvgust 1, 1915, we would share profits with the rvetall purchaserve,
to the extent of from $40 10 $60 on ecach car. We have sold over 3000000 Pord cars in the time
specified, ! profssnaring cheelin of 250 enoh will he distributed ax rapldly ns possible after Aug
usl 15, 1915, Retall snfchagers who have not yet malled us thelr profit-sharing coupons, properly
endorsed, should do so without detey, Our plan to profit-shave with retail parehasers of Ford onrs
during 1914-115 has been wost stiecesaful,  We thoroughly believe in If, but, realizing  uncertainty
of conditions generally makes It ndvisable to deter any annoaneement of foture profit sharing wntfl
a Inter date. We are, however, confident of our inability to reduce costs for soveral months, and

therefore can offer o profit-sharing for cars deliverad during Augusi, September, Oatober, 1916,

FORD MOTOR CO.

Detroit
SUMMERS-PARROTT HARDWARE CO.

LOCAL AGENTS

JOUNSON C17¥ . . # 2 . . - . - - TENNFTSSFE

Figure 59. Johnson City Comet, 5 August 1915.
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19 November 1913. The Horseless Age.

“New Supply House. — The Summers — Parrott Hardware Co., Johnson City, Tenn., have
entered the field of automobile supplies and accessories. They are handling a complete line of
accessories and electrical equipment for cars.”%?

11 June 1914. Johnson City Comet.
“Summers — Parrott Hardware Company will close on Saturdays at three o’clock p.m.
during the months of June, July, and August. Open until 6 p.m. other week days.”

13 August 1914. Johnson City Comet.

“Filtered Gasoline in your Automobile — The Summers — Parrott Hardware Co., agents for
the world renown Ford and celebrated Buick Automobiles, have just recently installed the most
up-to-date Gasoline Storage Outfit to be had. It is not only Fire Proof, but filters and strains the
Gasoline from all water and other impurities. The Metre keeps accurate check on all Gasoline
which is placed by an Automatic pump through a hose directly into your car, without being
exposed to the air, and you can, therefore, rely on securing perfectly clean gasoline.

This outfit is located on Ashe street and those of you who are interested can easily find it,
as it is made up of a red iron cabinet, heavy cast iron, with sign over the top marked Gasoline.

This outfit has been installed with a view of furnishing their customers in the satisfactory
manner.”

10 June 1915. Johnson City Comet.
“The Summers — Parrott Hardware Company will close on noon Saturdays for the benefit
of their employes during the months of June, July and August.”

1915. “Summers Hardware Transformed Through Myriad of Names”

“A 1915 Chamber of Commerce publication had glowing comments about the firm: ‘One
of the most striking features of the big business interests of Johnson City is stability, as exhibited
in the fact that among its representative houses are some that have gained success and prominence
by steady development through many years of active and honorable business history, a notable
example being Summers — Parrott Hardware Company.

This is one of the largest concerns of its kind in this section and operates an immense
business in Tennessee, North Carolina, South Carolina and Kentucky. The comparatively new
building now occupied is an immense four-story structure and basement, 107 by 150 feet in
dimensions and erected in the year 1911.”

After 1915, industry conditions necessitated the separating of the business. Parrott chose
to stay with the automobile portion so he sold his interest to James A. Summers, built a garage
next door to his former company and opened his store. Summers — Parrott Hardware was
reorganized as Summers Hardware Company and, over the next several years, edged forward in
spite of numerous economic downturns...”%
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To be more than a mere *‘scra olg-per.”l guaran-
¥

tee must be absolute—and a concern able

and willing to make it good.

The Genenl's guarantee is not only absolute; it is
backed by a business operating the world’s
roofing mills,and making one-third of all the roll roof-
ing made in America. ﬁ'lm s the guarantee behind

Certain-teed

Roofing
The guarantes is for 5, 10 or 15 secording to %
ar 3). lhue.uo:m cvl::m lgm;c':'i—-no wmp'k’.z:(n

stitute a highsoundingsomething “just asgood.”  Thereis
nosubstitute for o real guarantee, You get an absolute guaran-
t:cm CERTAIN-TEED because the General knows that
no better roofing can be made.  Irs raw materalsand method
of manufactare are both certificd by the General's board of
graduate chemists, and he knows he's taking no chance in
tecing them to you.  That's what “CERTAIN.
T‘m memns—arnfnd and guransend.  Experience has
wven that the guamntes is conservative, and that CER-
AIN-TEED will outlast the period of guarantee,

ﬂ!nxoﬂﬁ:grl;‘ uxoan-:‘ “bone drllemlolwh
en i saturation of a special apiub.
1: wthchmnh board of expert chemists, [tis
iven 3 harder coating of another blend of asphalte.
t«-ps the inner saturation voft, and prevents the dry-
mg-out process so destructive to ordi
ious 1o the elements o '-Ln(- the
mnmn hsts. CERTAIN-TEED retains its soft satura-
ﬁlmd is in good condition for years after the harder, diier
inds lave become uscless,

CERTAIN-TEED is made in rolls; alto in stue-covered shingles,
There is a type of CERTAIN-TEED for every kind of
with flat or pitched roofs, from the largest sky-scraper to the

ext residence of out-building.

CERTAIN-TEED is sold by respansible dealers all over the world,

ur::nbkpim. In e it before you decide on any type
General

Summars-Parmﬂ Hardwam Co.
Wholesale Distributors

East Tennessee and
Western N. Carolina

Johnson City, Tennessee

Figure 60. Johnson City Comet, 18 May 1916.
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Universal Service. Certain-teed stands for universal service.

In every part of the world you will find Certain-teed products ““doing their duty’’, in all
kinds of weather and under all conditions—rendering Universal Service of the best kind.

Certain-teed Certain-teed
Paints and Varnishes

Roofing

gives Universal Scrvncc to all who use it. For factorics,
office buildings, farm bui nq.pngcs, etc., CERTAIN-
TEED is the efficient roof, It costs less to buy. less to
lay and less per year of llfc It aﬁght-wu t, clcan sani-
tary, weather-proof and fire retardant, ul-‘or residences
CERTAIN-TEED Slate Surfaced Shingles have all the
advantages of CERTAIN-TEED Roll Roohng,plus artistic

give Universal Service because they are good,dependable
products, honestly made from high grade materials, by
expert paint men, and guaramccd to give satisfaction.
Mixed by modern iinery which eliminates the
uncertainties of hand nnxmg and insures absolute con-
formity to the expert’s formula on the label. The

.extensive organization for selling and distributing all

ey CERTAIN-TEED products reduces costs to a mini-
#1 3l mum and makes it possible to sell CERTAIN-TEED
Paints and Varnishes at very reasonable prices.
Whether you do yonut ows paleting o« k o padarer it wiil pay ya

1o insin oo petting CERTAINTER . Any guml deuler cun papply
you. M e doss's sty CERTAIN “TKED e cas g It Jue you

beduty. CERTAIN-TEED is guaranteed for 5, 10 or
15 years, according to thic ncsl 1, 2 or 3 ply),
but Iam longer than the period of guarantee,

wre il unn‘nuwnd.i-ﬂlc:‘,-ml

AIN STERD hafore dpebling m- "~y
Jealern ull vons Uer werdd uf remonald

CERTAIN-TEED PRODUCTS CORPORATION
General Rocf.; Mfg. Co., Gregg Varnish Co., Mound City Paint & Color Co.

Now Ch 'lvlh‘*ﬂ. St Lowie Sesto. Clevelund PIBM Dotrabt Buffilo San Prasclscs Milweukes Clnclunatl  New Ovleans  Los Angoles H
"’::-C;:..inl mdiamapolis  Atlents  Rickmood Cnldk'l':l&. Nahoidle OSefilal sTiy DesMcims Houten Dol Lesdou  Sydaey  MHavass

Summers-Parrott Hardware Company
Wholesale Distributors Johnson City, Tennessee
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Summers Hardware Company, 19167 — 1936

11 February 1926. Manufacturers Record.

“Tenn., Johnson City — Following are additional subcontractors on American Bemberg
Corporation’s plant between here and Elizabethton: Virginia Bridge & Iron Co., Roanoke, Va., on
structural steel; C.O. Biddle, Johnson City, on plumbing; B.G. Young, Johnson City, for sewers;
Johnson City Foundry & Machine Co., miscellaneous iron and steel; Johnson City Shale Brick
Co., for brick; Summers Hardware Co., Johnson City, for hardware. Hughes — Foulkrod Co., 421
Seventh Ave., Pittsburgh, Pa., Genl. Contrs.; Lockwood, Green, & Co., Engrs.; 1 Pershing Sq.,
New York.”%

6 May 1926. Manufacturers Record.

“Tenn., Elizabethton — J.B. McCrary Engineering Corp., Atlanta, Ga., are handling work
for Mountain Spring Water Co., covering extension to present system to supply rayon plant of
American Bemberg Corp., consisting of about 2 miles of 10-in. cast-iron mains; U.S. Cast Iron
Pipe & Foundry Co., Birmingham, Ala., for cast iron pipe; R.D. Wood & Co., Philadelphia, Pa.,
for hydrants and valves; Summers Hardware Co., Johnson City, for lead and jute; also plan
construction 500,000 gal. reservoir.”*®

Summers Hardware and Supply Company, 1936 — present

1936. “Summers Hardware Transformed Through Myriad of Names”

“However, the company went bankrupt in 1936 and was reorganized as Summers
Hardware and Supply Company, Inc. by creditors from banks and manufacturers. Fitzhugh
Wallace, a local banker, became president of the struggling company. Wallace was a savvy
businessman and vigilantly brought the besieged firm out of insolvency. He remained in that
capacity until he became Chairman of the Board. His son Fitzhugh Wallace Jr. became President
and his daughter, Gwen Wallace, part owner...”%

1949. The Petroleum Engineer.

“Midwest Names Agent — The Summers Hardware and Supply Company, Johnson City,
Tennessee, has been named northeast Tennessee distributor of the entire line of welding fittings
and forged flanges of the Midwest Piping and Supply Company, St. Louis, it was announced by
A. G. Stoughton, Midwest president. As distributor, the Summers company will serve the natural
gas pipe line, petroleum refining, and other industries in an extended area, including Johnson City,
Elizabethton and Kingsport, Tennessee, and Bristol, Virginia. The Summers company will
maintain stocks of Midwest’s line of fittings, which range from % in. to 24 in. in diam., including
elbows, reducers, return bends, caps, tees, etc. Welding fittings and forged flanges are of carbon
steel, wrought iron, stainless steel and other metals. The Summers company also distributes
National Tube Company pipe and Lunkenheimer valves. F.L. Wallace is president of the industrial
supply firm, which was founded in 1896. William B. Johnson is manager of the supply
department.”’
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Figure 62. “Summers Hardware, c. 1935”, see Map 8F.%®
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1991 — 1992. “Summers Hardware Transformed Through Myriad of Names”

“In a 1992 interview with Press writer, Phyllis Johnson, the two Wallace owners stated that
their father restructured the company in [1936, during] difficult times, shifting toward industrial
supplies, maintenance and construction goods. By then, consumers began migrating toward one-
stop mega variety stores where they could shop for hardware items and sundry other merchandise
under the convenience of one roof. It was during this time that Summers Hardware Company
began selling automobile parts, a decision that proved to be highly lucrative.

In 1991 sensing it was time to move on, the Wallace family located their replacements in
the business’s front office, selling it to employees John R. Lawson and R. Glenn Shaw. Eight years
later, Shaw became sole owner. Today, the company is a thriving MRO wholesale supplier serving
a wide-ranging customer base that includes manufacturers, schools, nursing homes, hospitals and
commercial contractors.

It has been said that the wooden floors of the massive Summers Hardware building creak
under the feet of those who walk over it as a testament to the strength of both the building and the
work carried on there. Unlike its many former competitors of years past who have long passed
from the scene, the business has pressed forward. The large letters on the side of the century-old
building are a constant reminder to the populace of its lengthy and intricate history. And the beat
goes on.

Thanks to Alex Summers, Gwen Wallace and Glenn Shaw for their valuable input to this
article.”®®

2005. Johnson City.

“Summers Hardware & Supply Company... has been at this Buffalo Street location since
1910. While it was originally a wholesale hardware distributor, Summers Hardware & Supply
Company now sells industrial and manufacturing supplies. ..”1%

160



4. Businesses on the East Side of Buffalo Street, Between Ash and Jobe Streets,
1891 — to perhaps 1998.
(Maps and Figures)
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Map 10. This composite map depicts the area bounded by South Roan and Buffalo streets (east to west) and East Main to Ash streets (north to south)
in January 1891.101
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Buffalo streets (east to west) and East Main to Ash streets (north to south)
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Map‘ 11. This compdsite map depicts the area bounded by South Roan and

in May 1897.10
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in April 1903.193
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Map 13. This composite map depicts the area bounded by South Roan and Buffalo streets (east to west) and East Main to Ash streets (north to south)

in December 1908.1%4
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Map 15. This composite map depicts the area bounded by South Roan and Buffalo streets (east to west) and East Main to Ash streets (north to south)
in February 1920.1%
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Map 10A (reproduced here for convenience). A composite map of the area between Jobe and Ash streets, along

Buffalo Street in January 1891.” Note the “Big Spring” near the center of this map.
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Map 11A (reproduced here for convenience). A composite map of the area between Jobe and Ash streets, along
Buffalo Street in May 1897.8 Note the “Johnson City Creamery” at the bottom center of this map.
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Map 12A (reproduced here for convenience). A composite map of the businesses between Jobe and Ash streets,
along Buffalo Street in April 1903.° Note “The City Stable Livery” and the “K.P. Jones & Co Lumber Yard”
along the east side of Buffalo Street, as well as the “W.E. Uptegrove & Bro Lumber Yard” on the northwest
corner of Buffalo and Cherry streets. Also note that the “Johnson City Creamery” no longer occupies the building
at the northeast corner of Ash and Buffalo streets.
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Map 13A (reproduced here for convenience). A composite map of the area between Jobe and Ash streets, along

Buffalo Street in December 1908.2° Note that “Brading & Marshall” have occupied the building of “The City
Stable Livery” and that the “Big Spring” is gone. Perhaps also of interest, note the continued presence of the “K.P.
Jones & Co Lumber Yard” on the northeast and southwest corners of Buffalo and Cherry streets. The Johnson
City Comet appears to indicate that Brading & Marshall had entirely succeeded K.P. Jones & Company in 1904
and the author did not locate any “K.P. Jones & Co” advertisements in the Johnson City Comet after 1904. Also

note that the left side of the image depicts five tracks, while the ride side only depicts four.
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Map 14A (reproduced here for convenience). A composite map of the businesses along Buffalo Street, between
Jobe and Ash streets, in July 1913.** Note that “W J Barton Feed & Seed Co.” occupies the building formerly
occupied by “Brading & Marshall” (1904 — 1909) and “The City Stable Livery” (1901 — 1905?). Also note that
the “office” of “K.P. Jones & Co” is the only building that remains of their facilities at the northeast corner of
Buffalo and Cherry streets, apparently, this building was used by the Clinchfield as a temporary ticket office in
1908. Apparently the other facilities had been demolished as a result of the construction of the Clinchfield
mainline through downtown Johnson City. Perhaps also of interest, the Clinchfield depot has been built on land
formerly occupied by the “W.E. Uptegrove & Bro Lumber Yard” on the northwest corner of Buffalo and Cherry
streets, and the Summers — Parrott Hardware Company has constructed its building on the land previously
occupied by a “K.P. Jones & Co” lumber yard, as well as a private dwelling.
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Map 15A (reproduced here for convenience). A composite map of the businesses between Jobe and Ash streets,
along Buffalo Street in February 1920.%2 Note the “Lockett Bros Co. Whol. Gro.” building had been constructed
in 1919 around the “Barton Implement, Feed & Seed Co.” on the land previously occupied by the “Johnson City
Creamery” (1895 — 1897) and that the Clinchfield had constructed a safety tower in 1910 where the railroads
crossed Buffalo Street (interestingly, this tower is not depicted on the Sanborn map of July 1913). Also note the
temporary ticket office of the Clinchfield (previously the office of “K.P. Jones & Co.”, which was east across
Buffalo Street from the Clinchfield depot) has been removed.
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4. Businesses on the East Side of Buffalo Street, Between Ash and Jobe Streets,
1891 — to perhaps 1998.

4.1. Businesses on the Northeast Corner of Buffalo and Cherry Streets
4.1.1. J.M. Blair Lumber, 1901? — 1902
4.1.2. K.P. Jones & Company, at this location 1902 — 1904

4.2. Businesses on the Southeast Corner of Buffalo and Cherry Streets
The City Stable Livery Building, 1891 to at least 1928
4.2.1. The City Stable Livery, 1901 — 1905?
4.2.2. Brading — Marshall Lumber Company, at this location, 1905 — 1909
Abandoned?, 1909 — 1912
4.2.3. W.J. Barton Feed & Seed Company, at this location, 1912 to at least 1928

4.3. Businesses on the Northeast Corner of Buffalo and Ash Streets
Ford Building, 1919 to 1984 (or 1998)
Lockett Brothers Company (Wholesale Grocers), at this location, 1919 until at least 1920
Wentworth Bakery, mentioned 1922
Johnson City Bakery, mentioned 1925
Seaver’s Bakery, 1925 — 1927
Grocers’ Baking Company, at this location, 1927 — 1959
Rainbo Baking Company, at this location, 1959 to at least 1967
Sears, Roebuck & Company warehouse, dates not given
City storage facility, dates not given
Demolished 19847 Still standing in 1998?
Google Maps, in 2024, shows a parking lot at this location
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4.1. Businesses on the Northeast Corner of Buffalo and Cherry Streets
4.1.1. J.M. Blair Lumber,** 1901? — 1902
4.1.2. K.P. Jones & Company, at this location 1902 — 1904
This facility was located on the northeast corner of Buffalo and Cherry streets.
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Map 18A. A detail of the “K.P. Jones & Co Lumber Yard” on the northeast corner of Buffalo and Cherry streets,
in April 1903. This company had another lumber yard on the southwest corner of Buffalo and Cherry streets, see

maps 4G and 5D.
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Map 19A. A detail of the “K.P. Jones & Co Lumber Yard” on the northeast corner of Buffalo and Cherry streets,
in December 1908. This company had another lumber yard on the southwest corner of Buffalo and Cherry streets,
see maps 4G and 5D. As previously noted, the continued presence of the “K.P. Jones & Co Lumber Yard” on the
northeast and southwest corners of Buffalo and Cherry streets on the Sanborn map is interesting. The Johnson
City Comet appears to indicate that Brading & Marshall had entirely succeeded K.P. Jones & Company in 1904
and the author did not locate any “K.P. Jones & Co” advertisements in the Johnson City Comet after 1904. Details
from the subsequent Sanborn maps of 1913 and 1920 are not included because they show very little of interest in
reference to this particular piece of land.
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4.1.1. J.M. Blair Lumber, 1901? — 1902

24 October 1901. Johnson City Comet.

“F.P. Baxter has charge of a retail lumber yard at the big spring, near the City Stables, and
keeps constantly on hand framing, sheeting, laths, and shingles, and will soon add all kinds of
dressed lumber.”

*umber for Buflding

We manufacture and supply’, in quantities to suit,

all kinds of Rough and Dressed Lumber,
and carry in stock a full line of

rraming, Siding, Flooring, Ceiling, Pickets, Moutdings, Shingles

AND I.LATHS.

| Mulls at Garber’s, Tenn, ) ,

' Yard—Cor, Buffalo and Cherry Sts., j M B A R

| Johnsgon City, Tenn, ) ¥ ¥ § :
l

1

By B BAREREI oo 550000 0inin AGENT.

Figure 63. Johnson City Comet. 13 March 1902.
This advertisement ran until at least 10 April 1902.

4.1.2. K.P. Jones & Company, at this location, 1902 — 1904

13 March 1902. Johnson City Comet.
“K.P. Jones and wife of Chattanooga are in the city and have about decided to locate here
permanently. Mr. Jones has made several purchases of improved property and is not yet satisfied.”

3 April 1902. Johnson City Comet.

“New Lumber Firm. K.P. Jones & Co. is the style of a new lumber firm that has just started
in business in this city. They will sell all kinds of framing and dressed lumber, laths, pickets,
mouldings, etc., at retail. F.P. Baxter is the general manager and will have charge of the yard.”
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2 May 1902. Johnson City Comet.

“Contractors and builders will find everything in their line at the retail lumber yard of K.P.
Jones & Co., corner Buffalo and Cherry streets. Flooring, siding and ceiling specialties. F.P.
Baxter, manager.”

8 May 1902. Johnson City Comet.

“Shingles, long leaf yellow pine, and other grades flooring, best framing, as well as the
cheaper grades in all kinds of lumber and building material, at K.P. Jones & Co’s. one square from
depot, beside the ‘Big Spring...’

K.P. Jones & Co., retail dealers in all kinds of lumber and building material, offer special
inducements to out of town buyers. Office and yard one square from depot, corner Buffalo and
Cherry streets.”

15 May 1902. Johnson City Comet.

“Lumber of all kinds at retail, yard near depot, beside ‘Big Spring.’

K.P. Jones & Co., retail lumber yard, near depot, beside the ‘Big Spring...’

Go to K.P. Jones & Co. for building material of all kinds. Office and yards near depot,
beside the ‘Big Spring.” F.P. Baxter, Manager...

Shingles, long leaf yellow pine, and other grades flooring, best framing, as well as the
cheaper grades, in all kinds of lumber and building material, at K.P. Jones & Co’s one square from
depot, beside the ‘Big Spring.’”

22 May 1902. Johnson City Comet.
“Go to K.P. Jones & Co. for building material of all kinds. Office and yards near depot,
beside the ‘Big Spring.” F.P. Baxter, manager.”

16 July 1903. Johnson City Comet.

“K.P. Jones & Company. Johnson City can boast of having a number of prominent lumber
yards among which is K.P. Jones & C., who are manufacturers and dealers in building supplies
and building material of all kinds. A complete list of paint, oils, sash, doors, siding, ceiling,
flooring, laths and shingles. Hemlock is made a specialty. The yards and office are located at
Buffalo and Cherry streets, where three adjoining yards are occupied by this prosperous concern.
The members of the company are K.P. Jones and J.E. Brading, two hustling and wide-awake
business men. The Lumber Company started business in February, 1902, and since the first of
January a gain of 100 per cent. has been enjoyed in the volume of business. The firm members are
local men and take and active interest in our city welfare.”

177



K. P. JONES & CO.
L.umber

You can make up your entire bill of lumber for
that new house right in our yard. We not only

carry all the rough undressed stock necessary to
house building, but odds and ends such as Porch
Colums and Brackets, Gable Ornaments, Fancy
Front Doors, Oak Mantels, Moulding, Window
and Door Frames. All at rock bottom prices.s

Figure 64. Johnson City Comet, 21 January 1904.
This advertisement ran until at least 11 February 1904.
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KOOSO ODOON OISO

il The Largest Stock
Framing S and Greatest Variety of
Siding §
Ceiling 5 i 1
I'looring s ‘
| uling-+ Yt
Doors
Frames
Colums
Brackets Monlding IN JOHNSON CITY.
and Every thing Else, ﬁuun ST“FF AT luw PBI[ES
e
K. P.JONES & CO, Buflslo, Ohsery aud Ash Bireste.

SOODOOHTOHOUHOODOTTTNI0E

Figure 65. Johnson City Comet, 5 May 1904. This advertisement ran until at least 19 May 1904.

A Feeling of Contentment

Is what you will have if you buy your lumber from g
B T S B o B B o §
'

We have a big stock of all kinds of Building Ma-
terial, such as Framing, Flooring, Ceiling, Siding, Shin-
gles and laths and invite your inspection. & To close
out our stock of paint and roofinﬁ paper we will make

. O . e

some very attractive prices. & If you need any Man-
tels, Tile or Grates we have them.

K. P. JONES & CO, Bufslo, Oberry snd Ash Sizeets.

- e Y
FET TR S N . R e T

*
£%

@

\J

¢~00'90

B o A e . _oh
0000.0000.000

Figure 66. Johnson City Comet, 26 May 1904.
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Our stock of LUMBER
and Building Materlal

Is complete and we want to
move it. Before buying get
our prices on Ceiling, Siding,
Flooring and rough and dressed
Lumber of all kinds. We
make Knoxville prices on
Mantels, Tile and Grates.

i .>K P, JONES & €O«

Buffalo, Cherry and Ash Streets

Figure 67. Johnson City Comet, 14 July 1904.

15 September 1904. Johnson City Comet.

“New Lumber Firm. Brading & Marshall is the style of a new firm that has succeeded K.P.
Jones & Co., dealers in lumber and builders’ supplies. Mr. Brading has been a member of the firm
for some time and Mr. Marshall has been with the company quite a while. Both of these gentlemen
are well known business men and experienced in the lumber trade and need no introduction to the
Johnson City public. They will carry everything needed to build a home and will make you
interesting figures on what you want. See their ad. elsewhere in this issue.”

Note: Brading and Marshall already owned a large building across Cherry Street, from the K.P.
Jones office, and will be addressed in the next section.
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4.2. Businesses on the Southeast Corner of Buffalo and Cherry Streets
The City Stable Livery Building, 1891 to at least 1928
(Maps and Figures)

The City Stable Livery, 1901 — 1905?
Brading — Marshall Lumber Company, at this location, 1905 — 1909
Abandoned?, 1909 — 1912
W.J. Barton Feed & Seed Company, at this location, 1912 to at least 1928
It appears that this building was removed sometime between 1933 and 1941.

This building was served by the dual-gauge trackage on Cherry Street from
by 1908, until at least the 1930s.
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Map 12B. A detail of “The City Stable Livery,” in April 1903. Note that the building in the lower left of the
image was previously occupied by the Johnson City Creamery (in 1897).
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Map 13B. A detail of the “Brading & Marshall Sash Doors & B’ld’rs Supplies Ware Ho.”, previously occupied
by the City Stable Livery, in December 1908.
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Map 14B. A detail of the “W.J. Barton Feed & Seed Co. Ware Ho.”, previously occupied by “Brading &
Marshall”, in July 1913. Note that the dual-gauge trackage along Cherry Street has been laid. Also note that an
office tower, 2% stories tall, has been added to the northwest corner of the building, see Figure 68.
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Figure 68. “Photograph showmg assemblage of Ea"st. Tennessee farmers at Barton Implement Feed & Seed Co S Formal Opemng Maréh 16 [19 12],7
looking south across Cherry Street. The tower, visible on the right of the photograph in the northwest corner of the building, at the intersection of
Cherry and Buffalo streets. This tower was used for office space. Johnson City Comet, 21 March 1912.
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Figure 69. This detail show: Clinchfield safety tower on the southeast corner of Buffalo and Jobe streets. The
structure behind it appears to be the building of the Barton Implement, Feed & Seed Company. On the left side
of the photograph is a boxcar on the Cherry Street trackage. The safety tower was built in 1910 and remained
until at least February 1920. The full photograph also showed the trolley tracks running along Buffalo Street,
which were reportedly removed in 1931, and another photograph that appears to cover the same incident includes

the “Ferguson Transfer Company” building, indicating that this photograph appears to date to between 1925 and
1931.14
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Figure 88A. A detail of the “Implement Ware Ho.” on the south side of the Barton Implement,
Feed & Seed Company building on Buffalo Street, with the Ford building which was occupied by
the Lockett Brothers Company at one time, on the right. Note the trolley track in the foreground.
This photograph was taken before 1927. See Map 15B and Figure 88.
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Map 15B. A detail of the “Barton Implement Feed & Seed Co” and the Lockett Bros Co. Whol. Gro.”, which was
built in 1919, on the southeast corner of Buffalo and West Cherry streets, in February 1920. See Map 15 for an
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4.2. Businesses on the Southeast Corner of Buffalo and Cherry Streets
The City Stable Livery Building, 1891 to at least 1928

4.2.1. The City Stable Livery, 1901 — 1905?
4.2.2. Brading — Marshall Lumber Company, at this location, 1905 — 1909
Abandoned?, 1909 — 1912
4.2.3. W.J. Barton Feed & Seed Company, at this location, 1912 to at least 1928
It appears that this building was removed sometime between 1933 and 1941.

This building was served by the dual-gauge trackage along Cherry Street from
c. 1908, until at least the 1930s.
4.2.1. The City Stable Livery, 1901 — 1905?
18 April 1901. Johnson City Comet.

“Two additions are being built to the City stables — a shed 20 x 100 feet is being built on
the south side for vehicles and an 18-foot room is being built across the rear for new stalls.”

1 May 1901. Johnson City Comet.
“The team recently purchased for the city fire department is now quartered at the City
Stables.”

18 September 1902. Johnson City Comet.
“For Sale, One Black Diamond Stallion. For particulars call at City Stables, Johnson City,
Tenn.”

23 April 1903. Johnson City Comet.

“Livery Stable Sold. Tate L. Earnest has sold the City Livery stable to W.T. Givens and
Fred Price of Milligan. The property changed hands Monday and the new proprietors are now in
charge. They are both young men and have ample capital and experience to make a success of the
business. They will continue to conduct a high class livery, sale and feed stable.”

21 May 1903. Johnson City Comet.
“Mr. Givens has recently purchased the City Livery Stable and is now giving it his personal
attention. They will move to Johnson City as soon as they can get a suitable dwelling.”
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6. L. PLANK|

l

VETERINARY SURGEON |

Can be fou nd at the City Stables, John-
son City, Tenn. ,“tnr&y of each
week, Removing all'sugerficial blem-
ishes a specialty. A dead shot on col-
ie, &c. Bone, blood or bog spayin,
splint and curb cured in forty minutes.
Tumors, warts, and setfasts removed
on sight, Will straighten your horses
tail or make him carry it in any posi-

tion desired. 'Phone or write me at
Bluff City, Tenn.

o A 15 S AN e e

—— e e e s T aE N —

Figure 70. Johnson City Comet, 28 May 1903.
This advertisement ran until at least 12 November 1903.%°

16 July 1903. Johnson City Comet.

“City Stables. The City Stables, owned by W.T. Givens, and conducted by W.C. Snapp,
manager, easily take the lead in Johnson City liveries. Mr. Givens is a Kentuckian, is an accurate
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judge of horseflesh, and will have none but sound, swift, young roadsters in his stables. Since
opening his livery in 1900, he has established a large patronage, owing to the fact that his turnouts
are serviceable, comfortable and handsome. His stables are 135 x 90 feet in area and he has ample
accommodation for 100 horses. Mr. Givens also conducts a feed stable which is largely patronized
as all horses are given the best care and attention.”*®

5 January 1905. Johnson City Comet.

“Brading & Marshall, the lumber dealers, have moved into the city stable on Buffalo street,
and are better prepared than ever to handle the stock necessary to supply their trade. This large
stable makes an ideal place for their business and they would be glad to have you call and see
them.”

4.2.2. Brading & Marshall Lumber Company, at this location 1905 — 1909

BRADING & MARSHALL

(SUCCESSORS TO K. 1" JONES & 00

Wholesale and Retail Dealers in

Lumberand ¢ Building: Material

— . ——

Office, Warehouse and Yards

Cor. Buffalo, Cherry and Ash Streets

WRITE FOR PRIOCES

— Johnson City, Tenn.

Mantels, Grates and Tiles
HOOOSTOSOVOOOSOOOOOVOIVOOOOCBODDOOOOK
74

Figure 71. Johnson City Comet, 15 September 1904.Y7
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15 September 1904. Johnson City Comet.

“New Lumber Firm. Brading & Marshall is the style of a new firm that has succeeded K.P.
Jones & Co., dealers in lumber and builders’ supplies. Mr. Brading has been a member of the firm
for some time and Mr. Marshall has been with the company quite a while. Both of these gentlemen
are well known business men and experienced in the lumber trade and need no introduction to the
Johnson City public. They will carry everything needed to build a home and will make you
interesting figures on what you want. See their ad. elsewhere in this issue.”

5 January 1905. Johnson City Comet.

“Brading & Marshall, the lumber dealers, have moved into the city stable on Buffalo street,
and are better prepared than ever to handle the stock necessary to supply their trade. This large
stable makes an ideal place for their business and they would be glad to have you call and see
them.”

We Have Noved [nto Our New Quarters

in the building formerly occupied by the City Stable and are better

prepared than ever before to supply our customers with anything
they need in

Lumber and Building Material.
B We are exclusive agents for Tennessee Wood Fibre Plaster,

BRADING & MARSHALL,

Lumber and Builders Supplies. Buffalo and Oherry streets,

Figure 72. Johnson City Comet, 5 January 1905.
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¢ Wood Fibre Plaster QEE
%

49 Makes a better wall than sand and lime and is not affected
o DY DO WORNIEY OF WRME: 53000 is0cenronss ontessatptsnsess

¢ +  We Sell It

o Also Fire Brick, Fire Clay, Mantels, Tile and Grates.
4" Seeus for prices.

& §
g Bradmg & Marshall, (j;

'9 Lumber and Builders Supp Buffalo and Cherry streets,

Figure 73. Johnson City Comet, 2 February 1905.

$30.00 Buys This

sommerd| QUAVTENED O WANTEL

With glass 18x36 in.
and Tile and Grate.

Aaeeet | \We Have Others

From $17.50 up to $35.00,
including Tile and Grates.

BRADING & MARSHALL

Lumber and Building Material,
Buffalo and Cherry Streets,

7 (L
4 9

¥ 1
Figure 74. Johnson City Comet, 20 April 1905.
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17 December 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“Lumber Firm has been Incorporated. The Brading — Marshall Lumber Company has been
incorporated with $50,000 capital stock. The incorporators are J.E. Brading, C.L. Marshall, S.L.
Browder, A.D. Marshall and T.A. Cox.”

1 January 1909. The Lumber Trade Journal.
“Brading — Marshall Lumber Company, Johnson City, Tenn., [Incorporated] $50,000
capital, by J.E. Brading, C.L. Marshall, S.L. Browder and others.”®

10 January 1909. Hardwood Record.

“Brading & Marshall, a well-known lumber concern of Johnson City, has just been
reorganized, with a capital stock of $50,000, as the Brading & Marshall Lumber Company, J.E.
Brading, formerly a Bristol banker, is president, and O.K. Marshall is secretary and treasurer.”*®

15 April 1909. The St. Louis Lumberman.

“The Brading — Marshall Lumber Company of Johnson City, Tenn., are completing their
lumber house at that point. The buildings will be of large dimensions and immense capacity.
Sidings have been built into it, so that three lines of railway will enter it for loading and unloading
shipments.”?® The main entrance to this new facility was on East Main Street, with the building
reaching Jobe Street, where the railroad spur entered the building. This facility will be addressed
in a later documentary history.

6 May 1909. Johnson City Comet.

“Severe Storm Blows this Way. The severe storm that swept Middle Tennessee last week
hit Johnson City comparatively light Friday evening about five o’clock, going almost directly east.
A great many trees were uprooted and several houses damaged, the big barn on Buffalo street
recently vacated by Brading & Marshall was unroofed...”

4.2.3. Barton Implement, Feed & Seed Company, at this location 1912 to at least 1928

(ﬁ

a a

ToOur Customers

We are now located on Buffalo street, opposite the Summers-Parrott Hardware Co., in the
building formerly occupied by the Brading-Marshall Lumber Co. We now have our business
under one roof and are better situated to supply tne wants of our customers than ever before.
Our lines will be greatly enlarged and our repair department will receive special attention. We
carry at all times everything the farmer needs to plant and all he needs to harvest it with. We
appreciate your generous trade in the past and hope to see you often at Implement Hall.

o W. J. Barton Implement Feed and Seed Company.

Bulfalo Streel. Both Phones 69

Figure 75. Johnson City Comet, 25 January 1912.%
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To Farmers and
Country Merchants

—— — —— —

On Saturday March 16th, 1912, we will formally open our new place of busi-
ness on Buffalo street opposite Summers-Parrott Hardware Co.  We will have on
display one of the largest lines of farming implements to be tound in Upper East
Tennessee and we extend a cordial invitation to all our farmer friends to be pres-
ent at this opening. To make it worth your while we will positively give each
and every one a chance on one of the following valuabl: prizes:

One Lamons 2 horse wagon

One John Deere all steel stag plow

One 10-18 Osborne disc harrow complete with trucks and tongue

One 1 row Hoosier corn planter

One No. 40 Oliver chilled steel beam plow

Ten bags Virginia-Carolina Chemical Co. 8-2-7 fertilizer—potato,
] bag to a person

Two 1-2 bushels stock food

One 251b. pail poultry food

One Studebaker Jr. wagon

No purchase is required to enter for the above prizes. Come in nd tell use
vour wants, register your name, give us your address and your name may be
drawn first.

We are headquarters for the following leading lines

I. H. C. Gasoline Engines. John Deere and Oliver Suiky Plows.
Meadows Corn Mills. John Deere and Oliver Riding Cul-
Oshorne Disc Harrows. tivators.

Deering Mowers and Binders Oliver Chilled Plows and Repairs.
Deering Binder Twine. Hoosier 1 and 2 Row Corn Planters.
Kemp Manure Spreaders. Empire and Sup:rior Wheat Drills,

Columbus, Lamon, Studebaker and
Davenport Wagons

W. J. Barton Imp. Feed and Seed Co.
Buffalo Street Johnson City, Tenn.

Figure 76. Johnson City Comet, 7 March 1912.
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Haying Tools

Deering !flul mower

The way to get full vaiue forJonr hay crop is to use
Deering hay tools, Thousands farmers can testify to
the excellent results obtained from using Deering mowers,
yakes, stackers and tedders. They are reliable machines,
and will do the same work for you that they have done for
other fermers we have sold in your community, Come in
and sce us about a Deering machine next time you are in
town. You don't have to buy,but you may lcarn some-
thing of value to you about raising bay. Youcan make our
store your headquarters when you are in town if yeu de-
sire. Ask for a Deering catalogue which explains details
better than we can.

HAVE YOU INVESTIGATED

the me-its of the Kemp 20th Century spreader?

Do you know why it is better than other spreaders?
r If you do not, let us explain the many superior features
“of Kemp 20th Century manuf® spreader const ruction.

Wo want to show you the convenient arrangement of
levers.

Wo want to show you the simple apron-iriving
mechaaism,

Wo want to explain the exceptional merits of the henter
drive 1od we want to explain to you wherein the Kemp 20th
Century is superior to all other spreaders.

Drop ing get a catulogue.  Let us talk the matter over,
It will take only & fow minutes of your time and it will proba~
bly be the means of saving you money. Y

W. J. Barton, Imp. Feed & Seed Co. |

——

Figure 77. Johnson City Comet, 21 March 1912.
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Unlon Stock oo

’ MM“ AR e

f{l for horses, cattle, sheep and l.ugs.

Union Pouity Food

| for chickens, ducks and turkevs.

Every package sold under a
guarantee by the Union Stock
Food Company.

W. J. Barton Implement Feed
and Seed Company.

Implement Hall Buffalo street
Both Phones

Figure 78. Johnson City Comet, 18 April 1912.
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Get the Last Mill

You keep a dairy for profit, not for pleasure.

You want every ¢ent there is in your milk,

There is only one way you can get full value from the
butter fat contained in the milk. Use a cream separator,

We handle the best cream separator on the market—
the Bluebell

It skims cleanly, runs easily, and it is extremely
durable.

It is built for years of service, and it will give you
entire satisfaction.

We want you to know more about the merits of this
machine and if you will call, we will
explain in detail wherein the Blue-
bell excels.

If you are not ready to buy,
call and get a catalogue. It is filled
with valuable information and it will
tell you why the Bluebell cream sepa-
rator is superior to all others.

Won't you call today?

W. J. Barton, Imp. Feed & Seed Co.

Figure 79. Johnson City Comet, 18 April 1912.

198



HITCH UP

40 @ GOOD MACHINE,

The question of what machine to harvest with is an

important one.

An incorrectly constructed binder will not get all the grain,
but will leave a large part in the ficld— good crows’ feed,
but a dead loss to you.

Your harvest will be most profitable if you

HITCIT UP

TO @

| DEERING MACEINE

W. J. Barton, Imp. Feed & Sced Co.

Figure 80. Johnson City Comet, 25 April 1912.
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See us in regard to gasoline engines,”
both tractors and threshers. Theshing
machines of all kinds.

Barton Implement, Feed & Se@_ﬁo.

Figure 81. Johnson City Comet, 25 April 1912.

200



:/J ust Received

A carload of Studebaker
and Brown buggies. We
have in stock ten 2 3-4 Stude-
baker wagons that we will
sell at close prices as we
want to close them out at
once. ['hey are just the right
size for fa,rm wagons

We are
headq uar-

ters for the

Vn'gmxa-Carolma Fertilizers.
iow is the Tine to Spray

We carry the best line in
the city of sprayers and spray
materials, lime-sulphur, arsen-
of lead etc.

You Cannot Raise Fruit Without Spraying any longE

W. J. Barton Implement, Feed
and Seed Company.

Implement Hall Buffalo sireet
Both Phones.

Figure 82. Johnson City Comet, 2 May 1912.
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The Light Draft Drill

‘ V‘)-;" - =,

f

JHE 8088341

“v
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The Superior fertilizer drill is
the up-to-date machine. 1ts valu-
able and exclusive features appeal
at once to operators who desire
accurate working qualities with
all conditions of soil, seed and fer-
tilizer. Neat in design, strong in
construction, but light in weight,
living strength has replaced clum-
sy, heavy frames. The vital parts
of a graindrill arethe furrow open-
ers and the feeds. Superior con-
struction supplies long life.

W. J. Barton Implement, Feed
and Seed Company.

Implement Hall Buffalo street
Both Phones. .

Big Stock on Han‘d

Figure 83. Johnson City Comet, 8 August 1912.
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rinest Prospect For Wheat in Many Years!

Get ready to take care of your wheat by buying the light-running

Deering Binder and Deering Twine

We have a carload of each in stock. See the COLUMBUS Improved
Wagon before you buy. Nothing equal to the IHC Oil Engine for ser-
vice and economy. Oliver Riding Cultivators and Osborne five-foot Cul-
— tiyators. We also have the Cudahy meat account, with the best prices
A \V and best meat.

e W, ), BARTON IMPLEMENT. FEED AND SEED 0.

make your Ll SO nh ym

Jémmmiiiiimmmﬁiiiiiiii bR LR B b b kb dad 1A 433

Figure 84. Johnson City Comet, 4 June 1914.

W. J. BARTON FEED & IMP. CO.
Dealer in Famer’s Supplies

ik

Y )

éar;«éziiéiié&ii&ééiiiiiéé&ii&iiiééié’é

Gttt

g4

k

.*/-

' Flgure 85. Johnson Cltv Comet, 7 December 1916.

21 March 1912. Johnson City Comet.

“The Barton Implement, Feed and Seed Company, of this place, held their formal opening
Saturday, March 16. For some time the opening had been advertised and when the day arrived the
crowd that surrounded Implement Hall, as the company’s new home is called, was one of the
largest that ever has been assembled in the city outside of the 4™ of July and ‘circus day.” The
company has advertised that they would give away about twenty prizes...

All the time in the big building which the company occupies the demonstrations were going
on and the people were being shown the greatest assortment of up-to-date farm machinery that has
ever been seen in East Tennessee. There were seven experts from as many factories on the floor
exhibiting machinery, besides the force employed by the Barton Company.

The exhibit which was the most attractive and the one that caused the most comment was
the Universal stone c rusher, which was run by a one-horse power International Harvester gasoline
engine. This crusher is certainly a wonderful machine and crushed rocks from eight inches in size
down to dust...”?

September 1924. National Miller.
“Johnson City — W.J. Barton & Sons have purchased the J.A. Scott & Sons Flour Mills and
will operate.”?*

Note: “According to Ray Stahl’s book, ‘Greater Johnson City — A Pictorial History, 1983,
[William J.] Barton served in the office [of Mayor of Johnson City] from 1927 — 29. A 1928 City
Director reveals that he was president of Barton Implement and Feed Co., located on Buffalo at
Cherry...”?
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4.3. Businesses on the Northeast Corner of Buffalo and Ash Streets
Ford Building, 1919 to 1984 (or 1998)
(Maps and Figures)

Lockett Brothers Company (Wholesale Grocers), at this location, 1919 until at least 1920

Wentworth Bakery, mentioned 1922

Johnson City Bakery, mentioned 1925
Seaver’s Bakery, 1925 — 1927

Grocers’ Baking Company, at this location, 1927 — 1959
Rainbo Baking Company, at this location, 1959 to at least 1967
Sears, Roebuck & Company warehouse, dates not given
City storage facility, ? — 1981
Demolished 19847 Still standing in 1998?
Google Maps, in 2024, shows a parking lot at this location

This building was served by the dual-gauge trackage on Cherry Street from
c. 1908, until at least the 1930s.
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Map 15B (reproduced here for convenience). A detail of the “Barton Implement Feed & Seed Co” and the
“Lockett Bros Co. Whol. Gro.”, which was built in 1919, on the southeast corner of Buffalo and West Cherry
streets, in February 1920.2° See Map 15 for an image of the area around this building. The Lockett Brothers
Company was previously located on East Market Street, where its facility was destroyed by fire in 1918.%7
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Figure 86. An aerial photograph (taken 1 March 1947), looking north at the area around Buffalo, Jobe, Spring and Ashe streets. Note the Summers
Hardware & Supply Company building at the lower left, with the Harr building (behind it), the McCown — Mahoney building, Hannah Brothers
building, Ferguson Transfer Company building, and the Seaver building (from left to right) along Jobe Street. Also note the Grocers’ Baking Company
in the Ford building, east across Buffalo Street from Summers Hardware & Supply Company with signs reading: “Honey-Krust Bread”, and that the
Barton Implement, Feed & Seed Company (previously to the left, north, of the Ford building) is gone and apparently replaced by a parking lot.?8
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Figure 87. A view of the Grocers’ Baking Company in the Ford building with the “Honey-Krust Bread” signs on 1 March 1947.2°
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Figure 88. “Ford Building, corner of Buffalo and Ashe Streets, photographed before 1927, was photographed from the southwest corner of Buffalo
and Ashe streets, looking northeast.® The front of the building faces Buffalo street (note the trolley tracks), the south side is along Ashe street on the
right of this photograph. “The ‘D. Ford Building, built in 1919, over years housed Lockett Brothers Wholesale Grocery, a Honey Krust Bakery, a
warehouse for Sears, Roebuck & Co. and a city storage facility.” Note the south side of the Barton Implement, Feed & Seed Company on the left of

this photograph. Reportedly, the Ford building was demolished in around 1984, however, see Figure 90.3! See Map 15B.
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Figure 89. A view of the E. T & W.N. C depot, Iooklng south from the tracks of the Southern Rallway Note the Grocers Baklng Company building
with the sign reading “Honey Krust Bread” on it, on the left side of the photograph (see figures 87, 88, and 90), as well as the Clinchfield Depot and
the “Summers Hardware & Supply Co.” building (this name came into use in 1936), both in the left center of this photograph. Historian Johnny
Graybeal captioned this photograph: “Here is the Johnson City depot in its last years as a passenger station. Several buses stop here now daily, but no
trains. Note the curved supports for the lower section of the roof. It appears that the brick was painted Pearl Gray and the trim left dark. The vehicles
suggest the early fifties. George Allison Collection.” Another source captioned this photograph: “1930 View with Buses”.®
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Figure 90. June 1998 — Downtown Johnson City “One of the many painted building signs in Johnson City, this one along Cherry Street.””® This structure
appears to be the old “Ford Building”/“Honey-Krust Bread” building, which was sequentially occupied by the Lockett Brothers Company (Wholesale
Grocer), Seaver’s Bakery, and the Grocers” Baking Company (the makers of Honey-Krust Bread). The Ford building was just south of the Barton
Implement, Feed & Seed Company building and was directly across the street from the Summers Hardware and Supply Company (which is visible in
the right background). See figure 87, 88 and 89. Another report indicates that the Ford building was demolished in 1984.34
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4.3. Businesses on the Northeast Corner of Buffalo and Ash Streets
Ford Building, 1919 to 1984 (or 1998)
(Maps and Figures)

Lockett Brothers Company (Wholesale Grocers), at this location, 1919 until at least 1920
Wentworth Bakery, mentioned 1922
Johnson City Bakery, mentioned 1925

4.3.1. Seaver’s Bakery, 1925 — 1927

4.3.2. Grocers’ Baking Company, at this location, 1927 — 1959

Rainbo Baking Company, at this location, 1959 to at least 1967

Sears, Roebuck & Company warehouse, dates not given
City storage facility, ? — 1981
Demolished 19847 Still standing in 1998?
Google Maps, in 2024, shows a parking lot at this location

This building was served by the dual-gauge trackage on Cherry Street from
c. 1908, until at least the 1930s.

4.3.1. Seaver’s Bakery, 1925 — 1927

Tennessee: A History, 1673 — 1932

“O. Ralph Seaver — In 1909 a young man came to Johnson City from the coal fields of
southwestern Virginia, where he had been engaged since he was sixteen years of age. He was O.
Ralph Seaver, a native of Tennessee, and, and since coming here he has built up what is conceded
to be the finest and most prosperous enterprise of its sort in Johnson City. The plant is now known
as the Grocers’ Baking Company, Incorporated, and is the outgrowth of the old Wentworth Bakery
and consolidation with the Grocers’ Baking Company, of Louisville, Kentucky. Mr. Seaver is its
general manager and director. The establishment serves a territory that extends from Spruce Pine,
North Carolina, to the coal fields of Virginia, operates sixteen trucks for delivery, employs forty-
two hands and is equipped with the finest modern machinery and patented ovens. It manufactures,
in addition to bread, rolls, pies and pastry, its best known brands of bread being its ‘Honey Krust,’
‘Honey Kream’ and ‘Honey Fluff.’... For many years he was in charge of a commissary
department and in Norton, Virginia, became interested in a laundry business. He remained in that
region until 1925, when he came to Johnson City, where he purchased the Johnson City Bakery,
which had been the Wentworth, established in 1914. He remodeled the plant and changed its name
to Seaver’s Bakery, Incorporated, operating it as such until 1927, when he consolidated it with the
Grocers’ Baking Company, of Louisville, as noted, an enterprise which conducted a chain of four
bakeries, of which Mr. Seaver is manager and director...”*®

4.3.2. Grocers’ Baking Company, at this location, 1927 — 1959

8 December 1927. Manufacturers Record.
“Tenn., Johnson City — Grocers Baking Co., J. Williams Miller, Pres., 1455 S. Seventh St.,
Louisville, Ky., reported, plans establishing branch plant, acquired 2-story and basement, 70 x
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200-ft. building with an additional L; install about $100,000 machinery, initial capacity from 1500
to 200 loaves per hr.; also acquired business of Seavers Bakery; plant ready for operation about
April 1, 1928; R.O. Seaver to become manager.”®

29 December 1927. Manufacturers Record.

“Tenn., Johnson City — Grocers Baking Co., J. Williams Miller, Pres., 1455 S. Seventh St.,
Louisville, Ky., advises have leased large building; contracted for all wiring of the motors and
lights, hot and cold water and drainage; Baker — Perkins Co., Saginaw, Mich., placing all
machinery, etc.”¥’

i
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GROCERS BAKING CO., INC. :
: SUCCESSORS TO SEAVER'S BAKERY, INC. :
NEW LOCATION, BUFFAILO AND ASHE STS. i
! JOHNSON CITY, TENN. |
— @
| “We Welcome Your Iuspection” :
1 !
' T |
| Honey Krust, Butter Krust and Bonnie Kate |
! Salt Rising Bread
For Sale at Your Grocers !
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Figure 91. The Buffalo, 1928.%
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COMPLIMENTS

of the

HONEY-KRUST BAKERY

Manufacturers of

Honey-Krust Products

“Taste the Milk and Honey”

“Visitors Always Welcome”

il Al A A AP A A A A AP A A A AP A A A A A A AP AP A A A
Figure 92. The Chalk Line, 28 August 1930.%
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Have You Tried the Long Loaf of Honey-Krust Bread?

Six More Delicious Shices!

“Taste the Milk and Honey”

GROCERS BAKING COMPANY
The Honey-Krust Bakery

YOU ARE INVITED TO VISIT OUR PLANT AND SEE TONEY-KRUST MADE

o2

CorRNER BUFFALO AND ASH STREETS
PHoNE §123

Jouxnson City - TENNESSEE

Figure 93. The Buffalo, 1930.4°
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Honey-Krust Bread Is
Made With Golden Honey

GLISTENING pails of golden honey . . . fresh from the
orange groves of California . . that's what makes Honey-
Krust so indescribably better. . . Crisp nut-brown crust

Soft. white, iender center. . . Ask for a fresh-from-
the oven loaf of Honey-Krust today and taste the differ-

chce.

GROCERSBAKINGCO..#:tHONEY-KRUST

among our greatest assets.

We feel justifiable pride in our relation with Kingsport-—pride in the growth and progressive-
ness of this magnificent city, and pride in the fact that we are able to serve its citizens with
our bakery products. For many yvears HONEY-KRUST BREAD has been the choice of
Kingsport homes, and we regard the friendship and good will of the people of Kingsport as

_ We congratulate the people of Kingsport on the Sixteenth Anniversary of the incorporation

of their model young industrial city.

g S S BT R s

s

N
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HONEY KRUST IN THE MAKING
Interior View of Our Johnson City Plant

PLANT JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
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Honey-Krust Is Made
With Milk and Honey

For real economy and good, old-fashioned bread satis-

faction, ask your grocer TODAY for HONEY-KRUST -

mwmwdwlhwmm—
sliced or unsliced—fresh from the oven every day.

Figure 94. Kingsport Times, 26 February 1933.4



il PL

> in 1933. Note the building on the left of the
photograph, which was occupied by “Barton Implement Feed & Seed Co” in 1920.




Figure 94B. A detail of the Grocers’ Baking Company with “Honey Krust in the Making” “Interior
View of Our Johnson City Plant”.
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FOR 27 YEARS ...

Claude lL.eFever Has Been Delivering
Bread In ngsport Tennessee

Sl L TS RO !

™ .‘:‘,i ' N
Phoiu ol Clludo Lo!"wor and his Honey-Crust Truck

Claude Has Driven 540,000 Miles Without
A Serious Accident On His Bread Route

Best Wishes and Many Thanks L
To All Honey-Crust Customers. .

e Always Fresh
¢ Made With Honey

Next Time - - - Be Sure and Ask For--- e Here's Bread
At Its Very Best!

HONEY - KRUST

BREAD

Figure 95. Kingsport Times, 24 September 1949.4?
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Figure 96. A Honey Krust Bread truck in the 1950s.%3
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Table 2. “Directory of Industries Inspected, with No. Employes... Washington County — Johnson City”, for the Year Ending 31

December 1922.4

No. Employes
Style of Firm Business Over 16 Under 16
Male | Female | Male | Female
Wentworth Bakeries Bakery 7 1

Table 3. “Directory of Industries Inspected with Number of Employes... Washington County — Johnson City”, for the Year Ending 31

December 1925.4°

No. Employes
Style of Firm Business Over 16 Under 16
Male | Female | Male | Female
Johnson City Bakery Bakery 10 2

Table 4. “Directory of Industries Inspected with Number of Employes... Washington County — Johnson City”, for the Year Ending 31

December 1929.46

No. Employes
Style of Firm Business Over 16 Under 16
Male | Female | Male | Female
Grocers Baking Co. Bakery 27 2

Table 5. “Directory of Industries Inspected with Number of Employes... Washington County — Johnson City”, for the Year Ending 31

December 1930.#
No. Employes
Style of Firm Business Over 16 Under 16
Male | Female | Male | Female
Grocers Baking Co., Inc. Bakery 28 1

Table 6. “Location and List of Industries Inspected 1933... Washington County — Johnson City”, for the Year Ending 31 December

1933.%8
No. Employes
Style of Firm Business Over 16 Under 16
Male | Female | Male | Female
Grocers Baking Co., Inc. Wholesale Bakery 28 2

220




4.3.3. Rainbo Baking Company, at this location 1959 to at least 1967

14 June 1960 to 7 April 1967. Federal Trade Commission Decisions.

“Docket 7938. Complaint, June 14, 1960 — Decision, Apr. 7, 1967... The Federal Trade
Commission, having reason to believe that the above-named respondent [Campbell Taggart
Associated Bakeries, Inc.] has violated and is now violating the provisions of Section 7 of the
amended Clayton Act (U.S.C., Title 15, Section 18), and Section 5 of the Federal Trade
Commission Act (U.S.C., Title 15, Section 45)...

95. In May 1959, the assets of Grocers Baking Co. of Kentucky and its three wholly owned
subsidiary corporations were purchased from Grocers Baking Co. by eight corporate subsidiaries
of Campbell Taggart Associated Bakeries, Inc. (CX 115A-D). At the time of the purchase, Grocers
Baking Co., a Kentucky corporation, with headquarters in Louisville, Kentucky, (CX 115A),
operated bakeries in Louisville, Lexington, Bowling Green, Owensboro, and Paducah, Kentucky
(Tr. 3053-54). In addition, Grocers Baking Co. of Kentucky had two wholly owned subsidiaries,
Grocers Baking Co. of Johnson City, a Tennessee corporation, which operated a bakery in Johnson
City, Tennessee, and Grocers Baking Co. of Indiana, an Indiana corporation, which operated
bakery plants in New Albany and Bedford, Indiana. Grocers Baking Co. of Indiana, in turn, had a
wholly-owned subsidiary, Hi-Class Baking Co., with a baking plant in Evansville, Indiana (Tr.
3053-54)...

103. Campbell Taggart formed the Rainbo Baking Co. of Louisville, Kentucky, a
corporation, to acquire the assets of Grocers' Louisville, Kentucky, and New Albany, Indiana
baking plants. The Rainbo Baking Co. of Lexington, Kentucky, a corporation, was formed to
acquire the assets of Grocers’ baking plant at Lexington, Kentucky. The Rainbo Baking Co. of
Johnson City, a corporation, was formed to take over the assets of the Grocers’ plant at Johnson
City, Tennessee (Tr. 2644-48)...

116. Prior to the acquisition, the Johnson City baking plant was a wholly owned subsidiary
of Grocers, operating as the Grocers Baking Co. of Johnson City, Tennessee. The plant distributed
bread in the States of Virginia, Kentucky, Tennessee, and a small portion of North Carolina, with
depots located at Big Stone Gap, Virginia, and Morristown, Tennessee (CX 135A-B, 137; Tr.
3164). Prior to the acquisition, Grocers had purchased property on which it planned to erect a new
plant, which was estimated to cost between $650,000 and $700,000 (Tr. 3164, 3169-70). The area
of distribution from the plant was approximately forty miles, which was extended an additional
fifty miles through the use of depots (Tr. 4344). After the acquisition, the plant became the Rainbo
Baking Company of Johnson City, Tennessee. After the acquisition, the Johnson City plant
discontinued selling in North Carolina (Tr. 4335), and began selling in Richlands, Virginia (Tr.
4336). A new depot was established in Abingdon, Virginia (Tr. 4343-44).

117. After the acquisition of the Johnson City plant by Rainbo Baking Company, a
Campbell Taggart subsidiary, approximately $400,000 was expended on the plant, together with
additional sums for the overhaul of machinery used in the old plant (the rundown condition of this
plant was given by Mr. Hikes as one of the reasons for selling the assets of Grocers to subsidiaries
of Campbell Taggart; Tr. 3170, 4337-39). The Johnson City plant lost $6,840 on its operations for
1959 (CX 298B, 1. 70), and borrowed $550,000 from the First National Bank of Dallas (CX 298B,
1. 2). In 1960 an additional $175,000 was borrowed by this plant from the First National Bank in
Dallas (CX 298H, 1. 2). No dividends were paid during 1959, 1960, and 1961 to Campbell Taggart,
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owner of the remaining 95% of the outstanding common stock of this company (CX 298B, H, N,
1.73)...

It is ordered, That respondent Campbell Taggart Associated Bakeries, Inc., a corporation,
and its officers, directors, agents, representatives, employees, subsidiaries, affiliates, successors
and assigns within one year from the date this order becomes final shall divest absolutely and in
good faith all assets, properties, rights and privileges, tangible and intangible, including but not
limited to, all plants, equipment, trade names, trademarks and goodwill acquired by Campbell
Taggart Associated Bakeries, Inc., as a result of its acquisition of the stock share capital or assets
of the following named corporations... Grocers Baking Company, Louisville, Kentucky...
together with all plants, machinery, buildings, improvements, equipment and other property of
whatever description which has been added to the property of any of the above named corporations
by respondent, as may be necessary to restore each of them as an effective competitor in the lines
of commerce in which each of the respective acquired corporations were engaged at the time of
acquisition...”*®
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5. Businesses Between Spring and Buffalo Streets (east to west), along Jobe Street,
1891? — 1909
(Maps and Figures)
Big Spring Saloon (“Farmers Saloon?), by 18917 — 1903?
“L.H.P. Lusk’s storehouse,” 1889

New South Brewery and Ice Company Depot, 1899 — 1903?

Lusk Stable, by 1888 — 1891

Excelsior Livery Stable, 1888

T.P.A. Livery Stable, 1900 — 1903
Marion McMackin Livery?, 1905 — 1909
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Map 16. The area between Spring and Buffalo streets (east to west) and Jobe and Cherry streets (north to south), in January 1891. Note the “Big Spring”
and the “Sal.” (saloon), with its “W. R’m” (ware room) to its right (east), as well as the “Harr Block” of buildings, occupied by a grocery (“Gro.”) and
a hardware (Hardw.”) shop, on the southwest corner of Spring and Jobe streets, as well as the “Seaver Block” of buildings, occupied by “Paints &
Hardw.”, “Hardw. Oils, Varnish, &c.” (2" floor: Tailor), and “Vac.” (vacant, 2" floor: “Tin Shop™), on the southeast corner of Spring and Jobe streets.*
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Map 17. The area between Spring and Buffalo streets (east to west) and Jobe and Cherry streets (north to south), in May 1897. Note the changes in the
saloon and its attached buildings, as well as the changes in the occupants of the “Harr Block” and “Seaver Block” along Spring Street.>
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Map 18. The area between Spring and Buffalo streets (east to west) and Jobe and Cherry streets (north to south), in April 1903. Note the changes in the
saloon and its attached buildings. Note that the “New South Brewing Co” Beer Depot and W. Hos” have been built between the saloon and the “Harr
Block,” occupied by a “Produce Ho.” and a warehouse (“W. Ho0.”) on Spring Street. Also note the changes in the “Seaver Block,” occupied by
“Harness”, “Feed” and “Water Works Off. & Workshop”.5?

226



oy
/ . CAROLINA CILINCHEIELD &
E I A
gJOUOBE
= S N N o7
B— ~
=
s e
27
I/ °
Z D ©
/ Whol Mest
; g o
ﬂ WarRE Ho Y 40 2 i: :
. 2 Strorage L g
Jesti 1t Eadv g y
]
; K PR Jones & Co_
S% LUMBER YARD
__________ LINVERY
n e I SHED ]
i / 3 ‘
I g i 72 <
:: - e 27 208 s SO LR LN f/—xl %
Eoiem e CWPow £
in December 1908. Note that the “Big

I

Map 19. The area between Spring and Buffalo streets (east to west) and Jobe and Cherry streets (north to south),

Spring,” the “Big Spring” saloon and its associated buildings, the New South Brewing Company beer depot and the warehouse to the east of it, as well
as the “produce Ho.” of the “Harr Block” have all been removed. The “Harness” shop in the “Seaver Block™ has also been removed, with the remaining

buildings now occupied by “Whol. Meat” and “Storage.”>?
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Figure 97. “Downtown Johnson City (Aerial View)” looking east, with the Clinchfield depot and its curved
platform in the lower right corner. The center of this photograph includes the parking area east of the Clinchfield
depot, which was once occupied by the “Big Spring,” the “Big Spring” Saloon, New South Brewing Company
beer depot, and the “Harr Block” of buildings (on the southwest corner of Spring and Jobe streets). The area
bounded by Jobe and Ash streets (north to south) and Spring and Roan streets (east to west) appears to be largely
occupied by warehouses, including the Central Tobacco Warehouse (previously occupied by the Miller Brothers).
This area was once occupied by the “Seaver Block” and some residences. To the left of the Clinchfield depot is
the E.T. & W.N.C. depot (with a rare view of the north and west sides of the building). The light-colored building
of the Free Service Tire Company is above and to the left of the E.T. & W.N.C. depot and the Harr building is to
the right of the Free Service Tire Company building. This photograph was undated but appears to date to the
1940s or 1950s.>
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Figure 8. “Combine #15 Excursion Car at Johnson City”.% Based on the cars in the parking lot, on the right, this image appears to date to the 1930s
or 1940s.
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Figure 98A. A detail of the t;uildings along Cherry Street and east of Buffalo St
1920. The author has not been able to identify any of these buildings.

231




<
-

vy AN '
_,;‘ . : A L
” ; o1

Figure 99. “Railroad Collision, at the Clinchfield and ETWNC railroad between Roan [should read Buffalo] and Spring Streets, Johnson City. A train
hit a car, killing the driver. The railroad crossing watchman’s tower is visible just left of the boxcar in the right of the photograph™®’ This tower was on
Jobe Street, about half way between Spring and Roan streets. The presence of the Ferguson Transfer Company building and the trolley tracks probably
date this photograph to between 1925 and 1931. Also note the Hannah — Dosser building on the left. This photograph appears to predate that of Figure
98.
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Figure 99A. A detail showing the buildings along Cherry Street between Buffalo and Roan streets, with what appears to be the Miller Brothers building
at the southwest corner of Cherry and Roan streets, just to the right of the boxcar. Also note what appears to be a boxcar in front of the unidentified
building on the right.
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Figure 100. An aerial view of the area along Jobe Street on 19 April 1941. The area between Spring and Buffalo streets (east to west) and Jobe and
Cherry streets (north to south) appears to have been converted to parking. The area between Roan and Spring streets (east to west) and Jobe and Cherry
streets (north to south) appears to have been mostly occupied by warehouses. Also note that the trackage along Cherry Streets appears to have been

removed.%®
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Figure 101. An aerial view of the area along Jobe Street on 1 March 1947. The area between Spring and Buffalo streets (east to west) and Jobe and

Cherry streets (north to south) has been converted to parking.>® Note the tower (?) on Jobe Street, to the east (right) of Spring Street, perhaps indicating
that one of the Clinchfield safety towers remained until at least 1947. However, compare with Figure 100 from 1941, in which this tower does not
appear to be present.
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5.1. Big Spring Saloon (“Farmers Saloon”?), by 18917 — 19037
This business appears to have been served by dual-gauge trackage.
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Map 16A. This map from January 1891 depicts the “Big Spring” on the southeast corner of Buffalo
and Jobe streets. To the east of the spring is a 2-story building housing the brick “Big Spring” (?)

Saloon (“Sal.””) with an attached wood framed “W. R’m”, which appears to be an abbreviation for
“ware room”.
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Map 17A. A detail from May 1897. Note that brick structure is now a dwelling and the “Big
Spring” (?) Saloon is located in the attached wood-framed structure. Also note that an “iron clad”
“Beer Sto’g’e” building has been constructed adjacent to the saloon. Finally, note that it appears
that fences have been installed on the east and south of the Big Spring, as well as behind the saloon.
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Map 18B. A detail from April 1903. Note that the brick structure is now being used for storage and that the wood-framed “New South Brewing Co.”
Beer Depot has been constructed to the east. By December 1908, the “Big Spring,” “Storage,” “Big Spring” Saloon, “Beer Storage” and the “New
South Brewing Co.” Beer Depot would all be gone. The “New South Brewing Co.” beer depot will be addressed in the next section.
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Figure 113B. The lightly colored two-story building appears to be the “Big Spring Saloon” (identified, perhaps
mistakenly, in the caption with this photograph, as the “Farmers Saloon”), with a dark “Beer Sto’ge” structure
visible on the east side of the building, and a brick dwelling on the west side. The saloon and dwelling were built
before 1891. The building to its right appears to be the small shed that was located across Buffalo street on the
property with “Scattered Piles of Lumber” and which was built between 1891 and 1897 (see maps 16 and 17).
Also, note what may be rail cars in the right background as well as a smoke plume, which may have originated
from a locomotive near the union depot. Based on the Sanborn fire insurance map, this photographic appears to
date to between 1891 and 1903 (the May 1903 map indicates that the small shed by the lumber had been removed
by the time that map was made).
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At the
Big Spring SALOON

From morning till noon,

You get the best liquors and wine,
From noon until night,
You are treated all rvight,

For happy I'rank has the art down fine,

Pure goods for medicinal purposes, All the leading brands of tobaceo
and cigars,

e — T ——T S S A - — - o ———————

Figure 102. Johnson City Comet, 23 February 1899.

R ———————

PURE Goods. #

All Kinds of Brandies and Whiskies.

A Tull assortment of Domestic and Tmported Wines.: Mail
Orders filled by first train. Satisfaction Guaranteed.

Big Spring SALOON

Pure goods for medicinal purposes, All the leading brands of tobacco
and cigars,

T — — T s e e s e——

Figure 103. Johnson City Comet, 23 February 1899.
This advertisement ran until at least 13 July 1899.
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» ML Big SPRING SALM
XHRSON CITY TEN

Figure 104. Containers from “The Big Spring Saloon.”®°

26 February 1903. Johnson City Comet.

“Johnson City Dry. — The Legalized Saloon Must Go Hence From Johnson City... The
expected has taken place and on schedule time. The temperance bacilli has been at work in Johnson
City for years and when the opportunity presented itself those inoculated swept everything before
them. We have frequently said that Johnson City has fewer drinking men than any town in the
state, but must confess that we thought there were more than eleven. Those eleven fellows
sustained seven saloons with what little assistance they got from neighboring towns and sustained
them well...”

7 May 1903. Johnson City Comet.

“Barrooms Leaving. One by one the saloons are closing. T.A. O’Donnell closed Thursday
under litigation and M. McGinley’s license expired Friday. It is understood that Geo. W. Holmes
will go to Knoxville at once and that will leave only three saloons in the city.”®*

15 October 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“Work Progressing on Industrial Line. The C., C. & O. line through the city is progressing
rapidly. The steam shovel finished the excavation from Roan street to the big spring Tuesday and
is now working east of Division street... The entire line through the city is covered with men and
it soon will be completed. Buildings along the route are being torn away and the giant oaks at the
big spring have given way to the woodman’s axe and the spring will soon be closed to the eye of
man and the foot of goose forever. Orders have been issued for the razing of 31 houses at once that
are in the way of the tracks through the city.”
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5.2. “L.H.P. Lusk’s storehouse,” 1889
This business appears to have been served by dual-gauge trackage.

12 September 1889. Johnson City Comet.

“The alarm of fire was sounded Monday shortly after noon, and our patriotic fire-fighters
made haste, with bucket in hand, to the scene of the fire. It was only a slight blaze and was soon
put out. A spark from an engine on the E.T. & W.N.C.R.R. set fire to the roof of L.H.P. Lusk’s
storehouse near the Big Spring, or that is supposed to be the origin. Our facilities for fighting fire
are few and very poor. It might be well for the board to take the matter under advisement.” Note,
the author has not been able to determine the precise location of this warehouse
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5.3. New South Brewery and Ice Company Depot, 1899 — 1903?
This business appears to have been served by dual-gauge trackage.
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Map 18C. A detail from April 1903. The “New South Brewing Co. Beer Depot” was built in 1901 on Jobe Street, between the “Big Spring Saloon”

and an unidentified warehouse. The beer depot measured approximately 35 x 35 feet. This building probably ceased being used as a beer depot in 1903,
when Johnson City went “dry.” In any case, this building was removed by December 1908.
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5.3. New South Brewery and Ice Company Depot, 1899 — 1903?
This business appears to have been served by dual-gauge trackage.

2 February 1899. Johnson City Comet.

“Will Enlarge Business. Mr. Wm. Walbrattch, of Middlesboro, Ky., was in the city last
week. Mr. Walbrattch is the president of New South Brewing and Ice Co. that has a branch here
under the management of M.R. Miller. He was here to look after his interests and incidentally to
increase his already lucrative business in this section. This company manufactures the celebrated
Crystal Pale and Pinnacle beers and no purer or better article of the kind is upon the market. He is
a pleasant gentleman and made many friends in a business and social way while in the city. He
told The Comet he was anxious to reach home Monday to hear ‘Our Bob’ lecture Monday night.
We inferred from what he said that if there was anything wrong with the Governor’s flow of
language the New South Brewery was at his command.”

21 February 1899. Johnson City Comet.

“President Walbrecht, of the Middleboro Brewery, was in the city last week. While here
he leased a piece of land near the narrow gauge road, and will erect at once a modern cold storage
building. This company will not only supply the products of its brewery but will furnish the city
ice during the summer.”

Drink the celebrated |
“Bock” beer —on tap
at all saloons.

(L BOCK,“

“Pinnacle” and

"Crystal Pale” beer
at all saloons.

"Crystal Pale” and
"Pinnacle” beer at all
salooxls.

Figure 106. Johnson City Comet, 11 April 1901.

8 August 1901. Johnson City Comet.
“The New South Brewing and Ice Company is building a cold storage room on the Narrow
Gauge, just back of Steven’s Bro.’s poultry house.”
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Call'for%
Pinnacle
Bottle Beer

This Beer has won its wa to the snmmit of ex-
cellence through its fine QUA ITY and FLAVOR.
Besides being a delightful beverage it has splendid
TONIO properties, and is absolutely pure, Give it
a trinl, Brewed and bottled by the

NEW SOUTH BREWING AND ICE CO., Middlesboro, l].

For sale in Johnson City by all duleu.

Pmnacle
~ Malt Exiract

This Beer has won its way to the summit of ex-
cellence through its fine QUALITY and FLAVOR,
Besides being a delightful beverage it has splendid
TONIC properties, and is absolutely pure. (five it
o trinl, Brewed and bottled by the

NEW SOUTH BREWING AND ICE CO., Middleshoro, Ky,
TFor gale in Johuson City by all dealers.

Flgure 108. Johnson City Comet, 19 September 1901
This advertisement ran until at least 16 January 1902.
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To her husband’s neck, imploring him to buy her some more
of the celebrated ‘‘Pinnacle Malt Extract,” dl:(in “Hubby,
I nover felt better and stronger than while drinking this fa-
mous food-tonio.” A concentrated liquid extract of the
choicest Barley-Malt and Hcps—nourishing, digestiye, in-
vigorating. Brewed and bottled only by

“ NEW SOUTH BREWING AND ICE CO:, Widdlesbero, Ky,

Figure 109. Johnson City Comet, 24 October 1901.

20 September 1901. American Brewers’ Review.

“Tennessee. — The New South Brewing & Ice Company is building a beer depot at Johnson
City.”®®

Note: The New South Brewing and Ice Company facility in Johnson City was probably closed in
1903, when Johnson City went “dry.”
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5.4. Lusk Stable Building

Lusk Stable, 1888 — 1891
Excelsior Livery Stable, 1888
T.P.A. Livery Stable, 1900 — 1903
Marion McMackin Livery?, 1905 — 1909

This building was on Cherry Street, between Spring and Buffalo streets.
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Map 16B. A livery on Cherry Street, adjacent to the “Big Spring” and a saloon, in January 1891.
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Map 17B. A livery on Cherry Street, adjacent to the “Big Spring” and the “Big Spring” (?) Saloon,
in May 1897. Note that it appears that fences have been installed on the east and south of the Big
Spring, as well as behind the saloon and west of the livery.
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Map 18D. The T.P.A. Livery in April 1903. Note the addition of the “K.P. Jones & Co” lumber yard and the
“New South Brewing Co” Beer Depot, to the west and north of the livery.
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Map 19B. The (Marion McMackin?) livery in December 1908. Note that the “Big Spring,” “Storage,” “Big
Spring” Saloon, “Beer Storage” and the “New South Brewing Co.” Beer Depot have all been removed. The livery
would be removed in January 1909 and the “K.P. Jones & Co” buildings, except the brick one, would also be
removed, probably in 1909. The brick building was used by the Clinchfield as a temporary ticket office in 1908,
and was not removed until sometime between 1913 and 1920.
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5.4.1. Excelsior Livery Stable, 1888

20 December 1888. Johnson City Comet.

“Jas. Scalf has moved his Livery Stable to the Lusk stable on Cherry Street and having a
large stable he will increase his stock and will be glad to see his friends in his new quarters.”

TAS. SCALF,

| . A l
R
L6 0y {
] !
)
4 v
]
'

'JT19Y15 AddAIl

EAt L. 5I0OR

. oo o , ' "
i Or—— = - ‘

Hacks for Drummers a Spccialty';‘ e
y ‘e " w bu on R
Having adied n numby rof good, peliabl (as well as w31 sh) horses, also new 1
phm".on*..l(':‘ ",? iivery business I inke pl wsian Lol Jormdng the public that I can offer them a®
wood aucominodation ae any stable in the State  Give me » trinl and

1 WILL CERTAINLY PLEASE YOU.

Figure 110. Johnson City Comet, 20 December 1888.

|

1 October 1891. Johnson City Comet.

“Sheriff’s Sale. — Hazen, Lotspeich and Thomas vs. L.H.P. Lusk et al. By virtue of a Vendi
Exponas issued by S.H.L. Cooper, Clerk of the Law Court for Washington County, at Johnson
City, Tenn., by order of said Court, dated Oct. 414, 1891, | will on Saturday, November 21%, 1891
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at the Court House door in Johnson City, Tenn., offer for cash in hand, all the right, title, claim
and interest that L.H.P. Lusk has in and to the following described real estate, in Johnson City, to
wit: 1 stable and lot of land bounded as follows: South by Cherry street, North by E.T. & W.N.C.
R.R.; West by R.J Lusk and Campbell heirs; East by L.H.P. Lusk; fronting 74 feet of Cherry street,
and running back 166 feet to the E.T. & W.N.C.R.R., to satisfy a judgment that Hazen, Lotspeich
and Thomas recovered against before H.C. Hart, Esq., on the 2d day of Dec. 1890... J.I. Hawkins,
Sheriff. This 20" day of Oct. 1891...”

5.4.2. T.P.A. Livery Stable, 1900 — 1903

25 January 1900. Johnson City Comet.

“‘Bill” Snapp, the most popular liveryman that ever sent out a vehicle, is back in harness.
He is managing the T.P.A. Livery Stable on Cherry St. Thos. Turner is the proprietor, and your
‘Uncle Bill’ is on hand to accommodate his friends with any kind of a turnout desired. An
advertisement for the stable appears elsewhere in this issue.” See Map 18D.

W. C. SNAPP, Manager.
THOS. TURNER, Proprietor,

Vehicles for all purposes, special attention to
Commercial Travelers,

, Stable Cherry St. "Phone 73.

Figure 111. Johnson City Comet, 25 January 1900.

Similar advertisements ran until at least 17 January 1901.

1 November 1900. Johnson City Comet.

“Stable Opening. Snapp & Co. are moving into their new stable on the corner of Buffalo
and Cherry streets. It is one of the finest stables in East Tennessee and will be opened next Monday
night with great eclat. The public generally are invited to be present. At 7:30 p.m. there will be a
ladies riding contest in the rotunda of the stable. The winner will receive a handsome silk umbrella.
It will be an interesting occasion.”
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5.4.3. Marion McMackin Livery?, 1905 — 1909

A Row Livery Statle

May 1st I will siart a first
class Livery at my stable
on Cherry Street, with an
entirely new outfit, Give
me your trade.

Marion McMackin.

Phone 139,  JohnsonCity, Tenn,

e s .+ .+ t—— e — ———

Figure 112. Johnson City Comet, 27 April 1905.
This advertisement ran until at least 11 May 1905.
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21 January 1909. Johnson City Comet.
“The old [T.P.A./MacMackin] livery barn on Cherry street has been torn down to make
room for the tracks of the C., C. & O. Thus does the march of eternal progress push onward.”
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6.0. Trackside Businesses on Spring Street, Between Jobe and Cherry Streets, 1891 — 1910
(Maps and Figures)

“Harr Block,” Southwest Corner of Spring and Jobe Streets, 1890 — 1910
John E. Harr’s store house, 1890
Cigar Factory, 1891, 1893
Steven Brothers (Poultry), 1899

W.H. Henderson’s store house, 1890
Stevens Brothers (Poultry), 1903

“Seaver Block,” Southeast Corner of Spring and Jobe Streets, 1890 — 1910
Seaver and Summers (Hardware), 1890 — 1893
Johnson City Meat Market (?), 1890
Faucette & Mountcastle (Wholesale), 1891
Crumley & Pierce (Tin Manufacturers), 1891 — 1892
Lyle & Summers (Hardware), 1893 — 1894
Watauga Water Company, 1894 — 1908?

“J.S. Galliher & Company” (Tin Manufacturers), 1897 — 1898
C.W. Seaver (Harness Manufacturer), 1893 — 1908
“W.C. Snapp and Tate L. Earnest” (carriage repository), 1900
Pierce Brothers (Tin Manufacturers), 1902 — 1903
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Map 10B. A composite map of the buildings along Spring Street, between East Main and Cherry

streets, in 1891.%4
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Map 11B. A composite map of the buildings along Spring Street, between East Main and Cherry
streets, in 1897.%
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Map 12C. A composite map of the buildings along Spring Street, between East Main and Cherry
streets, in 1903.5¢
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Map 13C. A composite map of the buildings along Spring Street, between East Main and Cherry
streets, in 1908.%” Note the building depicted in blue near the center of this image. This concrete
block building was constructed for C.W. Seaver to replace his harness shop, on the southeast corner

of Spring and Jobe streets (see Map 12C), which was demolished to as part of the construction of
the Clinchfield through downtown Johnson City.

.
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Map 14C. A composite map of the buildings along Spring Street, between East Main and Cherry
streets, in 1913.%
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Map 15C. A composite map of the buildings along Spring Street, between East Main and Cherry
streets, in 1920.5°
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Map 16C. A detail of the Harr and Seaver blocks on Spring Street, between Jobe and Cherry streets, in January 1891.7°
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Map 17C. A detail of the Harr and Seaver blocks on Spring Street, between Jobe and Cherry streets, in May 1897.7
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Map 18E. A detail of the Harr and Seaver blocks on Spring Street, between Jobe and Cherry streets, in April 1903.7
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Figure 113 “Farmers Saloon, Downtown Johnson City, Tenn., c. 1920,” looking west along Jobe Street. Note E.T. & W.N.C. boxcar
#64. A date of c. 1920 does not appear to be supportable, see Figure 113A, below, which supports a date between 1891 and 1903.7
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Figure 113A. The first building on the left (obscured by the boxcar) appears to be part of the “Seaver Block ” which contained a “Feed” shop, the
Seaver “Harness” shop and the “Water Works Off. & Work Shop” in 1897 (from north to south). By 1903, the Seaver “Harness” shop and the “Feed”
shop had changed places (see maps 17C and 18E). The “Seaver Block” was built in 1890 and was located on the southeast corner of Jobe and Spring
streets. The second building to the right appears to be the wood-framed iron-clad building that was built as part of the “Harr Block” in 1890 and
contained a warehouse and a cabinet shop in 1897, and which was located west across Spring Street from the Seaver Block. By 1903, the “Harr Block”
was occupied by a “Produce Ho.” and a “W. Ho.” (from north to south). The third building, lightly colored, appears to be the “Big Spring Saloon”
(identified, perhaps mistakenly, in the caption with this photograph, as the “Farmers Saloon”), with a dark “Beer Sto’ge” structure visible on the east
side of the building, and a brick dwelling on the west side. The saloon and dwelling were built before 1891. The fourth building appears to be the small
shed that was located across Buffalo street on the property with “Scattered Piles of Lumber” and which was built between 1891 and 1897 (see maps
16 and 17). Also, note what may be rail cars in the right background as well as a smoke plume, which may have originated from a locomotive near the
union depot. Based on the Sanborn fire insurance map, this photographic appears to date to between 1891 and 1903 (the May 1903 map indicates that
the small shed by the lumber had been removed by the time that map was made).
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Map 18F. This map depicts the relationship between the “Seaver Block” and the residences to its east in 1903, with the photograph in Figure 114.
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Figure 114. Another photograph of ET. & W.N. C Boxcar #64 WhICh appears to have been taken at about the same time as that in Figure 113. Note
that the home near the center of the photograph appears to match the plan of the right (easternmost) home depicted on Map 18F, in particular note the
gap between the two fences. Also, note that the track arrangement, with two narrow gauge tracks (one with a narrow gauge box car #64 on it) in the
foreground and two dual-gauge tracks behind them, matches that shown on Map 12.7° See also Figure 113.
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Figure 115. An aerial view of the area along Jobe Street on 1 March 1947. The area between Roan and Spring streets (east to west) and Jobe and Cherry
streets (north to south) appears to have been mostly occupied by warehouses.”
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6.1 “Harr Block,” Southwest Corner of Spring and Jobe Streets, 1890 — 1910

9 January 1890. Johnson City Comet.

“John Harr put a force of hands at work Monday on his new store house on Spring Street,
near the narrow Gauge railroad. He will build a store house 30 x 100 and W.H. Henderson, R.J.
Lusk and Jas. Scalf, will build next to him, making a block of four nice store houses. G.C. Seaver
will build on the opposite corner at an early day.” Note, the Johnosn City Comet reporter seems to
have misunderstood, as only two store houses were built in this Harr Block.

30 January 1890. Johnson City Comet.

“J.E. Harr’s store house previously mentioned is nearing completion.

W.H. Henderson is building a store room 25 x 100 feet, on Spring street, adjoining J.E.
Harr’s new building.”"’

13 February 1890. Johnson City Comet.

“A little 5-year old son of Chas. Taylor while climbing about in the new store house of
W.H. Henderson on Spring street, fell from the second story sleepers and caught on the sleepers
of the first floor, a distance of 12 feet, Tuesday. The little fellow was picked up more dead than
alive and was taken home and medical aid summoned. He was not seriously hurt as at first feared,
and is doing well now.”

24 April 1890. Johnson City Comet.

“Started with a Rush. — A List of Factories, Hotels, Business and Dwelling Houses
Completed and Under Construction Since January 1%, 1890. — Nearly a Million Dollars Already
Spent in Building... John Harr, Store house... [$]2,000... A.P. [W.H.?] Henderson, Store house...
[$]2,000...”

12 March 1891. Johnson City Comet.

“J.E. Harr, a prominent citizen of Johnson City, has bought out ‘The World’s Cigar
Manufacturing Company,’ heretofore conducted by Wm. Simpson at this place, and will carry on
a more enlarged and extensive business in the future.”

9 April 1891. Johnson City Comet.

“J.E. Harr’s cigar factory was put into full blast Monday by a good force of hands. Mr.
Harr is a hustler of no mean effort not only to supply the city trade, but to place his fine goods on
other markets. He employs none but expert makers and uses nothing but first-class goods.”

268



Table 8. Ap

arent Occupants of the “Harr Block,” Southwest Corner of S

ring and Jobe Streets, January 1890 to 1909 (?)

216 Spring Street

217 Spring Street

“John Harr put a force of hands at work Monday on his

“W.H. Henderson is building a store room 25 x 100

January 1890 new store house on Spring Street, near the narrow Gauge feet, on Spring street, adjoining J.E. Harr’s new
railroad. He will build a store house 30 x 100...” building.”
January 1891 “Gro.” “Hardw.”
April 1891 “J.E. Harr’s cigar factory”
“Martin I. Gump yesterday opened up a full line of
May 1893 vehicle§, farm _implementg and the Iike..._ His warehou_se
and office are in the old cigar factory building on Spring
street and the narrow gauge.”
June 1894 Auctioned
May 1897 “W. Ho.” “Cabinet Shop”
December 1899 | Stevens Brothers (produce and poultry)
April 1903 “Produce Ho” “W. Ho.”
By July 1903 Stevens Brothers
December 1908 | Demolished by this time “Ware Ho.”
1913 Demolished, probably in 1909
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- J. E. HARR,

Manulacturer snd Wholesale Deal-

er in

»

FINE CIGARS.
East Main Street.

Figure 116. Johnson City Comet, 16 April 1891.

25 May 1893. Johnson City Comet.

“Ex-Recorder Gump — Dispenses Justice to the Public in a New Way. — Ex-Recorder
Martin I. Gump yesterday opened up a full line of vehicles, farm implements and the like, and is
now prepared to deal out justice and good bargains to the dear people, whom he summons en masse
at his place of business early to avoid the rush. His warehouse and office are in the old [John E.
Harr] cigar factory building on Spring street and the narrow gauge. He earnestly solicits patronage
and invites not only old but new customers, feeling no doubt that the former will be less reluctant
about dropping in than when in his former capacity. His motto is justice to all.”

2 November 1893. Johnson City Comet.

“Delinquent Taxes. — Order of Publication. — State of Tennessee et al., vs. H.K. Little, et
al. In the chancery court at Johnson City. It appearing from the return of the special deputy
sheriff... And it further appearing that this is a bill brought by the state and county aforesaid to
enforce their lien for the taxes of the year 1890, due upon certain lands particularly described and
set forth in the bill and said lands being situated in the 9™ Civil District of said county of
Washington, and described as follows, to-wit:”
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Table 9. Delinquent Taxes from 1890.
Year. | To Whom Assessed. Description and Boundaries. Block. | Lot. | Acres.
[1890] | [Harr, J E] [Spring Street,] One [Store House] 8 59

3 May 1894. Johnson City Comet.

“Trustee’s Sale. — By virtue of a deed of trust executed by J.E. Harr and wife, Lula Harr,
on April 3, 1893, and duly recorded in the registry at Jonesboro, Tenn., in volume 8, page 261,
deeds of trust book; made to secure a debt due to the Watauga Bank of $2,414.83, due July 3,
1893, which conveyed to me power to sell the following described property to wit: One certain
town lot lying and being in the 9™ civil district of Washington county, in the town of Johnson, and
fronting 25 feet on Spring street, and running back 117 feet to an alley in the rear, adjoining lot
and house of A.B. Bowman on the north, and Jobe heirs on the south; also the following described
real estate: Beginning on Spring street and the E.T. & W.N.C.R.R., thence south 53 degrees and
50 minutes with the railroad line 100 feet to a stake; thence south 37 degrees and 15 minutes east
30 feet to a stake, Henderson’s line; thence north 53 feet and 50 minutes east to a stake on Spring
street; thence north 37 degrees and 15 minutes west with Spring street 30 feet to the beginning,
being the lot on which there is a two story iron sheeted building... and said debt and interest being
past due and unpaid, | will, on 5" day of June, 1894, expose said property to public sale, to the
highest bidder, for cash in hand, in front of the opera house, in Johnson City, Tenn., and in bar of
equity of redemption, unless said debt, interest and costs are sooner paid. This May 2", 1894, Isaac
Harr, Trustee. printer’s fee $13.”

28 December 1899. Johnson City Comet.

“A New Industry. It has been several months since Stevens Bros., of Baltimore, Maryland,
established a wholesale produce house in Johnson City with that popular and experienced buyer,
W.E. Reese, in charge. The business is located on Spring Street just east of the E.T. & W.N.C.
tracks and occupies a two-story building 25 x 100 feet. The business has grown rapidly from the
start, and under this superb management continues to grow. During the last ten days a new
department has been added, that of killing and dressing poultry for the market. Two expert killers
were sent here from Baltimore, Md., and the building was put in readiness at once. The second
floor is devoted to this department, and large storage coops were built where the birds were fed
and watered several days before being killed. All the necessary equipment has been added, and 15
or 20 men are constantly employed picking birds. The capacity is 2000 birds a day, and two car
loads of dressed birds are shipped each week. A large portion of the birds, particularly the broilers
and turkeys, are dry picked, as no other kind will be received on some of the markets reached by
this firm. This department is in charge of Mr. Stephenson, also of Baltimore, an expert. Most
shipments are made to Baltimore.

Johnson City is one of the best markets in East Tennessee for poultry, and W.E. Reese is
one of the best known and most reliable dealers, and this firm has made a happy selection in
securing his services.

A peep into this place will surprise one used to the sight of chickens, and you can well
imagine the effect the sight had upon an editor.”
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18 January 1900. Johnson City Comet.

“Will Enlarge the Plant. Stevens Bros., the wholesale produce dealers, are preparing to
enlarge their plant in this city. They have purchased all of the ground between their store room on
the corner of Spring street and the E.T. & W.N.C. Ry., and Maple street. In a short time they will
cover this ground with large buildings to be used as slaughter rooms for poultry and cold storage
rooms. They will also put in an ice plant, but will not be able to manufacture ice the coming season.
When completed this will be one of the largest dressed poultry plants in the South. They are now
shipping two car loads of dressed stock a week, and as soon as the new plant is finished this will
be more than doubled.

This firm buys everything in the produce line and ships to eastern markets, principally
Baltimore, where the parent institution is located. The Johnson City branch is in charge of W.E.
Reese, a local buyer who has been in the business since childhood. He is not only an experienced
buyer, but he has won the confidence and respect of the community by his correct business
methods.” Note, it appears that these plans for enlarging their operation were not implemented by
Stevens Brothers.

31 January 1901. Johnson City Comet.

“Fires of the Day. Last Thursday the fire fiend was loose in Johnson City. About 3 o’clock
in the afternoon the department was called to the poultry warehouse of Stevens Bros., but the fire
was confined to a flue and was easily extinguished. Damage slight, fully insured.”

16 July 1903. Johnson City Comet.

“Stevens Brothers. Conspicuous among the leading enterprises of Johnson City is the large
wholesale produce house of Stevens Brothers. This is a branch of the Baltimore house, and was
established in 1898. Stevens Brothers are large buyers of Chickens, eggs and dried fruits, and draw
their supplies from all parts of the surrounding country. They purchase only first-class produce
and the high standard of excellence which they invariably maintain gives them enormous
patronage from the eastern markets. The building occupied has an area of 50 x 150 feet, and is
most advantageously located at the corner of spring street and the Narrow Gauge railroad. G.F.
Hobbs, local manager, is well-known in Johnson City and vicinity and stands high in the public
esteem. He has been most zealous in his business duties since he assumed charge, and his efforts
have met with the high success which he deserves.’

20 June 1907. Johnson City Comet.

“Through the City. — South & Western Now Building in Corporate Limits. The South &
Western is now being built through the corporate limits of Johnson City... This road will pass
through the city on a slightly higher grade than the Narrow Gauge and the latter will be raised to
correspond with the new grade.

This means the tearing away of the foundry and all the buildings facing the right-of-way
from the big spring on Buffalo street to Roan street.”

1 October 1908. Johnson City Comet.
“Rapid Railroad Work. — The C.C. & O. Coming Up Town a Hit with Travelers...
Beginning last Saturday the Carolina, Clinchfield and Ohio railroad has been running its trains into
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the city over the E.T. & W.N.C.R.R. Co.’s tracks and it is a great convenience to the traveling
public. The trains arrive and depart from the union station on Buffalo street. The C., C. & O. is
using the little brick building on Cherry and Buffalo streets near the big spring for a ticket office.
It will be only a short time until the freight depot will be moved up town also. It is understood that
the building now occupied by Stevens Bros. on Spring street will be used for a temporary depot.
That there is something doing in railroad circles no one can doubt. As soon as the board of
aldermen decides to let the company use Cherry street for its main line it will not be long until the
line will be connected through the city and the buildings between Cherry street and the Narrow
Gauge road will be torn away to make room for the yard tracks. Already occupants of many
buildings have been notified to vacate the property for that purpose.”

22 October 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“Citizens on Spring Street Want Paving — The abutting property owners on Spring street
between the E.T. & W.N.C. railroad and Locust street have signed an agreement to have it paved,
or a sufficient number have to create an improvement district and it will probably be done at the
next meeting of the board of aldermen.”

5 November 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“Improvement District Number Six Created — At a meeting of the board of mayor and
aldermen Thursday night improvement district No. 6 was created upon proper petition of the
abutting property holders for the purpose of paving, putting in curb and gutter, sewer and sidewalk.
This district extends from the E.T. & W.N.C. R.R. to the north side of Locust street on Spring
street. A large number of property holders have signed the petition and the work of paving will go
ahead as fast as the routine matters can be arranged. The citizens of this district are to be
commended for their enterprise and determination not to be out done by other portions of the city.”

19 November 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“Poultry Shipments. The poultry train made up at points between Knoxville and Bristol
will be composed of twenty-four cars of turkeys and two cars of chickens. The latter will be filled
by Stevens Bros., of this city. The cars taken on at different points will converge at Morristown,
where the train will be made up. Twenty-six cars of poultry will be the shipment from East
Tennessee this week.”

14 January 1909. Johnson City Comet.

“C.C. & O. Building in City. — More Than One Hundred Men are Now Employed —
Constructing the Line on Jobe Street Through the City and Expect to Operate it this Month. — The
building of the C., C. & O. main line through the city, adjoining the tracks of the E.T. & W.N. Ry.,
is being rushed to completion...

More than a hundred men are busy laying crossties and rails, tearing down and moving all
the old frame buildings on Jobe street, rushing it to completion to be in readiness for the through
passenger train service which will be put on by the 20 of this month, which will run from Dante,
Va., to Bostic, N.C. This long demand of and much talked about road is soon to be a reality...”
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6.2. “Seaver Block,” Southeast Corner of Spring and Jobe Streets, 1890 — 1910

30 January 1890. Johnson City Comet.
“G.C. Seaver has commenced his store house on Spring street, near the Narrow Gauge
road. It will be 25 x 100 feet and two stories.”

3 April 1890. Johnson City Comet.
“New Buildings... The frame of S.C. [apparently should read “G.C.”] Seaver’s store house
on Spring street is nearly up.”

17 April 1890. Johnson City Comet.

“Seaver & Summers are not out of business but have removed to the new store room on
Spring street near the Narrow Gauge road for 60 days. They will be pleased to serve you in their
line and will continue to carry a full line of builder’s hardware at low prices.”

17 April 1890. Johnson City Comet.

“Special Notice. We beg to announce to our patrons and friends that for the next sixty days
we will occupy the new building on Spring St., at the crossing of the E.T. and W.[N.]C. railroad.
During this period we will sell hardware, builders’ supplies, paints, &c., at reduced figures, in
order to remunerate our friends for the slight inconvenience of hunting us up.

By June 15" we will occupy the new building on Main St., with a stock of hardware that
will be new and complete in every particular. Respectfully, Seaver & Summers.” Similar in the
Johnson City Comet of 1 May 1890.

24 April 1890. Johnson City Comet.

“Started with a Rush. — A List of Factories, Hotels, Business and Dwelling Houses
Completed and Under Construction Since January 1%, 1890. — Nearly a Million Dollars Already
Spent in Building... G.C. Seaver, Store house... [$]3,000...”

24 April 1890. Johnson City Comet.

“It is economy to use the Mastic Mixed Paints... Garden seeds in bulk by weight or
measure — Crop of 1889... We keep nothing but pure clover and timothy seed... Fresh seed beans,
peas, beets, &c. by the pint, quart, or peck. This is the economical way to buy garden seeds and
they are positively genuine. Seaver & Summers.”
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Table 10. Apparent Occupants of the “Seaver Block,” Southeast Corner of Spring and Jobe Streets, Janua

1890 to 1910 (?)

201 Spring Street

202 Spring Street

203 Spring Street

January 1890

Construction begins “25 x 100 feet and
two stories”

April 1890

“Seaver and Summers” hardware

November — December 1890

Johnson City Meat Market?

January 1891

“Paints and Hardw.”

“Hardw. Oils Varnish &c.” 1% floor

“Tailor” 2" floor

“Vac.” 1 floor
“Tin Shop” 2" floor

January to October 1891

“Faucette & Mountcastle”
wholesale

December 1891 to July 1892

“Crumley & Pierce”
manufacturers 2" floor?

August 1893

“Seaver & Summers” becomes “Lyle &
Summers”

November 1893

Auctioned

November 1893 to June
1894

“C.W. Seaver” manufacturer of
harnesses, etc.

January 1894 “Watauga Water Company”
March 1894 “Lyle & Summers” moved
January 1895 Auctioned
May 1897 “Feed” “Harness” “Water Works Off. & Work Shop”
October 1897 “J S. Ge}’lliher & Co.” “Manufacturing
Tinners
April 1898 “J.S. Galliher & Co.” move
January 1900 C.W. Seaye?r purchased “store-house on the corner of Spring and Jobe streets,
more familiarly known as the Seaver & Summers store house.”
April 1900 “W.C. Snapp and Tate L. Earnest”

“carriage repository”

March 1902 to March 1903

“Pierce Bros.” tin manufacturers

March 1903

“Pierce Bros.” moved

“Harness” shop, which appears to have

April 1903 moved to 125 Spring Street in 1908. Feed Water Works Off. & Work Shop
December 1908 Demolished by this time “Whol. Meat” “Storage”
1913 Demolished, probably in 1909 Demolished, probably in 1910
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WE HAVE SECURED EXCLUSIVE SALE OF
THE CELEBRATED

MANIIC  MIXED PAINTS,

And rcarry in stock a large line of attractive colors.
These paints are pure, and superior in
puality to other brands sold at
higher prices.

WE ARE CAR LOAD PURCHASERS OF ITHE

“OLD HICKORY” WVAGONS.

SEAVER & SUMMERS

Figure 117. Johnson City Comet, 24 April 1890.

100
"OLD HICKORY” WAGUNS

That is the number we have handled sinaeﬁ
January 1lst, and every purchaser
pleased. Bea.r in mind that this
is the only wagon on which

YOU CAN RELY.

SRAVER and SUMMERS.

l*o1d ETickory!’ ‘Old ETickoryl

Figure 118. Johnson City Comet, 24 April 1890.

e ——————— i ——
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15 May 1890. Johnson City Comet.

“Harness Manufactory. Seaver & Summers have increased their capacity for
manufacturing harness and saddlery goods. They have added machinery and are now giving
constant employment to a large number of hands. They make all kinds of harness from the finest
outfits to the heaviest wagon harness. Call on them and if they can’t suit you in stock they will
make it for you while you wait.”

27 November 1890. Johnson City Comet.

“Fresh meats of all kinds can be had by calling at the Johnson City Meat Market on Spring
street in Seaver & Summers block... Call at the Johnson City Meat Market and get your steaks,
roasts and anything else in the meat line. Good weight and polite attention will be given...”

4 December 1890. Johnson City Comet.
“All classes of harness manufactured at wholesale prices. Seaver & Summers.”

15 January 1891. Johnson City Comet.
“Faucette, Mountcastle & Co. have opened a grain and provision store on Spring street,

%9

second door above Seaver & Summers’.

29 January 1891. Johnson City Comet.

“J.D. Faucette & Co. — We have disposed of our Feed business to the firm of Faucette &
Mountcastle, on Spring Street (next door to Seaver & Summers) where they will be glad to furnish
you with everything you want in the Feed Line. We now have more room than ever before and we
will try and carry a much larger line of goods, especially Groceries...” This item ran until at least
9 April 1891.

29 January 1891. Johnson City Comet.

“A New Business. Faucette & Mountcastle. There is a combination that for business,
enterprise and integrity cannot be ‘worked’ and it has a financial ring about it that is the ‘open
sesame’ to any market.

These gentlemen, J.D. and J.F. Faucette and F.K. Mountcastle, have entered into a
copartnership under the above style. Their place of business is on Spring street, in the Lyle block,
and they handle grain, hay and feed, at wholesale and retail.

They are also wholesale agents for the Armour Packing Co., Lucent Oil Works, Sweetwater
Mill Co.’s Flour and Crandall Harris Tobacco Works. They carry a large stock of the above
companies goods on hand at all times and can fill orders promptly.

It is a new firm but not new people and the gentlemen need no introduction to our people.
Individually they are hustlers, collectively, they are a spike team of racers.”

29 January 1891. Johnson City Comet.
“We have just opened a Wholesale and Retail Grain, Hay, and Feed Store on Spring Street,
(next door to Seaver & Summers,) where we will be glad to serve our friends and the public
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generally when in need of any kind of feed stuff for stock. Our terms on feed are strictly spot cash
to everybody, and our Prices will always be as Low as the Lowest! To Merchants — We wish to
say that we are the Wholesale Agents for Armour Packing Co., Lucent Oil Works, Sweetwater
Mill Co.’s Flour and Crandall — Harris Tobacco Works.

We can give you the Very Closest Prices on these goods. Large stock of Flour and oil
always on hand.

Now in stock, 4,000 bushels Corn, 2 car — loads of Meats, Lards and Hames, 2 car — loas
Flour, 1 car — load Bran, 1 car — load Hat, 1 car — load Oats. Give us a call. Truly, Faucette &
Mountcastle.” This item ran until at least 9 April 1891.

Daver & umme

Carry the best stock of

s
HARDWARL

| IN THE CITY. |

THEY Phy OBENTS

Figure 119. Johnson City Comet, 23 April 1891.

- L s P —~—~~
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—TF augette & Mountoastle

WHOLESALE AND RETAIL

GRAIN, HAY AND FEED

Wholesale Agents for ARMOUR PACKING COMPANY,
SWEETWATER MIutL COMPANY'S FLOUR and CRAN-:
DALL-HARRIS TOBACCO WORKS,

Orders Promptly Filled.
Prices as Low as the Lowest

Flgure > 120. Johnson City Comet, 16 April 1891. A
This advertisement ran until at least 21 May 1891.

W E
GUARANTEE ALL "~ LARD

PUT UP U )ER OUR WHITE LABEL

BE FIRST QUALITY

ARMOUR PACKING CO.

4

FFAUCETTE & MOUNTCASTLE, Agems,

JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE,

Flgure 121. Johnson Cltv Comet 25 June 1891
This advertisement ran until at least 21 May 1891.
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A CAR LOAD OF

BELLIES JUNT REGEIVED BY
FAUCETTE & MOUNTCASTLE,

LN A SR ST R W BTy 8 e 0 TS EEERTITTR  r - e

ORL 018 10 VAR
FAUGETTE & MOUNTCASTLE,

Wholesale Flour, Meat and Lard.

IR S 5 P L —— ——

Figure 123. Johnson City Comet, 23 July 1891.




FAUCE ' TE & MOUNTCASTLE.
Wholesale Sugar, Coffee, Cheese, Meats, Lard, Salt Flour, Feed, &c.

Our terms are short, our prices low. We wish to call especial attention to our
BFE Silver Leaf and White Label Lard. 23

Wholesale Agents for TELLICO FLOUR. We also retail Corn, Oats, Bran, Chop, Hay, &c.,
delivered to any of the depots, or any place in the city, free of charge. Parties who buy for cash
will find it to their interest to call on us.

OFFICE AND WAREROOM ON SPRING STREET, NEXT DOOR TO SEAVER & SUMMERS,

Figure 124. Johnson City Comet, 29 October 1891.

CRUMLEY & PIERCE,
Boofing,ﬁuttefinﬁ, ﬂaivanized Iron Cernice.

ALL WORK CUARANTEED.
Seaver Block, Spring Street, Johnson City, Tenn.

— — — e —

Figure 125. Johnson City Comet, 10 December 1891.
This advertisement ran until at least 28 July 1892.

17 August 1893. Johnson City Comet.

“Having sold our stock of hardware to Lyle & Summers, we are compelled to call on our
friends for immediate settlement, as we can not pay our indebtedness until we get what is due us.
The conditions now existing make it necessary for us to enforce collections as far as possible, and
we hope the people will come forward without delay. Our former customers will receive good
treatment at the hands of our successors and patronage given them will be appreciated by us.
Seaver & Summers.”
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B. D. LYLE. J A SUMMERS

i.YL. & SUMMERS
Hardware and Gutlery,

PAINTS, OILS AND LEAD. BUILDERS' MATERIALS.

Agents For Old Hickory Wagons.
SEAVER BLOCK, SPRING STREET.

v - —-

_ Flgure 126. Johnson Cltv Comet 31 August 1893
This advertisement ran until at least 26 July 1894.

C.W.SEAVER

Manufacturer of

Saddles, - Collars,
Harness, Whins, )
Bridles, Ete., Ete.)

Seaver Block, Spring Street.

Figure 127. Johnson City Comet, 16 November 1893.
Similar advertisements ran until at least 28 June 1894.
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19 October 1893. Johnson City Comet.

“Notice. — By virtue of the power in me vested by a certain trust deed executed to me as
trustee, by G.C. Seaver and Joe P. Summers, on the 25" of March, 1893, and recorded in the
Register’s office at Jonesboro, Tenn... being past due and unpaid, I will, therefore, as authorized
in said trust deed proceed to sell to the highest bidder for cash in hand, in front of Jobe’s hall,
Johnson City, Tenn., on the 18" day of November, 1893 between the hours of 10 a.m. and 2 p.m.,
the following described property and premises, to-wit:

One store house and lot in the town of Johnson City, Tenn., fronting 24%- feet on Spring
street, and running back of even width 75 feet to an alley in the rear, — the store house being 70
feet long, (a frame building with metal roof) and being the second store-room from the Narrow
guage railroad...”

7 December 1893. Johnson City Comet.

“Go to Lyle & Summers for hardware, cutlery, paints, oils, leads, building material, belting,
ammunition, etc... Lyle & Summers sell the Clauss trimmers, shears, scissors, etc. Each pair
guaranteed...”

21 December 1893. Johnson City Comet.
“Lyle & Summers have received a new and complete line of building material, such as
sash, doors, paints, oils, etc. The best and cheapest on the market. Get prices before purchasing.”

=C. W. SEAVER <

Manufacturer of

SADDLES, HARNESS, BRIDLES, COL
LARS, WHIFS, ETC:
oEAYER - BLOCK, - 8PRING - ST.

novli‘-6mos

“Figure 128. Johnson City Comet, 4 January 1894.

283



18 January 1894. Johnson City Comet.

“Notice to Water Consumers. All water rents for the quarter ending March 31, 1894, are
due and should have been paid by the 15" inst. Consumers are requested to pay their water rent by
check or at the office of the Watauga Water Company on Spring street (next to Lyle & Summers’
store) between 8 and 11 a.m. All consumers who are in arrears with their water rents will oblige
us, and save themselves trouble, by calling at the office between 8 and 11 a.m.”

LVLE & sUMM£n§ HAVE MOVED THEIR STOCK OF
HARDWARE

:Eullg‘.” ing S‘ eet tO th g, ! i Stan Viain Q;](ft. \'ﬂ‘l, JH de¢ L‘Sire
their old Customers to follow t! , ncd hope new ones will GIVE THEM A
TRIAL.

Figure 129. Johnson City Comet, 8 March 1894.

19 July 1894. Johnson City Comet.
“Notice to Water Consumers. Water consumers who are in arrears with their water rents
are now liable to have the water cut off without further notice. Frank Evans, Supt.”

29 November 1894. Johnson City Comet.

“Trustee’s Sale of Valuable Land. Notice is hereby given that by virtue of the power in me
vested by a Trust Deed executed on June 9", 1893, by Joe P. Summers and wife, L.B. Summers,
and G.C. Seaver and wife, M.R. Seaver, | will sell the property conveyed to me by said trust deed
at public auction, in front of the Watauga Bank at Johnson City, Tennessee, for cash in hand, and
in bar of equity of redemption, to pay and satisfy the debt secured by said trust deed.

The property that will be sold by me on 4" day of January, 1895, as above stated, is
described as follows:

1%, A certain storehouse and lot lying and being on Spring Street, in Johnson City,
Tennessee, in the 9" civil district of Washington county, Tennessee, just south of the East
Tennessee & Western N.C. Ry, Co’s right of way, and being lot No. 1 in Seaver’s subdivision, and
more particularly described as follows; Beginning at a planted stone near the E.T. & Western N.C.
Railroad, on Spring street; thence in a southerly direction, along Spring street 25 feet to a stake,
thence parallel with Spring street, 25 feet to a stake, thence a direct line to Spring street, being the
storehouse formerly occupied as a hardware store by Seaver & Summers.

Also certain other tracts or parcels of land...”

24 January 1895. Johnson City Comet.
“Notice to Water Consumers. Please pay your water rents which are now past due and we
need the money. Watauga Water Co.”
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11 July 1895. Johnson City Comet.
“All water consumers in arrears with water rent are requested to remit by July 15. W.E.
Burbage, President.”

16 January 1896. Johnson City Comet.

“A Crazy Man. On Monday morning, last, about 7 o’clock or half-past, Geo. Coleman,
harness-maker and saddler, was notified while at work for C.W. Seaver, on corner of Jobe and
Spring streets, that a crazy man, one belonging to the colored persuasion, was at that time trying
to install himself as proprietor of George’s home, which is situated at or near the crossing of the
Three C’s and narrow gauge railroads. George lost no time in responding to the call for his presence
at home, but it was needless, as his wife, who, in this case of danger, converted herself into a
heroine by using with alacrity the fire poker. This was brought down with all the power Mrs.
Coleman could bring to bear upon the unfortunate...”

26 March 1896. Johnson City Comet.

“Notice to Consumers. The management of the Watauga Water Company has changed
hands. All water consumers are respectfully requested to pay their water rents at the office of the
company (or through the mail by check) not later than the 15" day of the first month of the quarter.
The office (next door to Seaver & Summers’ old store, on Spring street) will be open for transaction
of business from 9 to 11 a.m. every day, and during the first fifteen days of January, April, July
and October from 1 to 4 p.m. as well.

All water rents are due and payable at the office of the company by the 15" day of the first
month of each quarter, and failure to pay by that date renders consumers liable to have their water
cut off, in which event 50 cents will be charged for the labor of turning it on again. C.W. Battie,
General Manager.”

- C. W. SEAVER,

Wholesale and Retail Manutacfurer of

Harness, Saddles, Bridles, Gollars,

TL.ECGHGELIIN S, o,

Johnson City, Tenn. 627

TR W S — S 1 22l

Figure 130. Johnson City Comet, 14 January 1897.
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14 January 1897. Johnson City Comet.

“Special Notice. All consumers are hereby notified that the rents due for the current quarter
must be settled on or before the 15 inst., otherwise the water will be shut off without further notice.
By order of the Watauga Water Company.” Similar notices appeared in the Johnson City Comet

on 15 April 1897, 15 July 1897, 14 October 1897, 13 January 1898, and 14 April 1898.

14 October 1897. Johnson City Comet.

“Attention is called to the advertisement of J.S. Galliher & Co. in this issue. They are
manufacturing tinners and handle stoves, etc. Their store is on Spring street above the Narrow

Gauge yard.”

~ S

J. 8. GALLIHER & CO.,
[V,

-p~  Manufacturing Tinners

———AND DEALERS IN——
STOVES and "TINWARE.

Employing only First Class Workmen we Guarantee to all.

BW"HE m‘ ‘un.f i‘l l::t: ::';;:?rt:(}’ll.r'erfectly done. Let us esti-

Shop and store in the Seaver building—Above Narrow Guage—Spring Street,
Johnson City, Tennessee.

Don’t Buy an Air Tight Wood Heater until you
have seen our stock.

|

Figure 131. Johnson Citv>(.36r“nAet, 17-4'Oct-6ber 1897.
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J 5. GALLIRER & GO,

<o Manufacturmg Tinners

S =y

———— s e,
2o ?;"_-?f_;*_{__;. W’f;v,e,y P

————AND DEALERS IN-——

STOVES, TIN and SHEET IRON WARE.

Ewmploying only Eirst Class Workmen we Guarantee to all

H““"ﬂ! and Gm"ng P;:':znbion;rt:;;'Perloctly done. Let us esti-

Shop and store in the Seaver building—Above Narrow Guage —Spring Street,
Johnson City, Tennessee.

Figure 132. Johnson City Comet, 6 January 1898.
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28 April 1898. Johnson City Comet.

“Moved Down Town. The firm of J.S. Galliher & Co., have moved their stock of stoves
and tinware to the old Hash property on Main street... This firm is composed of thorough
mechanics and makes a specialty of roofing and guttering guaranteeing their work in every
particular. They also handle a complete line of stoves and ranges and will make it to your interest
to call upon them before you buy a new cooking stove.”

25 January 1900. Johnson City Comet.

“Will Move to New Quarters. C.W. Seaver has recently purchased the store-house on the
corner of Spring & Jobe streets, more familiarly known as the Seaver & Summers store house. Mr.
Seaver is having it repaired and remodeled and will move his saddle and harness manufactory into
it as soon as it is completed. He owns the building he is now occupying but the corner room is
better located and more suitable for his business. In passing, it is not out of place to mention that
Mr. Seaver is one of the city’s most substantial young business men and is a high-toned, Christian
gentleman. He has been manufacturing harness and saddles in Johnson City for several years, but
as each year has brought him increased business and he has had the tact and enterprise to not only
hold every point captured but has pushed aggressively on to conquer new fields. He is a
progressive, up-to-date young man, thoroughly reliable in all his transactions, and has built up an
enviable reputation for his goods throughout this section. He has been a success and will continue
to be. Such qualities cannot fail to succeed.”

19 April 1900. Johnson City Comet.

“New Business. Messrs. W.C. Snapp and Tate L. Earnest have opened a carriage repository
in the Seaver building on Spring street. They have received and opened this week a large line of
buggies, phaetons and surreys, and have the handsomest line of vehicles ever offered for sale in
this city. They will be glad to have you call and examine their stock, and should you desire a
vehicle not carried in stock it will be ordered at once.”

22 November 1900. Johnson City Comet.

“Remember Next Tuesday. November 27", you can get your dinner (regular Thanksgiving
dinner) for 25 cents at Bazaar, which will be held in the building next to Seavers’ harness shop,
on Spring St. by ladies of First Presbyterian church. Come one and all and purchase a cake for
Thanksgiving and an Xmas present for each of your family from our ‘replete tables.” We will have
taffy for you too. In the evening we will serve you oysters anyway you like at reasonable price.”

27 March 1902. Johnson City Comet.

“W.C. Pierce arrived from Rogersville last Saturday and will locate here. He will be
associated with his brother, John F., under the firm name of Pierce Bros., who have opened a
complete tin shop in the Seaver building, on Spring street. See their attachment elsewhere in this

paper.”
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J. F. PIERCE W. C. PIERCE

Pierce Bros.

Tin, Steel, Galvanized Iron and Slate Roofing ; Guttering,
Galvanized Ircn Fronts and Cornices: IFFurnaces, Fur-
nace and Sheet Metal Work of every deseription,
SEAVER BUILDING, SPRING STREET.

m——— S — A

_-Figure 133. Johnson City Comet, 27 March 1902.
This advertisement ran until at least 29 January 1903.

10 April 1902. Johnson City Comet.
“Pierce Bros. are now hard at work doing the tin work on several new dwellings.”

3 July 1902. Johnson City Comet.

“To Water Consumers. Water rents must be paid on or before the 15" instant, or the water
will be turned off without further notice. Watauga Water Co.” Similar appeared in the Johnson
City Comet on 2 October 1902, 1 January 1903, 2 April 1903, 2 July 1903, 1 October 1903, 7
January 1904, 31 March 1904, 30 June 1904, 6 October 1904,

12 March 1903. Johnson City Comet.

“Pierce Bros. have moved their tin-working establishment to the room in rear of Hankal
Bros. where they will be glad to serve old and new customers. While they are fully prepared to do
all kinds of tin and galvanized iron work, they solicit and will give special attention to general job
and repair work. They have twenty years’ experience and guarantee thorough workmanship.”

2 November 1905. Johnson City Comet.

“Charles Seaver, of Johnson City, who has been conducting a harness shop here for several
months, leaves this week for Kingsport, where he has a contract to make up a large quantity of
harness for contractors on the new South & Western Railway. — Rogersville Herald.”

20 June 1907. Johnson City Comet.

“Through the City. — South & Western Now Building in Corporate Limits. The South &
Western is now being built through the corporate limits of Johnson City... This road will pass
through the city on a slightly higher grade than the Narrow Gauge and the latter will be raised to
correspond with the new grade.
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This means the tearing away of the foundry and all the buildings facing the right-of-way
from the big spring on Buffalo street to Roan street.”

8 October 1908. Johnson City Comet.

“To Water Consumers — Water rents for the quarter ending December 31, 1908, are now
due and payable at the office of the Watauga Water Co. on Spring street. If not paid on or before
Oct 15 the service will be discontinued without further notice. October 1, 1908. Watauga Water
Co.” Similar appeared in the Johnson City Comet on 2 July 1908 (George E. Burbage, Secretary),
7 January 1909, 8 July 1909, 7 October 1909, and 6 January 1910.
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7. Miller Brothers (and Succeeding Businesses) at the
Intersection of Cherry and South Roan Streets, Between 1903 and 1908 — 1947
(Maps and Figures)

Miller Brothers, Southwest Corner of Cherry and Roan Streets,
After February 1920 — Not Later Than 1947
Central Tobacco Warehouse, by 1947

Miller Brothers, Southeast Corner of Cherry and Roan Streets,
Between 1903 and 1908 — Not Later Than 1947

Both of these facilities were served by the dual-gauge trackage on Cherry Street until at least the
1930s.
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Map 21. A composite map of the area bounded by Jobe and Ash streets (north to south) and Buffalo and South Roan and Buffalo streets (east to west)
in February 1920. Note the depiction of the Millers Brothers Company lumber warehouse in the lower right of this map is labeled “From Plans”,
indicating that it had not been built yet.”® Perhaps of interest, note the “Lee Hotel” on the northwest corner of Spring and West Walnut streets. The Lee
Hotel was previously in the Harr Building, on the northeast corner of Buffalo and Jobe streets near the E.T. & W.N.C. depot.
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Map 21A. A detail of the Miller Brothers facilities on the south side of Cherry Street and along South Roan Street

in February 1920.
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Map 21B. “Miller Bros Co. Lumber Ware Ho... From Plans”, on the southwest corner of West Cherry and South
Roan streets, February 1920. See Map 21 for an image of the area around this building.
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Figure 134. “Delivery Trucks, Miller Brothers Lumber and Building Materials”.”® Note the two sets of the dual gauge trackage on West Cherry Street
in the foreground and that the building on the right (behind the trucks), as well as the trackage closest to the building was not included on the Sanborn
map of February 1920 (see Map 21). Consequently, this photograph was probably taken after that provided in Figure 135.
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ROOFED WITH GAL-VA-NITE
350 SQUARES

MILLER BROS.CO., JOHNSTON CITY, TENN.

Figure 135. Miller Brothers Lumber & Building Material.&° Note the two set of dual-gaue trackage on West Cherry Street. The road on the left (st
side of the building) is South Roan Street. Also note that the building depicted on the west (right) side of this building, in Figure 134, has not yet been
built. Consequently, this photograph appears to date to after February 1920, but was taken before that provided in Figure 134.
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Map 22. This map shows the Miller Brothers Facility on the southeast corner of Cherry and South
Roan streets in December 1908. Note that this is actually outside the geographic coverage of this
particular document, but it is included here with the Miller Brothers facility to its west for
convenience. The office depicted in figures 136A and 137 is near the top left of this image.®!
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Map 23. This map shows the Miller Brothers Facility on the southeast corner of Cherry and South
Roan streets in July 1913. Note that this is actually outside the geographic coverage of this
document, but it is included here with the Miller Brothers facility to its west for convenience. The
office depicted in figures 136A and 137 is near the top left of this image.®?
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Map 21C. This map shows the Miller Brothers Facility on the southeast corner of Cherry and South
Roan streets in February 1920. Note that this is actually outside the geographic coverage of this
document, but it is included for convenience. The office depicted in figures 136A and 137 is near
the top left of this image.®
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Figure 136. “Johnson City Coal, Ice and Cream Company”. This structure was originally built for the “Clinchfield Ice & Coal” in 1914, on the northeast
corner of South Roan and East Cherry streets.®* It became the “Johnson City Coal, Ice and Cream Company” in 1916 and was used by this company
until about 1923. Note the Miller Brothers Lumber Yard office in the right background. Also note the coal trestle on the left and the dual gauge track
in the foreground, as well as the railroad crossing guard. This photograph appears to date to between 1916 and 1923.
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Figure 136A. A detail of the front (north) side of the Miller Brothers building on the southeast corner of South
Roan and East Cherry streets on the right of this photograph. Note that the two-story concrete block building in
the right background appears to been used for furniture storage (“Furn’e St’ge”), see Map 21C.




Figure 137. “Exterior {/iew, Miller Brothers Lumber and Building Materials” looking east across South Roan Street.> This building was on the
southeast corner of South Roan and East Cherry streets. This building appears to have been constructed between 1903 and 1908, with this photograph
taken shortly after the completion of this building, see Map 22.
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Figure 138. “An aerial view of Johnson City, Tennessee,” 1 March 1947.8 Note the Central Tobacco Warehouse (previously the Miller Brothers
Company) in the lower right of this photograph. On the north side of the railroad tracks are the Sterchi Brothers warehouse, the Brading — Sells Lumber
Company building on the northwest corner of Roan and Jobe streets, with Kings Department Store behind and to the right of it, and Brading —
Marshall/Marshall Brothers Lumber Company building (with the curved clerestory roof on the right side of this photograph). The author has not been
able to identify the buildings to the west and northwest of the Central Tobacco Warehouse to Spring and Jobe streets. Note that the Miller Brothers
facility on the southeast corner of South Roan and Cherry streets has been removed and another, identified structure has been built in its place.
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Figure 138A. A detail of the Central Tobacco Warehouse (previously the Miller Brothers Company), taken 1 March 1947.87 Note that the land occupied
by the Miller Brothers facility on the southeast corner of Cherry and Roan streets (see Map 21A, as well as figures 136A and 137), is occupied by a
much larger structure at this time.

304



Flgure 139 “The Central Tobacco Warehouse can be seen in the mlddle of the photo. (Courtesy of Doug Thompson )”88 ThIS view Iooks west, across
South Roan Street, with the rear of the building along Ashe Street on the left of the photograph. This building was previously occupied by the Miller
Brothers Company. The tall building in the left background is that of the Summers Hardware Company. The author has not been able to identify the
building to the immediate left of the Central Tobacco Warehouse, nor the building on the right, which appears to occupy the same lot as that previously
occupied by the Miller Brothers facility on the southeast corner of South Roan and East Cherry streets, see figures 136A and 137. The Central Tobacco
Warehouse had occupied the Miller Brothers building on the southwest corner of Cherry and Roan by 1947, see Figure 138A.
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7.1. Miller Brothers, Southeast Corner of Cherry and Roan Streets,
Between 1903 and 1908 to 1920s (but not later than 1947)

This facility was served by the dual-gauge trackage on Cherry Street until at least the 1930s.

A Good Time
To Visit Us

If you have any building problems on your mind, we'd suggest that you
come in and wz'll see if we can’t help you out for less money than you're fig-
uring on

The kind of lumber you'll need depends a lot on what you're going to
build and there's a difference in the price of different grades. Let’s talk it
over anyway—we've all kinds.

We carry a large stock of

Grates, Tile, Varnishes, Rubber Roofing,
Glass, Doors, Oils, Paints, Mantels,
and Windows, Plaster, Building Hardware,

Clinchfield Portland Cement.

All kinds of lumber, liberally graded, building material.
Houses Built on the Installment Plan.

Wliller Brothers

Roan and Cherry Streets,
JOHNSON CITY, - TENNESSEE.

Figure 140. Johnson City Comet, 10 September 1914.
This advertisement ran until at least 29 October 1914.
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Table 11. “Directory of Industries Inspected, with No. Employes... Washington County — Johnson City”, for the Year Ending 31
December 1920.%°

No. Employes
Style of Firm Business Over 16 Under 16
Male | Female | Male | Female
Miller Bros. Co. Lumber and Building Material 20 1

Table 12. “Directory of Industries Inspected, with No. Employes... Washington County — Johnson City”, for the Year Ending 31
December 1922,

No. Employes
Style of Firm Business Over 16 Under 16
Male | Female | Male | Female
Miller Brothers Lumber Dealers 12 1

Table 13. “Directory of Industries Inspected with Number of Employes... Washington County — Johnson City”, for the Year Ending 31
December 1925.% Note, later reports included significantly more employees, indicating that the plant west of downtown and previously
occupied by the Clinchfield Products Corporation and the Rollin Chemical Corporation, had been acquired by the Miller Brothers and
been re-equipped and placed in operation. This new Miller Brothers plant was addressed in “A Draft Documentary History of Industries
along the Railroads through Johnson City, Part 1...”

No. Employes
Style of Firm Business Over 16 Under 16
Male | Female | Male | Female
Miller Bros., Inc. Lumber 14 1
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Appendix
Map Legends

Figure 141. Map Legend for January 1891.%2
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92 The Horseless Age, 19 November 1913 (Volume 32, No. 21), page 861, available online at:
https://books.google.com/books?id=ghhlAQAAMAAJ.

320


https://teva.contentdm.oclc.org/digital/collection/p15138coll28/id/1039/rec/173
https://teva.contentdm.oclc.org/digital/collection/p15138coll28/id/1039/rec/173
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=10153567474448137&set=a.10151151349358137
https://www.pinterest.com/pin/635500197392581869/
https://www.facebook.com/SummersIndustrial/photos
https://www.summersindustrial.com/about-us/who-we-are/dsc_0471/
https://wctnarchives.org/postcards-johnson-city-tennessee/#jp-carousel-4965
https://www.hmdb.org/m.asp?m=157807
https://wctnarchives.org/painted-signs-on-brick-buildings/#jp-carousel-2416
https://www.flickr.com/photos/alabamarailarchives/32733510456
https://www.summersindustrial.com/about-us/who-we-are/
https://teva.contentdm.oclc.org/digital/collection/p15138coll28/id/5429/rec/2
https://wctnarchives.org/painted-signs-on-brick-buildings/summers-hardware/
https://bcyesteryear.com/category/businesses/page/7/
https://bcyesteryear.com/category/businesses/page/7/
https://books.google.com/books?id=ghhIAQAAMAAJ

9 “Bob Cox’s Yesteryear,” available online at: https://bcyesteryear.com/category/businesses/page/7/. The Johnson
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101 “Sanborn Fire Insurance Map from Johnson City, Washington County, Tennessee,” January 1891, images 2 and 3,
U.S. Library of Congress Geography and Map Division, Washington, D.C., available online at:
http://hdl.loc.gov/loc.gmd/g3964]m.g3964jm_g083261891. For map legend, see the Appendix. For map scale, please
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U.S. Library of Congress Geography and Map Division, Washington, D.C., available online at:
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refer to the link above. On 13 June 1895, the Johnson City Comet included: “A Creamery for Johnson City. The stock
has been subscribed for the erection of a creamery in Johnson City. A Chicago Creamery Company has the contract
to furnish all the machinery necessary to make the finest butter and best cheese, and to erect the buildings. The lot on
the corner of Buffalo and Cherry streets has been purchased, and the company agrees to have the creamery in operation
in sixty days. A detailed description of the buildings, machinery and how butter is made, together with prices paid for
cream and other particulars, will be given in a later edition of The Comet.” On 18 March 1897, the Johnson City
Comet included: “Trustee’s Sale. — By virtue of a deed of trust executed to me on the 26" of August, 1896, to secure
the payment of a certain note to John Sanders and others, | will, on MoOnday, March 29, 1897, on the premises sell to
the highest bidder for cash in hand, and in bar of the equity of redemption, a certain lot fronting 80 feet on Buffalo
street, Johnson City, Tennessee, and running back of even width on Ashe street, 8 poles to an alley, and bounded on
southeast by Ashe street, on northwest by lot of John Sanders, together with the building thereon, and the engine,
machinery, etc., in said building. To be sold as the property of the Johnson City Creamery Company, unless aid note
and costs are sooner paid. Robt. Burrow, Trustee. This March 3, 1897...”

103 “Sanborn Fire Insurance Map from Johnson City, Washington County, Tennessee,” April 1903, images 3 and 4,
U.S. Library of Congress Geography and Map Division, Washington, D.C., available online at:
http://hdl.loc.gov/loc.gmd/g3964jm.g3964jm_0083261903. For map legend, see the Appendix. For map scale, please
refer to the link above. On 1 November 1900, the Johnson City Comet included: “Stable Opening. Snapp & Co. are
moving into their new stable on the corner of Buffalo and Cherry streets. It is one of the finest stables in East Tennessee
and will be opened next Monday night with great eclat. The public generally are invited to be present. At 7:30 p.m.
there will be a ladies riding contest in the rotunda of the stable. The winner will receive a handsome silk umbrella. It
will be an interesting occasion.”

104 «“Sanborn Fire Insurance Map from Johnson City, Washington County, Tennessee,” December 1908, images 5 and
6, U.S. Library of Congress Geography and Map Division, Washington, D.C., available online at:
http://hdl.loc.gov/loc.gmd/g3964]m.g3964jm_g083261908. For map legend, see the Appendix. For map scale, please
refer to the link above.

105 «“Sanborn Fire Insurance Map from Johnson City, Washington County, Tennessee,” July 1913, images 5 and 6,
U.S. Library of Congress Geography and Map Division, Washington, D.C., available online at:
http://hdl.loc.gov/loc.gmd/g3964jm.g3964jm_0083261913. For map legend, see the Appendix. For map scale, please
refer to the link above.
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19, U.S. Library of Congress Geography and Map Division, Washington, D.C., available online at:
http://hdl.loc.gov/loc.gmd/g3964im.g3964jm_g083261920. For map legend, see the Appendix. For map scale, please
refer to the link above.
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U.S. Library of Congress Geography and Map Division, Washington, D.C., available online at:
http://nhdl.loc.gov/loc.gmd/g3964jm.g3964jm_g083261891. For map legend, see the Appendix. For map scale, please
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8 “Sanborn Fire Insurance Map from Johnson City, Washington County, Tennessee,” May 1897, images 2 and 3, U.S.
Library of Congress Geography and Map Division, Washington, D.C., available online at:
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http://hdl.loc.gov/loc.gmd/g3964jm.g3964jm_g083261897. For map legend, see the Appendix. For map scale, please
refer to the link above.

9 “Sanborn Fire Insurance Map from Johnson City, Washington County, Tennessee,” April 1903, images 3, 4 and 5,
U.S. Library of Congress Geography and Map Division, Washington, D.C., available online at;
http://hdl.loc.gov/loc.gmd/g3964]m.g3964jm_g083261903. For map legend, see the Appendix. For map scale, please
refer to the link above.

10 “Sanborn Fire Insurance Map from Johnson City, Washington County, Tennessee,” December 1908, images 5, 6
and 8, U.S. Library of Congress Geography and Map Division, Washington, D.C., available online at:
http://hdl.loc.gov/loc.gmd/g3964jm.g3964jm_g083261908. For map legend, see the Appendix. For map scale, please
refer to the link above.

11 “Sanborn Fire Insurance Map from Johnson City, Washington County, Tennessee,” July 1913, images 5, 6 and 8,
U.S. Library of Congress Geography and Map Division, Washington, D.C., available online at:
http://hdl.loc.gov/loc.gmd/g3964jm.g3964jm_0083261913. For map legend, see the Appendix. For map scale, please
refer to the link above.

12 “Sanborn Fire Insurance Map from Johnson City, Washington County, Tennessee,” February 1920, images 18, 19
and 23, U.S. Library of Congress Geography and Map Division, Washington, D.C., available online at:
http://hdl.loc.gov/loc.gmd/g3964im.g3964jm_g083261920. For map legend, see the Appendix. For map scale, please
refer to the link above.

9.9

13 Note that the advertisement that mentions “J.M. Blair” “Prop’r” (apparently an abbreviation for “Proprietor”) does
not indicate the formal name of the company.

14 “Intersection of Buffalo Street and ET Track. Note Crossing Shanty,” East Tennessee and Western North Carolina
Railroad Historical Society Collection, 1883 — 2005, Archives of Appalachia, available online at:
https://archivesofappalachia.omeka.net/items/show/16652.

15 “G.L. Plank — Veterinary Surgeon — Can be found at the City Stables, Johnson City, Tenn., on Saturday of each
week. Removing all superficial blemishes a specialty. A dead shot on colic, &c. Bone, blood or bog spayin, splint and
curb cured in forty minutes. Tumors, warts, and setfasts removed on sight. Will straighten your horses tail or make
him carry it in any position desired. ’Phone or write me at Bluff City, Tenn.”

16 Johnson City Comet, 22 September 1904, included: “S.R. Taylor, one of the most popular liverymen this town has
ever known has decided to go to South Carolina to reside and has sold his lease upon the stable he occupies to W.T.
Givens, the proprietor of the city stables...”

17 More advertisements were published in the Johnson City Comet than are presented in this document.

18 The Lumber Trade Journal, 1 January 1909 (Volume 55, No. 1), pages 27 and 42C, available online at:
https://books.google.com/books?id=kL 04AQAAMAAJ.

19 Hardwood Record, 10 January 1909 (Volume XXVII, No. 6), page 41, available online at:
https://books.google.com/books?id=CgM3AQAAMAAJ.

20 The St. Louis Lumberman, 15 April 1909 (Volume XLIII, No. 8), page 90, available online at:
https://books.google.com/books?id=SikyAQAAMAAJ.

21 The Tradesman, 1 December 1910 (Volume LXIV, No. 22), page 51, available online at:
https://books.google.com/books?id=mX3INiYJuN4C, included: “Johnson City, Tenn. — The W.J. Barton Implement,
Feed and Seed Co. has been organized with a capital of $20,000 to take over the Barton — Mountcastle Hardware Co.
W.J. Barton, president; Jos. B. Lyle, first vice-president; S.O. Hankal, second vice-president; Geo. E. Treadway,
secretary and treasurer.” W.J. Barton ran a number of advertisements in the Johnson City Comet, which the author
has chosen to not include in this document.
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22 “To Qur Customers — We are now located on Buffalo street, opposite the Summers — Parrott Hardware Co., in the
building formerly occupied by the Brading — Marshall Co. we now have our business under one roof and are better
situated to supply the wants of our customers than ever before. Our lines will be greatly enlarged and our repair
department will receive special attention. We carry at all times everything the farmer needs to plant and all he needs
to harvest it with. We appreciate your generous trade in the past and hope to see you often at Implement Hall. W.J.
Barton Implement Feed and Seed Company. Buffalo Street.”

23 Johnson City Comet, 24 November 1910, included: “New Firm Organized Leading Business Men — W.J. Barton,
Jos. B. Lyle and Geo. E. treadway have sold their stock in the Barton — Mountcastle Hardware Co., and, together with
S.0. Hankal, have incorporated the W.J. Barton Implement, Feed and Seed Company, with a capital of $20,000. Mr.
Barton and Mr. Lyle are now in Knoxville and expect to have on hand one of the largest stocks of farming implements,
gasoline engines, buggies, wagons, &c., that can be found in East Tennessee. They will be located on Market street,
and expect to open for business about December 1. The officers are W.J. Barton, president; Jos. B. Lyle, 1% vice
president; S.O. Hankal, 2d vice president; Geo. E. Treadway, secretary and treasurer...”

24 National Miller, September 1924 (Volume XXIX, No. 9), page 50, available online at:
https://books.google.com/books?id=LZ4bAQAAMAAJ.

% «“Yesteryear with Bob Cox: A look back at Johnson City Mayor William J. Barton,” by Bob Cox, 14 June 2015
(updated 24 June 2020), available online at:
https://www.johnsoncitypress.com/living/yesteryear-with-bob-cox-a-look-back-at-johnson-city-mayor-william-j-
barton/article dc0027b0-1414-5103-9541-cb2b31fff563.html.

% This map includes: “Heat steam. — Lights — Elect. General Fire Extinguisher Co.’s auto sprinkler dry system
throughout building. Heads spaced 8’ x 8’ ft square. Total no. of heads 210 — supplied by 6” city connection.”

27 Safety Engineering, October 1918 (Volume 36, No. 4), page 282, available online at:
https://books.google.com/books?id=HCDOAAAAMAAJ, included: “August 5, 1918. Johnson City, Tenn. Lockett
Bros. East Market street. Wholesale grocery. One 2-story building damaged. Walls, brick. Floors, wood. Roof, tin.
Cause, unknown. Fire started on second floor, in case of matches. Discovered by watchman about 2 a. m. Alarm,
telephone. Duration, under control in 45 minutes. Stopped in building of origin. Firemen handicapped by bursting
hose line. Private fire apparatus, none. Value of building and contents, $75,000, estimated. Property loss, total.”
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